PROCESSED
MAY 05 2005 g

rHOMSUIN
FINANGIAL

2004 ANNUAL REPOR':I_ZI




rm 1 lm.mtm isa eamg |nternat|ona reinsurance organlzatlon

Review of Operations I
en-Year Summary of Selected 1
Report of Management Responsibilities _

-—

Directors and
orporate Information : ;
WorldwideOftices ... ®bCc | |




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Throughout this Annual Report, TRH presents its operations in the way it believes will be most meaningful
and useful, as well as most transparent, to the investing public and others who evaluate the performance
of TRH. This presentation includes the use of certain non-GAAP measures. These measures should not
be viewed as a substitute for net income determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Regulation G of the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission requires a reconciliation of each non-GAAP financial measure used in the Annual Report to the
comparable GAAP figure. Such reconciliations are presented in the Ten-Year Summary of Selected Financial
Information on pages 22 and 23.

In addition to the GAAP presentations of net income and return on equity, TRH shows both measures exclusive
of after-tax realized net capital gains (losses), significant net catastrophe losses and certain other significant
items, and with respect to return on equity only, net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments,
net of tax. Although realized and unrealized investment gains and losses represent an integral part of TRH's
results, such measures are not relevant indicators of the performance of our reinsurance operations but
rather of the investment and credit markets in general. TRH also presents net income and return on equity
exclusive of significant net catastrophe losses and certain other significant items because those items are
deemed to be significant in those years. TRH believes that this separate presentation is both meaningful and
useful for users of TRH’s financial information to understand the impact of such items on its financial results
and how management evaluates TRH’s financial performance.

{dollars in millions, except per share data) 2004 2003 Change
Net premiums written $ 37493 $ 3.341.1 12.2%
Net investment income 3068 2710 132
Net income 254.6 3036 (16.2)
Net income, excluding realized net capita! gains and

significant net catastrophe losses, net of tax (a) 3799 297.2 278
Net income, per common share — diluted 3.85 4.60 (16.5)
Net income, excluding realized net capital gains and significant net

catastrophe losses, net of tax, per common share — diluted (a) 5.74 451 27.4
Assets 10,605.3 8,707.8 218
Stockholders’ equity 2,587.1 2,376.6 8.9
Book value per common share 39.30 36.24 85

(a) Represents a non-GAAP measure.
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ROBERT F ORLICH
President and CEO

LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

Transatlantic, which was substantially impacted by record
catastrophes in the U.S. and around the world, reported net
income of $254.6 million in 2004, or $3.85 per share, com-
pared to $303.6 million, or $4.60 per share, in 2003.
Underlying results were strong as net income, excluding net
realized capital gains and catastrophe losses, net of tax,
increased 28 percent to $379.9 miilion in 2004, or $5.74
per share, compared to $297.2 million, or $4.51 per share,
a year ago. Return on equity for 2004 was 10.3 percent, or
16.4 percent excluding the impact of investment gains and
catastrophe losses.

Catastrophe losses in 2004 totaled $215.0 million, or
$139.7 million after tax, with more than two-thirds of that
amount arising from hurricanes in the Americas. There were
no significant catastrophe losses in 2003.

Net premiums written rose to $3.75 billion, an increase of
12 percent over 2003, driven by growth in our European
operations, where favorable opportunities prevailed. Net
investment income in 2004 increased 13 percent over the
prior year, to $307 million, on the strength of continued
robust operating cash flows. Such cash flows totaled $905
million for the year, despite significant fourth quarter catas-
trophe loss payments, compared to $921 million in 2003.

Transatlantic’s combined ratio was 101.5 in 2004 compared
to 96.5 in 2003. Catastrophe losses added 5.9 to the cur-

rent year's combined ratio. Net loss and loss adjustment
expense reserves increased $1.0 billion in 2004, and totaled
$5.0 billion at year-end.

Stockholders’ equity totaled $2.6 billion at the end of 2004,
increasing 9 percent during the year, despite the significant
catastrophe loss activity. Transatlantic's stockholders’ equi-
ty has risen at a compound annual rate of |3 percent over
the last 10 years.

In the second quarter of 2004, the Board of Directors
declared a 5-for-4 split of the Company’'s common stock in
the form of a 25 percent common stock dividend. The div-
idend was paid on july 16, 2004. At the same time, the
Board raised the quarterly dividend, as it has every year
since 1990, when Transatlantic became a public company.
The quarterly cash dividend increased [4 percent to $0.10
per common share. In addition, in the fourth quarter, the
Company repurchased 19,900 shares of its common stock
pursuant to a previously disclosed buyback program.

Our stock price, with dividends reinvested, declined by
4 percent in 2004. Nevertheless, our stock price has risen
almost 600 percent since 1990. This performance is sub-
stantially in excess of that recorded by the S&P 500
Property & Casualty Insurance index and the S&P 500 index
over that same period.




QOur debt-free balance sheet, with assets of $10.6 billion,
continues to be among the strongest in our industry. We fol-
low a conservative investment philosophy, with 93 percent
of our bonds rated "AA” or better. Our subsidiaries,
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company (TRC), Putnam
Reinsurance Company and Trans Re Zurich (TRZ), are rated
“A+ (Superior)” by A.M. Best Company. In addition, TRC
has been assigned an insurance financial strength rating of
Aa2 (“Excellent”) by Moody’s Investors Service; and TRC,
Putnam and TRZ have each been assigned an insurer finan-
cial strength rating of “AA” by Standard & Poor’s.

Transatlantic is well respected in the industry — with an envi-
able history of stability and consistency. Our solid attributes
— which include superior financial strength ratings, expertise
in a wide array of products, large lead capacity and responsive-
ness to client needs — enabled us to continue to broaden our
global franchise in a challenging year.

While rates were generally adequate in most classes world-
wide, domestic market conditions in most property, as well
as certain casualty, classes deteriorated modestly through-
out most of the year. These changes resulted largely from
higher ceding company retentions and the availability of
ample capacity due, in part, to the new capital that had
entered the market since 2001 and the relatively few major
natural catastrophe losses occurring in recent years. Rates
in certain property classes generally stabilized, following the
third quarter 2004 catastrophes, particularly in areas most
affected by such events.

Transatlantic is a lead reinsurer on much of its business and,
as a result, can exercise greater influence on contract terms
than those companies providing “following” capacity. While
recognized as one of the leading reinsurers of speciaity class-
es worldwide, Transatlantic offers a full spectrum of treaty and
facultative products on a global basis. Our business strategy
requires us to maintain strict underwriting discipline and to
control risk concentrations through diversification of our
geographic and product exposures.

The following is a discussion of our activities around the globe:

UNITED STATES

In 2004, domestic net premiums written remained level with
2003 and totaled $1.84 billion. Premiums grew in certain of
our core specialty casualty classes, such as medical malpractice
and accident and health. Pricing generally remained strong
in these classes, despite significant competition, though loss
costs also continued to increase. Transatlantic is a leading
broker-market reinsurer in the United States and a recognized

leader and innovator in these specialty casualty classes. In these
classes, we benefited from the continuing “flight to quality,”
which has been intensified by widespread rating downgrades
since 2002 and the overall strain placed on industry capital
by the 2004 catastrophe losses.

Specialty casualty classes also include other professional liability
classes (errors and omissions coverages (E&QO)), directors’ and
officers’ liability (D&O), fidelity and environmental impairment
liability. Premiums written in E&O and D&O declined slight-
ly in 2004, compared to the prior year, though submission
flow was particularly strong on the facultative side of our
business, as we devoted additional resources to this area.
Rates have generally leveled off in E&O and D&O, though
D&O rates for large public companies have declined despite
increased market losses. Success and longevity in these
classes has generally been limited to those reinsurers, like
Transatlantic, that combine superior financial strength with
the high level of expertise necessary to effectively under-
write and manage the volatility of these lines.

We also continued to develop other key product areas.
Our casualty pro rata and risk excess-of-loss book, which
includes our umbrella portfolio, achieved significant premium
increases in a strong rate environment. In this area, we
emphasize diversification by balancing our national company
writings with regional company accounts. In marine and avia-
tion, which includes offshore energy exposures, the year 2004
was marked by significant industry loss activity caused by hur-
ricanes. Due, in part, to our careful risk selection process,
Transatlantic sustained only modest catastrophe losses in
these lines during the year, while premium writings increased.

Although market conditions in most property classes deteri-
orated in 2004, pricing still remained relatively attractive.
During the year, we grew our commercial and personal lines
pro rata business and catastrophe excess-of-loss class
according to plan.

In addition, we improved our profile in our non-standard
private passenger automobile book again during 2004,
expanding business with certain existing clients while focusing
on states that have achieved positive regulatory change.
Nevertheless, net premiums written in this area fell, due to
the impact of unmet premium goals by certain key clients
and the capital raising activities of others — which reduced
their need for reinsurance support.

We also cut back our writings in the surety and credit area,
where results in recent years have been disappointing. We
continue to re-underwrite this book — exiting certain




unprofitable relationships where we are dissatisfied with
cedant underwriting discipline.

Generally, we view the present rate environment as favorable,
and remain optimistic about 2005.

The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (TRIA}, signed into law in
2002 and presently set to expire at the end of 2005, was
designed to mandate the availability of primary commercial
terrorism coverage and, likewise, to provide federal protec-
tion to those primary insurers in the event that they incur
“certified” terrorism losses in excess of a formula-driven
threshold. Some of these insurers are seeking reinsurance
coverage to reduce their retention. As the TRIA does not
provide coverage for reinsurers, Transatlantic is generally
limiting or excluding “certified” terrorism coverage entirely
on commercial lines, preferring to provide terrorism-specific
coverage on a limited basis instead, with aggregates kept at
modest levels.

INTERNATIONAL

Our international operations fueled Transatlantic’s growth in
2004. Net premiums written grew 27 percent during the
year to $1.91 billion, with strong contributions from our
European operations and, to a lesser extent, our Latin
American and Caribbean Division. During the year, each
Transatlantic office drew effectively on its local expertise and
market contacts — and on the full range of the Company’s
global resources. Our international business, spread over six
continents, accounted for 51 percent of consolidated net
premiums written, compared to 45 percent in the prior year,
American International Group, Inc. (AIG) — which benefi-
cially owns approximately 60 percent of Transatlantic —
continued to bring us valuable access to markets worldwide.

Lurope

Transatlantic’s European operations performed very well in
2004, both in terms of premium growth — partially aided by

NET INCOME
(in mitfons of dollars)

the impact of the weak U.S. dollar — and profitability. With
offices in the prime European locations of London, Paris and
Zurich, we benefitad from the availability of favorable
opportunities and the limited impact of catastrophe losses
during the year. While we recorded healthy gains in our
leading regional lines of motor and property, our offices also
made progress in growing our specialty casualty portfolio, as
well as our trade credit and marine classes.

Transatlantic serves a wide cross-section of ceding companies
across the continent, including Central and Eastern Europe.
As a result of the absorption of significant catastrophe losses
by the market in recent years and the assignment of rating
downgrades to many market participants since 2002, ceding
companies in Europe place great value on choosing reinsurance
partners, like Transatlantic, that can offer sizeable capacity
with the financial strength and stability to support it.

Our European operations work together to develop our busi-
ness throughout the region. In addition, they lend support to
our Warsaw representative office, our exclusive agency
arrangement in Johannesburg, and our mutually beneficial rela-
tionship with Kuwait Reinsurance Company, as we capitalize
on opportunities in the regions served by these facilities.

The Americas {other than the United States)

Transatlantic serves the Latin American and Caribbean
region through our divisional headquarters in Miami and
representative offices in Buenos Aires and Rio de janeiro.
In a year that was marked by significant third quarter
catastrophe losses in the Caribbean, resulting from
Hurricanes lvan and Jeanne, the Division responded promptly
to the needs of its clients. While continuing to focus on its
traditional property and casualty lines, where premium vol-
ume significantly increased during the year, Transatlantic
launched a separate professicnal liability unit, which should
supplement writings in the professional liability and health-
care classes going forward. Market conditions, while still

NET PREMIUMS
WRITTEN
(in millions of dobiars)




favorable, deteriorated modestly during most of the year
and generally stabilized following the third quarter events.

Transatlantic has served all of Canada through its branch
in Toronto for nearly a quarter century. In 2004, net premi-
ums written remained level with the prior year as market con-
ditions, while reflecting modest improvements in certain
casualty classes, held firm. Premium gains in certain classes,
such as property catastrophe excess-of-loss and general lia-
bility, were offset by reductions in surety and motor business
— due, in part, to our decision not to renew certain treaties
that failed to meet our underwriting criteria. The “flight to
quality” was a central theme in the Canadian marketplace —
and the shortage of stable, quality capacity in the areas we
serve enabled us to make strides there.

In the Americas, we continue to seek diversification oppor-
tunities, while maintaining our strong position in traditional
property and motor classes.

Asta-Pacific

Transatlantic’s Asia Pacific regional hub in Hong Kong manages
the operations of our Hong Kong and Tokyo branches and
our Shanghai representative office. Our Sydney branch provides
a responsive market for the Australian insurance community.
The most significant lines of business for Transatlantic in this
region are property and motor.

The year 2004 was marked by severe tragedy. The horrific
earthquakes and tsunami, coupled with a record number of
typhoons in Japan, left human tragedy and financial ruin in
their wake. These unprecedented events led to record
catastrophe losses for Transatlantic in the region. While the
losses incurred by Transatlantic from Typhoon Songda were
particularly severe, Transatlantic’s tsunami losses were mod-
est when compared to the region’s economic devastation.
The reason, in large part, was the generally low level of

NET INVESTMENT
INCOMLE
(in millions of doflars)

insurance penetration, and Transatiantic’s limited participa-
tion in the areas most severely affected by the tsunami.

In general, rates in the region declined during the year — and
competition was abundant. Nevertheless, in this challenging
marketplace, the Hong Kong branch grew its writings, and con-
tinues to develop in credit and motor classes, as well as in D&O
and professional indemnity. Furthermore, we expanded in key
markets such as Greater China and South Korea.

Our Tokyo branch increased premiums in property pro rata
lines, obtaining quality business from Japan’s largest insurers.
Due to declining rates on property catastrophe excess-of-
loss business, we reduced our commitment to certain minor
accounts where pricing was less attractive, choosing instead
to concentrate on major clients.

And in Sydney, the combination of reinsurer downgrades and
our superior financial strength enabled us to further improve
our position in the Australian marketplace, taking advantage
of relatively stable market conditions in most classes.

Despite record catastrophe losses suffered by the industry
as a whole, Transatlantic reported solid results in 2004, and
continued to build on its strong business franchise. Market
conditions were generally still favorable during the year, and
we expect them to remain so in 2005 in most classes. We
are confident that our financial strength, large capacity and
well-established history of delivering expertise covering a
broad spectrum of products anywhere in the world — along
with a high level of client service — will continue to distinguish
Transatlantic from the competition.

in closing, | want to thank our talented staff for their out-
standing efforts in 2004 and their continued commitment to
Transatlantic’s success.

ot LMk

ROBERT F. ORLICH
President and Chief Executive Officer
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Transatlantic Reinsurance Company, Trans Re Zurich (TRZ) and Putnam Reinsurance Company are the
principal operating subsidiaries of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. These companies offer a wide array of treaty
and facultative products worldwide, with an emphasis on specialty classes. Our global operations are head-
quartered in New York, and we have an international network of offices located on six continents.

For 2004, Transatlantic’s consolidated net premiums written increased |2 percent to $3.75 billion, driven by
the strength of our European operations — where more favorable underwriting opportunities prevailed.
Domestic net premiums written remained level compared to the prior year, due to softer market conditions
and the adoption of higher retention levels by certain ceding companies.

Worldwide, treaty reinsurance totaled 96 percent of net premiums written in 2004; the balance represented
facultative accounts. Casualty lines accounted for 72 percent of our business, while property lines totaled
28 percent. Business written by our international offices represented a growing portion of our business —
reaching 51 percent of total 2004 net premiums written, up from 45 percent a year earlier.

While rates were generally adequate in most classes worldwide, domestic market conditions in most prop-
erty, as well as certain casualty, classes deteriorated modestly throughout most of the year. These changes
resulted largely from the availability of ample market capacity due, in part, to the new capital that had
entered the market since 2001 and the relatively few major natural catastrophe losses in recent years.

The tragic natural catastrophes occurring mostly during the second half of the year — specifically, the tsunami
principally affecting South Asia, the four major hurricanes making landfall in the Southeastern United States
and the Caribbean, and the record ten typhoons that struck Japan — had a stabilizing effect on rates in
certain property classes, particularly in areas most affected by such events.

Nonetheless, one key trend has not changed: Ceding companies continue to demand premier financial
strength, service and consistency from their reinsurance partners — all of which Transatlantic provides.
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UNITED
STATES

THE AMERICAS

In 2004, net premiums written increased modestly over 2003, to $2.09 billion.
Of the three primary operating units in the Americas, only our Latin American
and Cartbbean Division achieved significant growth.

In 2004, domestic net premiums written totaled $1.84 billion, staying level with 2003. While premiums from
certain specialty classes, such as medical malpractice and accident and health lines, and from general casualty
classes registered solid gains, premiums from non-standard automobile classes and surety lines declined.
These premium fluctuations primarily reflected prevailing market conditions and the quality of opportunities
available. Underwriting results for the year bore the significant impact of natural catastrophes occurring in
the second half of the year.

SPECIALTY CASUALTY
Domestic specialty casualty net premiums written increased |10 percent from 2003, to $917 million, driven by

the growth of our healthcare lines — accident and health and medical malpractice. We continue to rank
among the leading reinsurers of this business woridwide.

Healthcare

In 2004, Transatlantic’s accident and health unit expanded its target product offerings. The new offerings, which
complement our more traditional health lines, benefited from the departure of certain major participants from
the marketplace. As for our medical malpractice portfolio, we continued to refine our selection criteria for
quality healthcare accounts to ensure that we attract and retain the best clientele possible.

Market conditions generally remained strong in these classes, though the level of competition continued to
exert pressure on rates. Pricing increases, emanating principally from original rates, were mostly offset by
increasing loss costs. Medical malpractice tort reform continues to evolve on a state-by-state basis, while
on the federal level, its merits are undergoing intense scrutiny in Congress.

During the year, our prompt, value-added services continued to benefit our clients and garner additional
desirable business for Transatlantic. For example, we partnered with a healthcare insurer — providing rein-
surance support and product expertise — to allow that insurer to get its product to market more quickly
than would have otherwise been possible. In another instance, we were able to provide a client with a
blended reinsurance product covering two distinct perils, enabling the client to continue to offer coverages
on the primary market while cost-effectively reinsuring them. Had this solution not been found, one of the
client’s products likely would have been discontinued.

For 2005, with mostly favorable market conditions anticipated, we expect to bolster our presence in our
principal healthcare areas — medical malpractice and accident and health.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability (D&O) and Errors and Omissions Liability (E&O)

Net premiums written by Transatlantic’s D&O and E&O team declined slightly in 2004 compared to the prior
year, though submission flow was particularly strong on the facultative side of our business, as we devoted
additional resources to this area. Much of our success in these professional liability classes results from the
fact that we continually diversify our portfolio and refine our underwriting techniques in an effort to pro-
vide the best reinsurance solutions for our clients. Moreover, our unit is consistently viewed as a market
leader because of Transatlantic’s commitment to the market segment and our underwriting flexibility.

After increasing for the last two years, rates in the D&O/E&O area have leveled off, with certain sectors, such
as D&O for large public companies, showing a decline. The weaker market conditions resulted, in part, from
aggressive underwriting by newer market entrants that may not have the same commitment to the market
and staying power that Transatlantic and its partners have demonstrated. We believe that we can achieve
favorable results by continuing to support those companies that are true specialists in this arena.

Going forward, we expect to grow selectively, avoiding those cedants that are not aligned with our three-
pronged business development criteria of — detailed underwriting, meaningful ceding company retentions
and balanced reinsurance terms. Growth should also be significant on the facultative side of the business
as cedants’ retentions increase and treaty warranties remain prevalent.

For 2005, we expect to retain our strong presence in the marketplace. While the rate environment varies
by product, we expect to see some paositive opportunities, due to our important competitive advantages.
These advantages include seasoned lead underwriters, actuarial product specialists, experienced claims’
examiners and superior financial strength and stabifity.

OTHER CASUALTY
Net premiums written for other casualty lines overall declined 9 percent in 2004 to $570 million, largely as
a result of a reduction in our private passenger automobile writings.

At the same time, Transatlantic’s casualty pro rata and risk excess-of-loss book showed solid growth. In a
key component of that book, our umbrella portfolio, the large national writers experienced continued rate
increases in 2004. Nonetheless, we maintained diversification in this class, by balancing our national company
writings with regional company accounts.

Additionally, the department renewed most longstanding accounts in its core book — and benefited from
primary rate increases across virtuaily all the lines that it underwrote during the year. Transatlantic’s financial
strength and the value-added services provided by our experienced staff make us the “first call” reinsurer

for most programs in our target classes.

For our clash portfolio, we have been favoring programs with regional writers over national company programs.
And in workers’ compensation, our business was aided by our “single state” business model, which we employ
exclusively in those states that we feel are desirable.




Transatlantic’s financial condition and
business franchise are among the

STRONGLST in the reinsurance industry.

The profile of our domestic private passenger automobile (PPA) book, which consists primarily of non-standard
risks, improved during 2004. We were successful in expanding our business with certain existing clients —
focusing on states that achieved positive regulatory change. Moreover, as a lead market, we were able to
provide useful marketpiace information to assist ceding companies in their underwriting efforts and to offer
value-added services from our strong underwriting, actuarial and claims units.

Nonetheless, PPA net premiums written fell, as significant competition among primary writers prevented
certain clients from reaching their premium goals, thereby reducing the volume of their cessions to
Transatlantic. Still others raised capital in the public market and no longer required reinsurance support
for their current production and expansion requirements.

Underlying rates generally remained adequate, though the marketplace is still very competitive. In 2005, we
will seek to replace lost business by identifying new opportunities with companies that have a proven track
record and meet our strict underwriting criteria.

The year 2004 was a difficult one in marine and aviation, which includes offshore energy exposures, as a
result of high levels of industry catastrophe losses, both in terms of frequency and severity, mostly emanating
from third quarter hurricanes. Nevertheless, in this environment, Transatlantic sustained only modest catas-
trophe losses in these classes and was able to increase net premiums written for the year.

These positive results were mostly attributable to our careful risk selection process, which emphasizes our
assessment of the underwriting skills of cedants we choose to support. Our financial strength, consistency
and long-term market presence help us maintain our “preferred partner” status in virtually all classes of
business in this area. Ve anticipate that rates generally will remain level in the near term, with deviations
based on individual cedant’s results.

PROPERTY
While our commercial and personal lines pro rata and catastrophe excess-of-loss business grew according to plan
in 2004, overall, property net premiums written for the year decreased é percent from 2003 to $298 million.

2053 2093 1182

WORLDWIDE
Major Specialty
Casualty Lines*
(net premiums written
in millions of doflars)

HIE AMERICAS
Net Premiums Written
(in rnilfions of doflars)

* Includes medical malpractice, accident and health,
directors’ and officers’ liability, other professional fiability,
fidelity and environmental impairment liability lines.




Although the deterioration of market conditions that had started towards the end of 2003 gathered momen-
tum during the first half of 2004, property catastrophe pricing still remained relatively attractive throughout
this period. Furthermore, the downgrade or withdrawal of several competitors from the marketplace kept
security uppermost in reinsurance buyers’ minds, providing Transatlantic with opportunities for growth.

The year 2004 was abnormal in terms of hurricane activity, and losses resulting from such events significantly
affected Transatlantic’s results. The four major hurricanes which made landfall in the Southeastern United
States within a six-week period cost our industry approximately $21 billion (over $28 billion, including the
Caribbean), compared with an annual average in the US. for the last ten years of around $12 billion of proper-
ty losses for all catastrophes. Pricing generally stabilized, in the wake of this season’s unprecedented hur-
ricane activity, particularly for catastrophe-exposed property line business emanating from this region. In
other geographic areas, softer market conditions may prevait.

Transatlantic offers a broad array of traditional reinsurance products on both a treaty and facultative basis.
Treaty per risk, pro rata and catastrophe excess-of-loss business written on a traditional or industry foss
warranty basis remain the focus of our Property department. We offer these products across a number of
property lines, including homeowners, commercial, auto physical damage, onshore energy, inland marine,
lease enhancement and terrorism.

Meanwhile, our facultative unit continues to offer one of the largest capacities available in the broker mar-
ketplace, covering a broad spectrum of business that may include international exposures, lines written on
an excess and surplus basis and classes such as onshore energy, inland marine, contingency and terrorism.
While we focus primarily on mid to high excess layers, we are one of the few domestic markets willing to
offer capacity on a pro rata basis.

SURETY AND CREDIT

Due to disappointing results that have emerged in recent years on certain prior year surety business,
we continue to re-underwrite our book in an effort to achieve a properly priced and balanced exposure
distribution, with proportional and non-proportional covers. During this process, we have exited certain
unprofitable relationships where we are dissatisfied with cedant underwriting discipline. As a consequence
of these actions, net premiums written declined to $55 million in surety and credit lines, a reduction of
2| percent compared to 2003.

Throughout this restructuring process, Transatlantic has remained well-positioned in the surety and credit
reinsurance market as a lead or co-lead reinsurer on most of our business. Also, our commitment to the
industry, together with a “flight to quality” among cedants, has helped us to modify our portfolio to include
several of the historically more profitable national and regional surety writers.

In 2005, we expect our clients to exercise additional underwriting rigor. Coupled with the restructuring
and re-pricing of our product, these efforts are expected to improve results in this area going forward.

In 2004, our Toronto office, which serves all of Canada, expanded its treaty excess-of-loss lines and continued
to reap the benefits of strong market conditions across most classes of business. Responsible underwriting by
primary companies also allowed for better results. In the marketplace, property rates generally held firm,

TORONTO




Our SUCCESS s driven by our skill in providing

LATIN
AMERICA
AND THE

CARIBBEAN

reinsurance products that meet the
needs of our clients.

while certain casualty rates rose modestly. Reinsurance terms and conditions remained satisfactory. For
2004, net premiums written remained level at $66 million.

The most significant increases in net premiums written came from our property catastrophe and general
liability excess-of-loss lines. Improved rates allowed us to offer greater capacity on catastrophe business,
while better terms on general liability business led to gains in that area as well. At the same time, net pre-
miums written in our surety and motor lines declined due, in part, to our decision not to renew certain
treaties that failed to meet our underwriting criteria.

A “flight to quality” is very evident in Canada as the market continues to consolidate. Transatlantic remains
one of a diminishing number of local, licensed, full-service reinsurers providing treaty and much needed fac-
uitative capacity to client companies.

Canada is a mature and competitive market — and one which we have been serving for nearly a quarter
century. In this environment, we have managed to expand our client base and generate favorable underwriting
results. Our philosophy is to search for long-term partners and to avoid those companies that opportunis-
tically purchase reinsurance only when terms are in their favor.

Going forward, we see rates remaining relatively stable in 2005. A lack of market capacity in certain classes
may provide us with additional opportunities to selectively grow our business and further diversify our
Canadian portfolio.

Transatlantic achieved several important goals in this region in 2004 — though the year was also marked
by significant losses resulting from Hurricanes Ivan and Jeanne.

During the year, Transatlantic’s Latin American and Caribbean Division further diversified its portfolio, while
continuing to focus on its traditional property and casuaity lines. For 2004, net premiums written rose
27 percent over 2003, to $187 million, driven principally by growth in the Division’s automaobile and property
business. Headquartered in Miami, with representative offices in Rio de Janeiro and Buenos Aires, the Division
also launched a separate unit during the year to better focus its initiatives in professional liability and health-
care classes.

In the third quarter of 2004, Transatlantic suffered significant losses from Hurricanes lvan and Jeanne in the
Caribbean, primarily in commercial property classes. We typically take certain steps, as we did this year,
after such events occur. For example, we re-evaluated the efficacy of our catastrophe modeling tools, our
risk profile and our pricing discipline — and took corrective action where necessary.

Market conditions, while still favorable, deteriorated modestly as the year progressed. However, as a result of
the severe industry losses caused by the hurricanes, property rates stabilized, and in many affected areas rose.

The Division's client-focused business strategy emphasizes the development of close, long-term relationships
with cedants that can benefit from Transatlantic’s support and expertise. Because we view our clients as
partners, we develop an in-depth understanding of each client’s portfolio that allows us to offer products
that meet their needs. Moreover, Transatlantic provides its reinsurance partners with superior financial secu-
rity and consistency.




EUROPE

In 2004, our European operations reported total net premiums written of
§1.51 billion, an increase of 30 percent over 2003 (partially aided by the
impact of the weakening U.S. dollar), and significantly outperformed our

other segments in terms of underwriting profitability.

This excellent performance stemmed from the continued availability of favorable opportunities and the limited
competitive impact of new capital in the European marketplace — coupled with the relatively low level of
catastrophe losses incurred during the year. In addition, rating downgrades of major reinsurers in the past
few years contributed to the market’s emphasis on superior security.

In 2004, we continued to build on our position as a leading reinsurer in the London market. Net premiums
written by Transatlantic’s London office climbed 22 percent from 2003, to $842 million, led by increases in
property and trade credit lines. Our “very strong” financial strength rating helped us to secure additional
business — particularly in our professional liability portfolic and non-motor casualty account — and played
an important role in enabling us to achieve desired terms and conditions.

We expanded our property proportional writings, capitalizing on favorable primary markets in UK home-
owners and international industrial classes. Success in these international classes resulted from our work
in the UK and Scandinavia, and from cooperative efforts with Transatlantic’s Sydney branch and exclusive
representative agency in South Africa. Furthermore, conditions in the short-term trade credit primary mar-
ket improved significantly, prompting us to increase our shares on major accounts and to obtain important
new accounts as well.

Property, our largest line, accounts for 26 percent of the London portfolio. Excess reinsurance capacity
continues to exist in this area, but we have been able to maintain pricing discipline. During the year, we
increased our position on UK homeowners’ accounts, benefiting from stable conditions in that class.

Qur motor line accounts for 22 percent of our overall London portfolio. The main source of this business
remains the UK, where we continue to be a market force.

In the professional liability area, market rates and conditions continued to improve. Morebver, client focus on
the security of reinsurers worked to our advantage, as a number of cedants requested that we increase our
program commitments for the year. While the UK is our main territgny,rouf exposures are spread into other
international markets such as Continental Europe, North Amgricafthe Far East, the Middle East and Australia.

In the non-motor traditional casualty account, stron§?narket conditions contributed to our growth there.
_ In marine, direct hull rates continued to incréase, and we again increased our market presence, particularly
\\\in Scandinavia. And in the aviation _lin€, conditions remained acceptable in 2004, despite downward pressure
on original rates. .
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Transatlantic writes an international portfolio of engineering exposures, working with our other offices
around the world to secure business. Original rates and conditions in this class experienced significant
improvement for yet another year.

In addition, in 2004, we entered into an exclusive reinsurance arrangement to write personal accident
business.This arrangement has established Transatlantic firmly within this London sector.

Looking to 2005, we expect property lines to remain stable, after the multiple worldwide catastrophes of
2004, and anticipate that competition will exert pressure on original rates in the professional liability area.
Market conditions in the marine hull line should show further improvement, helping us to grow this segment
of our marine business. In motor excess-of-loss, we expect further rate increases, which should create
opportunities for us, though claims inflation is putting increasing pressure on profit margins.

In the future, we are confident that we will remain a significant market in London for many reasons. These
include: our detailed knowledge of all our lines of business and coverages; our lead capability, large capacity and
responsive service; the superior security we offer; and our excellent in-house actuarial and claims resources.

in 2004, our Paris office capitalized on favorable reinsurance conditions, the expertise of its staff and
Transatlantic’s excellent security to achieve strong growth. Net premiums written rose 38 percent from
2003, to reach $283 million. Most territories and lines of business contributed to this growth, with motor
leading the way.

During the last few years, some leading European reinsurers were downgraded, creating a climate in which
security became a major issue in all our territories. Thanks to our superior financial standing, longstanding
presence in Europe and reinsurance expertise, we are recognized as a leader in the various markets in
which we operate. With market conditions generally remaining firm, we increased the amount of business
that we wrote with our existing clients. We also consolidated our positions in Eastern Europe, benefiting
from the economic growth in that market — and continued to make inroads in Germany and Turkey, and
in specialty lines in France.

As insurance conditions remained favorable throughout 2004 in the property area, we continued to grow
our large pro rata per risk portfolio, while consolidating our important facultative portfolio. We recorded
strong growth in our specialty casualty lines in a climate of rising rates. Motor remains our largest class of
business, and the great majority of our motor book is proportional business.

in 2005, we expect conditions to remain favorable in most classes, despite the fact that we have seen some
deterioration in the market for large risks. Bermuda companies are playing an increasing market role in
short-tail business, though their influence in longer tail classes is more limited. In the motor excess-of-loss
line, pricing and contract issues presently limit our appetite for this class of business. Overall, we remain opti-
mistic about our business, particularly in light of the stability in our major market — Germany — and the
attractive conditions which continue to prevail for classes such as specialty casualty and surety and credit.

PARIS




Transatlantic delivers local market expertise

ZURICH

coupled with WORLDWIDE RESOURCES.

Our Trans Re Zurich (TRZ) subsidiary continued to build its portfolio in 2004. Net premiums written grew
by 44 percent from 2003, to reach $389 million, as TRZ's technical expertise and very strong financial ratings
helped it to compete successfully. )

Much of the increase in net premiums written was attributable to growth of our largest lines — motor and
property — which together represented approximately 68 percent of TRZ’s writings. Accident and health
and marine premiums alsc grew and together accounted for approximately 16 percent of TRZ's 2004 book.
In addition, TRZ achieved gains in general liability and specialty casualty — building on Transatlantic’s con-
siderable worldwide expertise in these classes.

TRZ was able to initiate several new relationships with clients in 2004, leveraging the company’s extensive
knowledge of local markets and responsive client service. The main sources of TRZ’s core lines of business
continued to include experienced insurers in Switzerland, Spain and Portugal, Holland, ltaly and the Middie
East, with proven expertise in the classes of business they underwrite.

In addition, TRZ has been working closely with new clients in its core European territories to develop the
concept of an integrated risk management approach that covers all lines of the client’s business.
Implementing this type of coverage has produced significant increases in premium income for TRZ.

Rates have generally remained firm in most classes. In some lines of business, most notably casualty, rates
rose modestly in some sectors, causing TRZ to broaden the scope of its interest in those areas. The reduction
of other highly rated capacity from the market continues to benefit us, as does our excellent reputation and
consistent presence as a lead reinsurer in the marketplace.

Looking ahead in 2005, we expect to selectively grow our business and strengthen our presence in our
core territories.
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ASIA-PACIFIC

Transatlantic’s Asia Pacific operations include our Hong Kong branch and Shanghai representative office, as
well as our Tokyo and Sydney branches.

Tragically, 2004 was marked by unspeakable suffering in the region. On December 26, a severe earthquake
in the Indian Ocean set off a sequence of multiple earthquakes and triggered a tsunami principally affecting
South Asia, where upwards of one-quarter million people are believed to have died. In addition, a record
ten typhoons struck Japan between June and October. These unprecedented events led to record catastrophe
losses for Transatlantic in the region. While the losses incurred from Typhoon Songda were particularly
severe, Transatlantic’s tsunami losses were modest when compared to the region’s economic devastation.
The reason, in large part, was the generally low level of insurance penetration, and Transatlantic’s limited
participation, in the areas most severely affected by the tsunami.

From an underwriting perspective, the Asian marketplace was extremely challenging, with declining rates and
abundant competition. However, we successfully sought out favorable opportunities within this difficult envi-
ronment. During the year, the Hong Kong branch managed to expand in key markets such as Greater China
and South Korea. Its Treaty department further diversified and grew its writings, with significant contribu-
tions from financial and motor classes, while the Facultative department increased premium levels in its major
classes. The branch also greatly strengthened its core client relationships during the year. For 2004, net pre-
miums written by our Hong Kong branch totaled $83 million, an 8 percent increase over 2003.

The Hong Kong branch continues to develop its speciality lines, such as directors’ and officers’ liability and
professional indemnity, as well as other casualty lines. Targeted territories included China, Taiwan and Hong
Kong. Development of these products in most territories is still in the relatively early stages, but Transatlantic’s
goal is to become a “first choice” reinsurer in these developing classes.

In China, Transatlantic continues to consolidate its position with key partners. As the Chinese market opens
up, our local staff in Hong Kong and Shanghai are taking advantage of their diverse cultural backgrounds and
muitilingual capabilities to help us efficiently tap into a potentially vast market.

Looking to the future, the Hong Kong branch sees room for upward movement in casualty rates. We will
look to expand in these classes, where there is less competition and a scaling back of reinsurance capacity.
The office will also seek opportunities in the marine line, which we see as more stable than certain other
lines, such as property. We are well positioned to capitalize on these opportunities with our strong under-
writing and actuarial resources.




In Tokyo, our branch operation leveraged Transatlantic’s superior financial strength ratings to win business
from cedants looking for top-flight security in 2004. During the year, the branch obtained quality proper-
ty pro rata business from Japan’s largest insurers. Overall, net premiums written for the office rose 30 per-
cent from 2003, to $61 million. A major factor in our success was the significant increase we recorded in prop-
erty pro rata business, which is a major component of the Japanese market. Due to declining rates on prop-
erty catastrophe excess-of-loss business, the Tokyo branch significantly reduced its commitment to certain
minor accounts where pricing was less attractive, choosing instead to concentrate on major clients.

After a difficult year in which the Tokyo branch registered significant catastrophe losses, mostly from Typhoon
Songda, we expect that results, assuming no recurrence of such unusual loss events, should dramatically
improve in 2005. Moreover, we believe that property catastrophe excess-of-loss rates will rise in 2005, as a
result of the significant losses absorbed by the reinsurance market, with property pro rata pricing remaining
relatively stable.

As for our Sydney branch, the combination of reinsurer downgrades and our own financial strength enabled
us to further improve our position in the Australian market in 2004. The relatively stable market conditions
in most classes have enabled us to strengthen our strategic relationships with insurers in the region. Also,
the Sydney branch took advantage of the London office’s expertise in the engineering area to take leading
positions on a number of contracts during the year.

In 2005, we expect increased levels of local regulation to result in a healthy environment that emphasizes
underwriting discipline. We continue to believe that opportunities exist for us to expand the scope of our
local Australian business going forward.

143

ASIA-PACIFIC
Net Premiumns Written
(in millions of doflars)

02 03 04




Dur success is a direct reflection of -

lhe professionalism, dedication and diverse

talents of our employees around the world. -




[l
[

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TEN-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following Ten-Year Summary of Selected Financial Information is prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, except as otherwise indicated. Such data include the results of Trans Re Zurich
subsequent to the date of its acquisition by Transatlantic Reinsurance Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Transatlantic
Holdings, Inc.) in mid-1996, accounted for as a purchase. This financial information should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes included on the accompanying Form 10-K. In addition, this financial information
contains certain non-GAAP measures and reconciliation of such measures to the comparable GAAP figures in accordance with SEC
Regulation G. See page | of this Annual Report under Financial Highlights for further discussion on SEC Regulation G.

Years Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

(in thousands, except per share data and ratios)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Net premiums written $ 3,749,274 $ 3,341,077  $ 2,500,159
Net premiums earned 3,661,090 3,171,226 2,369,452
Net investment income 306,786 270,972 252,026
Realized net capita! gains (losses) 22,181 9,942 (5,951)
Revenues 3,990,057 3,452,140 2,615,527
Income (loss) before income taxes 276,212 386,674 188,320
REGULATION G RECONCILIATION
Net income $ 254584 § 303644 $ 169318
Realized capital gains (losses), net of tax (a) 14,418 6,462 (3,868)
Significant net catastrophe losses and certain other items, net of tax (a)(b} (139,767) — (65,000)
Net income, excluding realized net capital gains (losses), .

significant net catastrophe losses and certain other items, net of tax (a) 379,933 297,182 238,186

PER COMMON SHARE:
Net income

Basic $ 387 % 464 % 2.59
Diluted 3.85 4.60 2.57
Net income, excluding realized net capital gains (losses), significant net
catastrophe losses and certain other items, net of tax (diluted) (a) 5.74 451 3.6l
Cash dividends declared 0.39 0.34 0.32
BALANCE SHEET DATA (AT YEAR END):
Investments and cash $ 8,287,003 § 6,867,165  $5,587,530
Assets 10,605,292 8,707,758 7,286,525
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses 5,941,464 4,805,498 4,032,584
Unearned premiums 1,057,265 917,355 707,916
Stockholders’ equity 2,587,129 2,376,587 2,030,767
REGULATION G RECONCILIATION
Return on equity (GAAP basis) (c) 10.3% 13.8% 8.7%
Percent increase (decrease) related to adjustment for
realized and unrealized capital gains {losses), each net of tax (a)(c) ] 0.1 0.5 0.6
Percent increase related to adjustment for significant net '
catastrophe losses and certain other items (a)(b)(c) 6.0 — 35
Return on equity, as adjusted (a)(c) 16.4 14.3 12.8

(a) Represents a non-GAAP measure.

(b) Represents the following net of tax adjustments: 2004 — net catastrophe losses related to Hurricanes Charley, Frances, [van and Jeanne, typhoons that affected japan,
and the tsunami that affected South Asia; 2002 — fourth quarter increase in net loss reserves in certain casualty lines; 2001 — $139.8 million, principally related to the
terrorist attack, and $39.0 million related to Enron reinsurance exposure; 999 — net catastrophe losses, the majority of which related to the European storms;
1998 — net catastrophe losses related to Hurricane Georges: 1995 — net catastrophe losses related to the earthquake in Kobe, Japan.




Ten-Year
Annual
Compound
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 Growth Rate

$1,905647 $ 1,658579 $ 1,498,524 $ 1,393,700 $ 1,294,136 $1,142,515 $ 1,009,227 15.8%
1,790,339 1,631,536 1,484,634 1,380,570 1,259,251 1,130,633 981,177 15.7
240,083 234,485 230,739 222,000 207,646 192,636 172,876 7.2
(240) 33,098 82,793 120,899 32,939 18,668 1,119 —
2,030,182 1,899,119 1,798,166 1,723,469 1,499,836 1,341,937 1,165,172 14.6
(34,107) 267,982 236,097 323,351 234,726 196,320 163,799 8.8

$ 18892 % 211,638 $ 187,362 $ 247,523 $ 185,500 $ 154,860 $ 131,858 9.6%
(156) 21,514 53,815 78,584 21,410 12,134 7,227 —
(178,750} — (55,250) (13,000) — — (2,925) —
197,798 190,124 188,797 181,939 164,090 142,726 127,556 13.7

$ 029 § 325 % 28 % 3.8l $ 2.86 $ 2.40 $ 2.04 9.4%
0.29 3.23 2.86 3.79 2.85 2.39 2.04 9.3
3.00 2.90 2.89 278 252 2.20 1.97 13.4
0.30 0.28 0.26 0.23 0.21 0.18 0.15 1.4

$ 5,004,431 $4,391,226 $4,333,462 $4,328833 $3,992,519 $ 3,589,889 $2,987.915 12.7%
6,741,030 5,522,672 5,480,198 5,253,249 4,834,980 4,379,141 3,898,967 1.9
3,747,583 3,077,162 3,304,931 3,116,038 2,918,782 2,733,055 2,388,155 10.6
553,734 418,621 397,783 386,652 366,640 343,936 291,568 —
1,846,010 1,856,365 1,642,517 1,610,139 1,356,659 1,137,306 988,502 13.0
1.0% 12.1% 11.5% 16.7% 14.9% 14.6% 15.1% —
0.1 0.9 (2.8) (4.0) (0.3) 0.1 0.1 —
10.0 — 3.6 1.0 — — 0.4 —
1.1 1.2 12.3 13.7 14.6 14.7 15.3 —

(c) Return on equity (GAAP basis) is net income expressed as a percentage of average stockholders’ equity. in the “return on equity - as adjusted” calculation, fiet
income is adjusted to exclude net realized capital gains (losses), significant net catastrophe losses and certain other items, net of tax, and stockholders’ equity is
adjusted to exclude unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments, net of tax.




TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
RESPONSIBILITIES

The management of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively TRH) is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Management is also responsible

for all other financial information contained in this annual report.

TRH’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of TRH’s
principal executive and principal financial officers to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of TRH's financial statements for external reporting purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

TRH’s internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions
of assets; provide reasonable assurances that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of TRH; and provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of TRH's assets that
could have a material effect on TRH’s financial statements.

Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting, including its assessment of the effectiveness
of TRH’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, and the Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm, which includes an opinion rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
on management’s assessment, may be found on pages 45 and 46, respectively, in Item 8, Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data, in the accompanying Form 10-K.
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PART 1

Item 1. Business

Introduction

Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is a holding company incorporated in the state of
Delaware. Originally formed in 1986 under the name PREINCO Holdings, Inc. as a holding company
for Putnam Reinsurance Company (Putnam), the Company’s name was changed to Transatlantic
Holdings, Inc. on April 18, 1990 following the acquisition on April 17, 1990 of all of the common stock
of Transatlantic Reinsurance Company (TRC) in exchange for shares of common stock of the Company
(the “Share Exchange”). Prior to the Share Exchange, American International Group, Inc. (AIG, and
collectively, with its subsidiaries, the AIG Group) held a direct and indirect interest of approximately
25% in the Company and an indirect interest of 49.99% in TRC. As a result of the Share Exchange,
AIG became the beneficial owner of approximately 41% of the Company’s outstanding common stock
and TRC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. In June 1990, certain stockholders of the
Company (other than AIG) sold shares of the Company’s common stock in a registered public offering.
As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, AIG beneficially owned approximately 60% of the Company’s
outstanding shares.

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, TRC, Trans Re Zurich (TRZ), acquired by
TRC in 1996, and Putnam (contributed by the Company to TRC in 1995), offers reinsurance capacity
for a full range of property and casualty products on both a treaty and facultative basis, directly and
through brokers, to insurance and reinsurance companies, in both the domestic and international
markets. One or both of TRC and Putnam is licensed, accredited, authorized or can serve as a reinsurer
in 50 states and the District of Columbia in the United States and in Puerto Rico and Guam. TRC is
licensed by the federal government of and seven provinces in Canada. TRC is also licensed in Japan,
the United Kingdom and the Dominican Republic and is registered or authorized as a foreign reinsurer
in Peru, Colombia, Argentina (where it also maintains a representative office in Buenos Aires,
Transatlantic Re (Argentina) S.A.), Brazil (where it maintains a representative office in Rio de Janeiro,
Transatlantic Re (Brasil) Ltda.), Chile, Mexico, Ecuador, Guatemala, Venezuela and France. In
addition, TRC is licensed in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, People’s Republic of China,
and maintains a branch in Hong Kong. Also, TRC is authorized to maintain a representative office in
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China. TRZ is licensed as a reinsurer in Switzerland. Transatlantic
Polska Sp. z 0.0., a subsidiary of TRC, maintains a registered representative office in Warsaw, Poland. In
addition, in 2002, TRC’s representative office in Sydney, Australia obtained a license to underwrite
business as an authorized branch in Australia, and presently does so. TRH’s (Transatlantic Holdings,
Inc. and its subsidiaries) principal lines of reinsurance include other liability (including directors’ and
officers’ liability (D&O) and other professional liability (errors and omissions coverages (E&O))), auto
liability (including non-standard risks), medical malpractice, ocean marine and aviation, surety and
credit and accident and health in the casualty lines, and fire, allied, homeowners multiple peril and auto
physical damage in the property lines. Reinsurance is provided for most major lines of insurance on
both excess-of-loss and pro rata bases.

The statutory surplus of TRC of $1,944.5 million, as of December 31, 2004, ranked TRC as the 7th
largest domestic reinsurer according to statistics distributed by the Reinsurance Association of America
(RAA). Although TRC and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Putnam, are separate entities, together they
would have ranked as the 2nd largest domestic reinsurer based upon combined statutory net premiums
written of $3,393.3 million and 6th based upon combined statutory net income of $137.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004, according to such RAA statistics.

TRH’s website, which can be found on the Internet at http://www.transre.com, contains frequently
updated information about the Company and its operations. Copies of TRH’s Form 10-K, Form 10-Q
and Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports, can be accessed free of charge as soon as
reasonably practicable after the reports and amendments are electronically filed with or furnished to the .
Securities and Exchange Commission by clicking on “Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. Investor Information”
on TRH’s website and then clicking on “SEC Filings (including Section 16 Filings—Forms 3, 4 and 5).”
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In addition, copies of any of TRH’s reports on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K, and all
amendments to those reports, as well as any Quarterly Earnings Press Release may be obtained by
contacting TRH’s Investor Relations Department at:

Transatlantic Holdings, Inc.

80 Pine Street

New York, New York 10005
Telephone: (212) 770-2040

Telefax: (212) 248-0965

E-mail: investor_relations@transre.com

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, TRH presents its operations in the way it believes
will be most meaningful. TRH’s net unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses and TRH’s combined
ratio and its components are included herein and presented in accordance with principles prescribed or
permitted by insurance regulatory authorities as these are standard measures in the insurance and
reinsurance industries.

The Reinsurance Business

Reinsurance is an arrangement whereby one or more insurance companies, the “reinsurer,” agrees
to indemnify another insurance company, the “ceding company,” for all or part of the insurance risks
underwritten by the ceding company. Reinsurance can provide certain basic benefits to the ceding
company. It reduces net liability on individual risks, thereby enabling the ceding company to underwrite
more business than its own resources can support; it provides catastrophe protection to lessen the
impact of large or multiple losses; it helps to stabilize results by leveling fluctuations in the ceding
company’s loss and loss adjustment expense ratio; and it helps the ceding company maintain acceptable
surplus and reserve ratios. -

There are two major classes of reinsurance: treaty reinsurance and facultative reinsurance. Treaty
reinsurance is a contractual arrangement that provides for the automatic reinsuring of a type or
category of risk underwritten by the ceding company. Facultative reinsurance is the reinsurance of
individual risks. Rather than agreeing to reinsure all or a portion of a class of risk, the reinsurer
separately rates and underwrites each risk. Facultative reinsurance is normally purchased to cover risks
not covered by treaty reinsurance or for individual risks covered by reinsurance treaties that are in need
of capacity beyond that provided by such treaties.

A ceding company’s reinsurance program may involve pro rata and excess-of-loss reinsurance on
both a treaty and facultative basis. Under pro rata reinsurance (also referred to as proportional), the
ceding company and the reinsurer share the premiums as well as the losses and expenses in an agreed
proportion. Under excess-of-loss reinsurance, the reinsurer agrees to reimburse the ceding company for
all losses in excess of a predetermined amount up to a predetermined limit. Premiums paid by the
ceding company to the reinsurer for excess-of-loss coverage are generally not proportional to the
premiums that the ceding company receives because the reinsurer does not assume a proportionate risk.

In pro rata reinsurance, the reinsurer generally pays the ceding company a ceding commission.
Generally, the ceding commission is based on the ceding company’s cost of obtaining the business being
reinsured (i.e., brokers’ and agents’ commissions, local taxes and administrative expenses). Often there
is no ceding commission on excess-of-loss reinsurance and therefore the pricing mechanism used by
reinsurers in those instances is a rate applicable to premiums of the individual policy or policies subject
to the reinsurance agreement.

In general, casualty insurance protects the insured against financial loss arising out of its obligation
to others for loss or damage to their person or property. Property insurance protects the insured against
financial loss arising out of the loss of property or its use caused by an insured peril. Property and
casualty reinsurance protects the ceding company against loss to the extent of the reinsurance coverage
provided. A greater degree of unpredictability is associated generally with casualty risks and with
catastrophe-exposed (natural and man-made (e.g., terrorist attacks)) property and casualty risks, and
there tends to be a greater lag in the reporting and settlement of casualty reinsurance claims, due to the
nature of casualty risks and their greater potential for litigation.
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General

TRH reinsures risks from a broad spectrum of industries throughout the United States and foreign
countries. A portion of the reinsurance written by TRH is assumed from other subsidiaries of AIG and
therefore generally reflects their underwriting philosophy and diversified insurance products.
Approximately $639 million (15%), $633 million (17%) and $395 million (13%) of gross premiums
written by TRH in the years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were attributable to reinsurance
purchased by other subsidiaries of AIG. The great majority of such gross premiums written were
recorded in the auto liability, property, other liability, ocean marine and aviation and, for 2004 only,
medical malpractice lines. (See Relationship with the AIG Group and Transactions with Starr.)

In 2004, TRH’ activities in the United States were conducted through its worldwide headquarters
in New York, its office in Miami (as further discussed below) and its regional office in Chicago. All
domestic treaty business is underwritten by, or under the supervision of, senior officers of TRH located
in New York. TRH’s headquarters in New York, the Miami office and international offices in Toronto,
London, Paris, Zurich, Hong Kong, Tokyo and Sydney (license obtained to operate as an authorized
branch in Australia in 2002) can offer treaty as well as facultative reinsurance. In addition, TRH
operates representative offices in Buenos Aires, Rio de Janeiro, Warsaw and Shanghai, and maintains
an exclusive arrangement with a representative agency in Johannesburg, South Africa. Business
underwritten by all offices located outside the United States and by the Miami office (which underwrites
business in Latin America and the Caribbean) accounted for approximately 51%, 45% and 45% of
worldwide net premiums written in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. (See Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Management’s Discussion) for a
discussion of premium fluctuations between years and Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for financial data by business segment.) The London branch had net premiums written
totaling $841.8 million, $690.1 million and $527.3 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
representing 22%, 21% and 21%, respectively, of worldwide net premiums written in each of those
years. TRZ had net premiums written totaling $388.7 million, $269.2 million and $170.4 million in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively, representing 10%, 8% and 7%, respectively, of worldwide net premiums
written in each of those years. (For a discussion of certain conditions associated with international
business see Regulation and Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In addition, TRH holds a 40% interest in Kuwait Reinsurance Company (K.S.C.), acquired in 2000
in exchange for a $30 million contribution to the capital of that company. Kuwait Reinsurance Company
provides property, casualty and life reinsurance products to clients in Middle Eastern and North African
markets. TRH also has a 23% interest (acquired through an initial and subsequent investment made in
1999 and 2003, respectively, for $57 million in the aggregate) in RAM Reinsurance Company Ltd., a
financial guaranty reinsurer domiciled in Bermuda.

Casualty reinsurance constitutes the larger portion of TRH’s business, accounting for 72% of net
premiums written in 2004, 74% in 2003 and 74% in 2002. As a general matter, due to the longer period
of time necessary to settle casualty claims, casualty reinsurance underwriting tends to involve variables
(such as those discussed in the paragraph immediately following) that are not as predictable as those in
property reinsurance underwriting. The greater degree of uncertainty associated generally with casualty
business as a result of these variables may produce a more volatile result over a period of time, although
catastrophe-exposed property and casualty business is also subject to significant year to year volatility
due to major natural and man-made disasters. Operating results in 2004 included net pre-tax
catastrophe losses of $215 million. (See Management’s Discussion.) 2003 and 2002 catastrophe losses did
not have a material impact on those years’ results. TRH also seeks to focus on more complex risks
within the casualty and property lines, and to adjust its mix of business to take advantage of market
opportunities.

In general, the overall operating results (including investment performance) and other changes to
stockholders’ equity of property and casualty insurance and reinsurance companies, and TRH, in
particular, are subject to significant fluctuations due to competition, natural and man-made catastrophic
events, economic and social conditions, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, interest rates,
operating performance and prospects of investee companies and other factors, such as changes in tax
laws, tort laws and the regulatory environment.




The following table presents certain underwriting information concerning TRH’s casualty and

property business for the periods indicated:(5)
Years Ended December 31,

Loss and Loss
Net Losses and Adjustment
Loss Adjustment Expense
Net Premiums Written Net Premiums Earned Expenses Incurred Ratio

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
(dollars in millions)

Casualty:
Other liability(1)(2)(3)(4) ... ... $ 8346 § 7857 $ 4836 $ 783.0 § 7096 $ 4630 $ 7572 § 6003 $§ 4137 96.7 84.6 894
Auto liability(4) .............. 611.6 616.4 613.7 624.5 659.5 610.8 4672 4718 4828 748 715 79.0
Medical malpractice(2)(3)(4) ... 4113 3453 2312 400.7 3222 2165 3396 2637 189.3 847 818 874

Ocean marine and

aviation(2)(4) . .............. 293.7 260.3 181.8 3071 2439 158.2 178.6 1622 1604 582 66.5 1014
Surety and credit(3)(4) ........ 155.8 123.4 96.3 156.9 129.1 97.9 84.0 129.3 98.0 53.5 100.1 100.1
Accident and health(4) ........ 154.5 1227 126.3 145.0 118.4 1254 103.7 74.6 105.1 7.5 63.1 838
Other(2)(3) ...ttt 254.5 203.0 1154 226.8 193.3 107.3 159.0 131.1 515 701 67.8 48.0
Total casualty ............ 2,716.0 24568 18483 2,644.0 23760 17791 2,089.3 1,833.0 15008 79.0 77.1 844

Property:
Fire(2)(4) ....coovvviiiiiin 488.5 407.8 268.4 474.2 357.8 244.6 2739 168.7 1213 57.8 472 496
Allied lines(2)(4) ............. 158.4 104.1 69.7 153.5 97.2 67.7 124.2 353 181 80.9 36.3 267
Homeowners multiple peril(2).. 1552 149.3 106.9 166.8 1253 91.6 138.2 80.4 429 829 64.1 468
Auto physical damage......... 121.2 118.5 110.1 118.7 119.7 98.5 818 77.9 62.4 689 651 633
Other(2) ........cooviviiiinn 110.0 104.6 96.8 103.9 95.2 88.0 47.2 38.1 509 454 40.0 578
Total property ............ 1,033.3 884.3 6519 1,017.1 7952 590.4 665.3 400.4 295.6 654 504 50.1
Total .........c.ovuiinn $3,749.3 $3341.1 $2,500.2 $3,661.1 $3,171.2 $2,369.5 $2,754.6 $2233.4 $1,7964 753 70.4 75.8

(1) A majority of the amounts within the other liability line relates to more complex risks such as E&O, D&O and, to a much
lesser extent, environmental impairment liability.

(2) In 2004, development on reserves held at December 31, 2003 related to losses that occurred in 2003 and prior years
significantly increased net losses and loss adjustment expenses in the other liability, medical malpractice and other casualty
lines and significantly decreased net losses and loss adjustment expenses in the fire and ocean marine and aviation lines. In
addition, net pre-tax catastrophe losses of $215 million significantly increased net losses and loss adjustment expenses in the
fire, allied, homeowners multiple peril and other property lines.

(3) In 2003, development on reserves held at December 31, 2002 related to losses that occurred in 2002 and prior years
significantly increased net losses and loss adjustment expenses in the other liability, medical malpractice, surety and credit and
other casualty lines. In addition, 2003 catastrophe losses did not have a significant impact on that year’s results.

(4) In 2002, development on reserves held at December 31, 2001 related to losses that occurred in 2001 and prior years
significantly increased net losses and loss adjustment expenses in the other liability, auto liability, medical malpractice, ocean
marine and aviation, surety and credit and accident and health lines and significantly decreased net losses and loss adjustment
expenses in the fire and allied lines. In addition, 2002 catastrophe losses did not have a significant impact on that year’s results.

(5) See Management’s Discussion.

Treaty reinsurance constitutes the great majority of TRH’s business, accounting for 96%, 96% and
95% of net premiums written in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.




The following table presents certain information concerning TRH’s treaty and facultative
business for the periods indicated:

Treaty
Years Ended December 31,
2004(1) 2003(2) 2002
(in millions)
Gross premiums WIitten . . .....ovrervrenvrneninranarenannss $3,837.1 $3,397.2 §$2,720.5
Net premiums WIIten . ... ..vvvr i ie i e i rainannns 36139 32192 2,384.9
Net premiums earned .........ooviiiiiiiiiiiniiieiannns 3,528.7 3,048.7 2,2589
Facultative
Years Ended December 31,
2004(1) 2003(2) 2002
(in millions)
Gross premiums WItten . .. ..o ove et iviin e ieeianaaaens $ 3041 § 2407 $ 2068
Net premiums WIItem .. ......ooiuinii i, 1354 121.9 115.3
Net premiums earned ..........coviiiiiieiiiiiiiainn.. 1324 122.5 110.6

(1) In 2004 compared to 2003, domestic treaty premiums increased significantly in the speciaity casualty classes of medical
malpractice and accident and health and in the other liability line, offset by significant decreases in the auto liability, property
and surety lines. International treaty premiums increased significantly in the property, auto liability, credit and ocean marine
lines. Facultative premiums, in 2004 compared to 2003, increased principally in the other liability and accident and health
lines, offset, in part, by decreases in the medical malpractice line. (See Management’s Discussion.)

(2) In 2003 compared to 2002, domestic treaty premiums increased significantly in D&O and E&O, which are included in other
liability, medical malpractice, property and ocean marine and aviation lines. International treaty premiums increased
significantly in property, D&O and E&O, which are included in other liability, and auto liability lines. Facultative premiums,
in 2003 compared to 2002, increased principally in other liability, auto liability and property lines. (See Management’s
Discussion.)

Treaty Reinsurance

Treaty reinsurance accounted for approximately $3,837.1 million of gross premiums written and
$3,613.9 million of net premiums written in 2004, approximately 73% of which resulted from casualty
lines treaties, with the remainder from property lines treaties. Approximately 70% of treaty gross
premiums written in 2004 represented treaty reinsurance written on a pro rata basis and the balance
represented treaty reinsurance written on an excess-of-loss basis. Approximately 12% of treaty gross
premiums written in 2004 were attributable to other subsidiaries of AIG and were primarily written on
a pro rata basis. (See Relationship with the AIG Group.) The majority of TRH’s non-AIG Group treaty
premiums were also written on a pro rata basis. As pro rata business is a proportional sharing of
premiums and losses between ceding company and reinsurer, generally, the underwriting results of such
business more closely reflect the underwriting results of the business ceded than do the results of excess-
of-loss business.

TRH’s treaty business consists primarily of business within the other liability (including D&O and
E&O), auto liability (including non-standard risks), medical malpractice, ocean marine and aviation,
surety and credit, accident and health, fire, allied, homeowners multiple peril and auto physical damage
lines. A significant portion of TRH’s business within these lines (primarily other liability, medical
malpractice and accident and health) is derived from certain more complex risks.

TRH’s treaty underwriting process emphasizes a team approach among TRH’ underwriters,
actuaries and claims staff, as appropriate. Treaties are reviewed for compliance with TRH’s
underwriting guidelines and objectives and most treaties are evaluated in part based upon actuarial
analyses conducted by TRH. The generic actuarial models used in such analyses are tailored in each
case to the exposures and experience underlying the specific treaty and the loss experience for the risks
covered thereunder. TRH also frequently conducts underwriting and claims audits at the offices of a
prospective ceding company before entering into major treaties, because reinsurers, including TRH, do
not separately evaluate each of the individual risks assumed under their treaties and, consequently, are
largely dependent on the original underwriting decisions made by the ceding company. Such
dependence subjects TRH, and reinsurers in general, to the possibility that the ceding companies have
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not adequately evaluated the risks to be reinsured and, therefore, that the premiums ceded in
connection therewith may not adequately compensate the reinsurer for the risk assumed.

TRH offers brokers full service with large capacity for both casualty and property risks. For non-
AIG Group business, TRH generally seeks to lead treaty arrangements. The lead reinsurer on a treaty
generally accepts one of the largest percentage shares of the treaty and represents the other
participating reinsurers in negotiating price, terms and conditions. TRH believes that this strategy has
enabled it to influence more effectively the terms and conditions of the treaties in which it has
participated. Except where insurance business written by AIG subsidiaries is, by prearrangement with
TRH, almost entirely reinsured by TRH, TRH has generally not set terms and conditions as lead
underwriter with respect to treaty reinsurance purchased by other subsidiaries of AIG, although it may
do so in the future. When TRH does not lead the treaty, it may still suggest changes to any aspect of the
treaty. In either case, TRH may reject any treaty business offered to it by such AIG subsidiaries or
others based upon its assessment of all relevant factors. Such factors include type and level of risk
assumed, actuarial and underwriting judgment with respect to rate adequacy, various treaty terms, prior
and anticipated loss experience (including exposure to natural and man-made catastrophes) on the
treaty, prior business experience with the ceding company, overall financial position, operating results
and A.M. Best Company (Best), Standard & Poor’s (S&P) and Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s)
ratings of the ceding company and social, legal, regulatory, environmental and general economic
conditions affecting the risks assumed or the ceding company.

TRH currently has approximately 3,980 treaties in effect for the current underwriting year. In 2004,
no single treaty exceeded 3% of treaty gross premiums written. No ceding company accounted for more
than 3% of total treaty gross premiums written in 2004 except for other subsidiaries of AIG (see
Relationship with the AIG Group), and members of Lloyd’s of London (Lloyd’s) (which accounted for
6% of treaty gross premiums written).

Non-U.S. treaty business accounted for approximately 49% of TRH’s total net premiums written
for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Facultative Reinsurance

During 2004, TRH wrote approximately $304.1 million of gross premiums written and $135.4
million of net premiums written of facultative reinsurance, approximately 54% of which represented
casualty risks with the balance comprising property risks. The majority of facultative net premiums
written in 2004 represented facultative reinsurance written on an excess-of-loss basis. Facultative
coverages are generally offered for most lines of business. However, the great majority of premiums are
within the other liability (including D&O and E&Q), medical malpractice, inland marine and fire lines.
Other underwriting expenses associated with facultative business are generally higher in proportion to
related premiums than those associated with treaty business, reflecting, among other things, the more
labor-intensive nature of underwriting and servicing facultative business. Approximately 58% of
facultative gross premiums written in 2004 were attributable to other subsidiaries of AIG. Except for
such AIG subsidiaries, no single ceding company accounted for more than 4% of total facultative gross
premiums written in 2004. Non-U.S. facultative business accounted for approximately 2% of TRH’s
total net premiums written for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Retention Levels and Retrocession Arrangements

TRH enters into retrocession arrangements for many of the same reasons primary insurers seek
reinsurance, including reducing the effect of individual or aggregate losses and increasing gross
premium writings and risk capacity without requiring additional capital.
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Under TRH’s underwriting guidelines and retrocession arrangements in effect at the end of 2004,
generally the maximum net amounts retained and the maximum gross capacities on a per program basis
for treaty business and per risk basis for facultative business are set forth in the table below.

Maximum Maximum
Net Gross
Retention  Capacity
(in millions)

Property:
Treaty
Catastrophe excess-of-loss .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiii it $100 $100
OtheT . e 30 30
Facultative ...... ..o e 10 50
Casualty:
Treaty
Marine and aviation........... ..ottt 15 35
Other . e 15 20
Facultative ... ..ot e e e 10 10

TRH is exposed to multiple insured losses arising out of a single occurrence (e.g., natural or man-
made catastrophe) that have the potential to accumulate to material amounts and affect multiple
risks/programs and classes of business. TRH uses modeling techniques to manage certain such risks to
acceptable limits, although current techniques used to estimate the exposure may not accurately predict
the probability of such an event nor the extent of resulting losses. In addition, TRH may purchase
retrocession protection designed to limit the amount of losses that it may incur. For 2005, TRH has
purchased property catastrophe excess-of-loss reinsurance protection that management deems prudent
and cost effective. TRH estimates that its probable maximum gross loss (gross PML) from any single
event in any one geographic zone would approximate $586 million (before TRH’s property catastrophe
excess-of-loss reinsurance protection). TRH defines gross PML as its anticipated maximum loss (taking
into account contract limits), before its retrocession recoveries, caused by a single catastrophic event
affecting a broad contiguous area with an expected likelihood of occurrence cf once in every 250 years.
Based upon the above gross PML estimate, TRH would record net loss and loss adjustment expenses
incurred of approximately $361 million before tax benefit, or $235 million, net of tax, in such an event,
subject to other terms and conditions of the retrocessional coverages purchased by TRH. There can be
no assurance that TRH will not experience losses from one or more catastrophic events that exceed,
perhaps by a material amount, such gross and net amounts. Terms of the catastrophe reinsurance
protections often require the purchaser to make additional payments to the reinsurer which may
increase the net cost of such event to TRH. Certain of such payments represent a contractually
stipulated reinstatement premium which generally restores coverage utilized to respond to the initial
catastrophic loss for the remainder of the original coverage period.

“Certified” terrorism risk, as defined in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (TRIA), which was
signed into law in 2002 and presently set to expire at the end of 2005, has generally been limited or
excluded from commercial lines business assumed and reinsurance coverages purchased (including
property catastrophe coverages) in 2004 and TRH anticipates that it will generally continue this practice
in 2005. “Non-certified” terrorism risk, which relates to acts of terrorism not defined under TRIA (such
as acts committed by domestic parties), is generally not excluded from commercial lines coverages
assumed and reinsurance coverages purchased by TRH. In addition, TRH offers terrorism-specific
(certified and non-certified) coverages to ceding companies on a limited basis. TRH does not purchase
reinsurance protection for such coverages.

Average gross lines and net retentions on risks assumed historically have been smaller than the
maximums permissible under the underwriting guidelines. Underwriting guidelines, including gross lines
and net retention levels, may be changed and limited exceptions are made by TRH from time to time.

Retrocession arrangements do not relieve TRH from its obligations to the insurers and reinsurers
from whom it assumes business. The failure of retrocessionnaires to honor their obligations could result
in losses to TRH. TRH holds substantial amounts of funds and letters of credit to collateralize
reinsurance recoverables. Such funds and letters of credit can be drawn on for amounts remaining
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unpaid beyond contract terms. In addition, an allowance has been established for estimated
unrecoverable amounts.

As of December 31, 2004, TRH had in place approximately 140 active retrocessional arrangements
for current and prior underwriting years with 369 retrocessionnaires, and reinsurance recoverable on
paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses totaled $976.7 million, including $272.4 million
recoverable from affiliates. No unsecured recoverables from a single retrocessionnaire, other than
amounts due from affiliates, are considered material to the financial position of TRH. (See Note 14 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Marketing

TRH provides property and casualty reinsurance capacity through brokers as well as directly to
insurance and reinsurance companies in both the domestic and international markets. TRH believes its
worldwide network of offices and its relationship with the AIG Group help position TRH to take
advantage of market opportunities. '

Business assumed from other subsidiaries of AIG is generally obtained directly from the ceding
company. No ceding company, other than such AIG subsidiaries and, in 2001 and 2000 only, Lloyd’s
(which accounted for 12% and 10% of TRH’s 2001 and 2000 consolidated revenues, respectively), has
accounted for 10% or more of TRH'’s consolidated revenues in any of the last five years. A portion of
the business assumed from Lloyd’s was obtained through brokers controlled by Aon Corporation (Aon)
and Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc. (Marsh), which are further discussed below.

Non-AIG Group treaty business is produced primarily through brokers, while non-AIG Group
facultative business is produced both directly and through brokers. In 2004, approximately 82% of
TRH’s non-AIG Group business was written through brokers and the balance was written directly. Also
in 2004, companies controlled by Aon and Marsh, TRH’s largest brokerage sources of non-AIG Group
business, accounted for 17% and 14%, respectively, of TRH’s consolidated revenues. In addition, Aon
and Marsh accounted for 17% and 13%, respectively, of gross premiums written in 2004. TRH’s largest
10 brokers accounted for non-AIG Group business aggregating approximately 53% of gross premiums
written. Brokerage fees generally are paid by reinsurers. TRH believes that its emphasis on seeking the
lead position in non-AIG Group reinsurance treaties in which it participates is beneficial in obtaining
business. Brokers do not have the authority to bind TRH with respect to reinsurance agreements, nor
does TRH commit in advance to accept any portion of the business that brokers submit to it.

Effective January 1, 1995, TRC and Putnam entered into a quota share reinsurance agreement
whereby TRC ceded 5% of its total reinsurance liabilities, net of retrocessions, to Putnam. Thereafter,
TRC cedes 5% of its assumed reinsurance, net of other retrocessions, to Putnam pursuant to this quota
share reinsurance agreement. Presently all of Putnam’s business is assumed from TRC pursuant to this
quota share reinsurance agreement. This agreement was entered into for operational reasons and had
no impact on TRH’ financial position or results of operations.

Claims

Claims are managed by TRH’s professional claims staff whose responsibilities include the review of
initial loss reports, creation of claim files, determination of whether further investigation is required,
establishment and adjustment of case reserves and payment of claims. In addition to claims assessment,
processing and payment, the claims staff conducts comprehensive claims audits of both specific claims
and overall claims procedures at the offices of selected ceding companies, which TRH believes benefit
all parties to the reinsurance arrangement. Claims audits are conducted in the ordinary course of
business. In certain instances, a claims audit may be performed prior to assuming reinsurance business.

Reserves for Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Significant periods of time may elapse between the occurrence of an insured loss, the reporting of
the loss to the ceding company and the reinsurer, and the ceding company’s payment of that loss and
subsequent payments to the ceding company by the reinsurer. To recognize liabilities for unpaid losses

8

J—*



and loss adjustment expenses (LAE), insurers and reinsurers establish reserves, which are balance sheet
liabilities representing estimates of future amounts needed to pay claims and related expenses with
respect to insured events which have occurred on or before the balance sheet date, including events
which have not been reported to the ceding company.

Upon receipt of a notice of claim from the ceding company, TRH establishes its own case reserve
for the estimated amount of the ultimate settlement, if any. Case reserves usually are based upon the
amount of reserves recommended by the ceding company and may be supplemented by additional
amounts as deemed necessary. In certain instances, TRH establishes case reserves even when the ceding
company does not report any liability to the reinsurer.

TRH also establishes reserves to provide for the estimated expenses of settling claims, including
legal and other fees, and the general expenses of administering the claims adjustment process (i.e.,
LAE), and the losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred but not reported (IBNR). TRH calculates
LAE and IBNR reserves by using generally accepted actuarial reserving techniques to project the
ultimate liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses. Such reserves are periodically revised by TRH
to adjust for changes in the expected loss development pattern over time. TRH has an in-house
actuarial staff which periodically reviews its unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses net of related
recoverables (loss reserves), and therefore does not retain any outside actuarial firm to review its loss
reserves on an ongoing basis.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of related reinsurance recoverable, are charged to income
as incurred. Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses represent the accumulation of case reserves
and IBNR. Provisions for inflation and social inflation (e.g., awards by judges and juries which
progressively increase in size at a rate exceeding that of general inflation) are implicitly considered in
the overall reserve setting process as an element of the numerous judgments which are made as to
expected trends in average claim severity. Legislative changes may also affect TRH’s liabilities, and
evaluation of the impact of such changes is made in the reserve setting process.

The methods of determining estimates for reported and unreported losses and establishing resulting
reserves and related reinsurance recoverable are continually reviewed and updated, and adjustments
resulting therefrom are reflected in income currently. The process relies upon the basic assumption that
past experience, adjusted for the effect of current developments and likely trends, is an appropriate
basis for predicting future events. However, estimation of loss reserves is a difficult process, especially in
view of changes in the legal and tort environment which impact the development of loss reserves, and
therefore quantitative techniques frequently have to be supplemented by subjective considerations and
managerial judgment. In addition, trends that have affected development of liabilities in the past may
not necessarily occur or affect liability development to the same degree in the future.

While the reserving process is difficult and subjective for the ceding companies, the inherent
uncertainties of estimating such reserves are even greater for the reinsurer, due primarily to the longer
term nature of most reinsurance business, the diversity of development patterns among different types
of reinsurance treaties or facultative contracts, the necessary reliance on the ceding companies for
information regarding reported claims and differing reserving practices among ceding companies, which
are subject to change without notice. TRH writes a significant amount of non-proportional assumed
casualty reinsurance as well as proportional assumed reinsurance of excess casualty business for classes
such as medical malpractice and D&O, which can exhibit greater volatility over time than most other
classes due to their low frequency, high severity nature, and loss cost trends that are more difficult to
predict.

Included in TRH’s reserves are amounts related to environmental impairment and asbestos-related
ilinesses. The majority of TRH’s environmental and asbestos-related liabilities arise from contracts
entered into after 1985 and underwritten specifically as environmental or asbestos-related coverages
rather than as standard general liability coverages where the environmental or asbestos-related
liabilities were neither clearly defined nor specifically excluded. Significant uncertainty exists as to the
ultimate settlement of these liabilities since, among other things, there are inconsistent court resolutions
and judicial interpretations with respect to underlying policy intent and coverage and uncertainties as to
the allocation of responsibility for resultant damages. Additionally, loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves, net of related reinsurance recoverables, include amounts resulting from the September 11,
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2001 terrorist attack which are principally related to property (including business interruption), other
liability, workers’ compensation and aviation coverages. These amounts are subject to significant
uncertainty due to a variety of issues such as coverage disputes, the assignment of liability and a
potentially long latency period for claims due to respiratory disorders and stress.

During the loss settlement period, which can be many years in duration, additional facts regarding
individual claims and trends usually become known. As these become apparent, it usually becomes
necessary to refine and adjust the reserves upward or downward and even then the ultimate net liability
may be materially different from the revised estimates which are reflected in TRH’ consolidated
financial statements, and such differences may have a material effect on net income. (See Management’s
Discussion and Note 2(f) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.)

The “Analysis of Consolidated Net Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve Development”
which follows presents the development of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of related
reinsurance recoverable, for calendar years 1994 through 2004. The upper half of the table shows the
cumulative amounts paid during successive years related to the opening reserve. For example, with
respect to the net loss and loss adjustment expense reserve of $1,985.8 million as of December 31, 1995,
by the end of 2004 (nine years later) $1,549.5 million had actually been paid in settlement of those loss
reserves. In addition, as reflected in the lower section of the table, the original loss reserve of $1,985.8
million was reestimated to be $1,771.4 million at December 31, 2004. This change from the original
estimate would normally result from a combination of a number of factors, including losses being settled
for different amounts than originally estimated. The original estimates will also be increased or
decreased as more information becomes known about the individual claims and overall claim frequency
and severity patterns. The net deficiency or redundancy depicted in the table, for any particular
calendar year, shows the aggregate change in estimates over the period of years subsequent to the
calendar year reflected at the top of the respective columns. For example, the net redundancy of $233.8
million at December 31, 2004 related to December 31, 1996 loss reserves of $2,383.5 million, represents
the cumulative amount by which loss reserves as of year-end 1996 have developed favorably from 1997
through 2004.

Each amount other than the original reserves in the following table includes the effects of all
changes in amounts for prior periods. For example, if a loss settled in 1997 for $150,000 was first
reserved in 1994 at $100,000 and remained unchanged until settlement, the $50,000 deficiency (actual
loss minus original estimate) would be included in the cumulative net redundancy (deficiency) in each of
the years in the period 1994 through 1996 shown in the following table. Conditions and trends that have
affected development of liability in the past may not necessarily occur in the future. Accordingly, it may
not be appropriate to extrapolate future development based on this table.
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ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED NET LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE
RESERVE DEVELOPMENT(1)(2)(3)
1994 1995 1996 1997 19 19 200 200 2002 2003 2004
(in thousands)

Net unpaid losses and
loss adjustment
expenses, as of

December 31:(4) ..... $1,727,380 $1,985,786 $2,383,528 $2,522,728 $2,656,103 $2,762,162 $ 2,614,917 $ 2,908,887 $3,257,906 $3,956,420 $4,980,609

Paid (cumulative) as of:

One year later .. ... 338947 396,647 549,635 543,539 702,603 953,708 892,752 1,033,574 1,057,314 1,090,058

Two years later .... 594,508 685,485 850,260 1,003,059 1,224,593 1,570,329 1,573,227 1,759,047 1,806,388

Three years later... 797,841 855,809 1,165,437 1,339,141 1,620,068 2,050,795 2,071,480 2,332,901

Four years later.... 899,232 1,058296 1383421 1,604,714 1982347 2,408,700 2,499,596

Five years later .... 1,033,595 1,194,900 1,557,832 1,835,665 2,213,639 2,722,971

Six years later ..... 1,128,240 1,314,354 1,711,075 1,972,791 2,417,530

Seven years later... 1,215,442 1419415 1,800,510 2,079,993
Eight years later ... 1,296,580 1,496,704 1,866,382
Nine years later.... 1,362,571 1,549,543

Ten years later..... 1,411,028
Net liability reestimated
as of:(4)
End of year ....... 1,727,380 1,985,786 2,383,528 2,522,728 2,656,103 2,762,162 2,614,917 2,908,887 3,257906 3,956,420 4,980,609
One year later ..... 1,723,926 1,978,062 2,368,965 2,463,239 2,588,626 2,776,519 2,650,589 3,248,013 3,580,493 4,273,802
Two years later .... 1,729,924 1,961,041 2289951 2369885 2496422 2,802,612 3088303 3,561,876 4,112,290

Three years later... 1,718,844 1,885,897 2,171,127 27265351 2,508,278 3,158,790 3,392,021 4,176,419
Four years later.... 1,657,393 1,784,560 2,081,811 2235533 2,764,144 3379226 3,872,054

Five years later .... 1,580,256 1,725,009 2,018,452 2,342,492 2,886,020 3,725,975

Six years later ..... 1,538,160 1,671,620 2,074,034 2,396,192 3,073,754

Seven years later... 1,500,219 1,699,810 2,106,508 2,483,736

Eight years later ... 1,523,643 1,735987 2,149,775

Nine years later.... 1,560,903 1,771,370

Ten years later..... 1,592,265

Net redundancy
(deficiency) as of :
December 31, 2004 ...$ 135115 $ 214,416 $ 233,753 § 38992 $ (417,651)$ (963,813)$(1,257,137) $(1,267,532) $ (854,384) § (317,382)

(1) This table excludes data related to TRZ, a non-U.S. subsidiary acquired in the third quarter of 1996, for 1995 and
1994, as such data is not available.

(2) This table is on a calendar year basis and does not present accident or underwriting year data.

(3) Data have been affected by transactions between TRH and the AIG Group. (See Relationship with the AIG Group
and Notes 12 and 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

(4) Represents gross liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses net of related reinsurance recoverable.
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ANALYSIS OF NET UNPAID LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

End of year:
Gross liability. . ........
Related reinsurance

recoverable

Net liability

One year later:

Gross reestimated Hability ...

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Two years later:

Gross reestimated liability ... .

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Three years later:

Gross reestimated liability .. ..

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Four years later:

Gross reestimated liability .. ..

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Five years later:

Gross reestimated liability ... .

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Six years later:

Gross reestimated liability . . ..

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Seven years later:

Gross reestimated liability .. ..

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Eight years later:

Gross reestimated liability .. ..

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Nine years later:

Gross reestimated liability . ...

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Ten years later:

Gross reestimated liability . . ..

Reestimated related
reinsurance recoverable

Net reestimated liability .

Gross redundancy (deficiency)
of December 31, 2004.....

(1) This table excludes data related to TRZ for 1995 and 1994.

as

AND NET REESTIMATED LIABILITY(1)

$1,729,924 $1,961,041 $2,289,951 $2,369,885 $2,496,422 $ 2,802,612 § 3,088,303 $ 3,561,876 $ 4,112,290

$2,110,823 $2,246,095 $2,568,103 $2,701,351 $3,039,473 $ 3,788,866 $ 3,970,012 $ 5,188,506
391,979 360,198 396,976 436,000 531,195 630,076 577,991 1,012,087
$1,718,844 $1,885,897 $2,171,127 $2,265,351 $2,508,278 § 3,158,790 $ 3.392,021 § 4,176,419
$2,034,135 $2,166,178 $2,497,563 $2,649,925 $3,298,599 $ 4,098,524 § 4,492,711
376,742 381,618 415752 414,392 534,455 719,298 620,657
$1,657,393 $1,784,560 $2,081,811 $2,235,533 $2,764,144 § 3,379,226 § 3,872,054

$1,978,270 $2,120,568 $2,418,533 $2,762,480 $3,502,673 $ 4,479,946

398,014 395559 400,081 419,988 616,653 753,971
$1,580,256 $1,725,009 $2,018,452 $2,342,492 $2,886,020 $ 3,725,975

$1,946,734 $2,056,681 $2,482,084 $2,887,038 $3,713,151

408,574 385,061 408,050 490,846 639,397
$1,538,160 31,671,620 $2,074,034 $2,396,192 $3,073,754

$1,899,899 $2,100,259 $2,560,633 $2,997,036

399,680 400,449 454,125 513,300
$1,500,219 $1,699,810 $2,106,508 $2,483,736

$1,936,765 $2,162,015 $2,627,505

413,122 426,028 477,730
$1,523,643 §1,735,987 $2,149,775

$1,993,454 $2,221,289

432,551 449,919
$1,560,903 $1,771,370
$2,048,457

456,192
$1,592,265

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(in thousands)

$2,167,316 $2,388,155 $2,733,055 $2,918,782 $3,116,038 § 3,304,931 § 3,077,162 § 3,747,583 $ 4,032,584 $4,805,498 $5,941,464

439,936 402,369 349,527 396,054 459935 = 542,769 462,245 838,696 774,678 849,078 960,855
$1,727,380 $1,985,786 $2,383,528 $2,522,728 $2,656,103 § 2,762,162 § 2,614,917 §$ 2,908,887 $ 3,257,906 $3,956,420 $4,980,609

. $2,138,947 $2,326,770 $2,755,288 $2,864,610 $3,083,643 $ 3,369,520 § 3,126,518 § 4,136,126 § 4,465,908 $5,117,490

415,021 348,708 386,323 401,371 495,017 593,001 475,929 888,113 885,415 843,688
$1,723,926 $1,978,062 $2,368,965 $2,463,239 $2,588,626 $ 2,776,519 § 2,650,589 § 3,248,013 $ 3,580,493 $4,273,802
$2,091,724 $2,340,639 $2,664.858 $2,776,598 $3,033,092 § 3,426,471 § 3,565,853 $ 4,556,676 $ 5,003,598

361,800 379,598 374907 406,713 536,670 623,859 477,550 994,800 891,308

$ 118,859 § 166,866 $ 105550 $ (78,254)$ (597,113)$(1,175,015) $(1,415,549) $(1,440,923) § (971,014) $ (311,992)
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The trend depicted in the latest development year in the reestimated net liability portion of the
“Analysis of Consolidated Net Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve Development” table and in
the “Analysis of Net Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses and Net Reestimated Liability”
table reflects net adverse development. Net adverse development of $317.4 million was recorded in 2004
on losses occurring in prior years. {See Management’s Discussion.)

In general, the deficiencies shown in the table for years 1998 through 2003 developed principally in
2002 through 2004 and resulted largely from losses occurring between 1998 and 2001 in certain casualty
lines. Such adverse development involved an unexpected increase in the frequency and severity of large
claims reported in late 2002 through 2004, as was common in the industry, related to non-proportional
assumed casualty reinsurance as well as proportional assumed reinsurance of excess casualty business
for such volatile classes as medical malpractice and D&O. (See Management’s Discussion.) In addition,
the majority of the redundancies shown in the table in years prior to 1998 result from favorable
development of reserves in the other liability line for losses occurring from 1986 through 1994, partially
offset by continued adverse development of reserves in the other liability line for losses occurring prior
to 1984. Adverse development of losses occurring in the early 1980s was common throughout the
industry and was caused by a number of industry and external factors which combined to drive loss
frequency and severity to unexpectedly high levels.

The length of time needed for reserves to be ultimately paid has generally been decreasing over the
past ten years due, in large part, to a shift in the business mix towards lines with shorter loss payment
patterns, and the higher incidence (compared to earlier years) of catastrophe losses paid in more recent
years.

The following table presents a reconciliation of beginning and ending net unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expense reserve balances for the years indicated. For TRH’s domestic subsidiaries (TRC and
Putnam), there is no difference in reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses net of reinsurance
recoverable on unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses whether determined in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or statutory accounting
principles.

RECONCILIATION OF RESERVE
FOR NET UNPAID LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Reserve for net unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses at
beginning of vear(1) ...........coiiiiiiiii $3,956,420 $3,257,906 $2,908,887

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred in respect
of losses occurring in:

CUITENE YEAT . o\t v ittt e e neennenes 2,437,178 1,910,860 1,457,226
Prior years. . ... ..o e 317,382 322,587 339,126
Total .o e e 2,754,560 2,233,447 1,796,352

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses paid in respect of
losses occurring in:

CUITENT YEAT . ..ttt it 640,313 477,619 413,759

50 4100 g =T ) ¢S 1,090,058 1057314 1,033,574

Total .. e 1,730,371 1,534,933 1,447,333
Reserve for net unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses at

end of year(l) .. ...oi i $4,980,609 $3,956,420 $3,257,906

(1) In TRH’ balance sheet and in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 113, unpaid losses
and loss adjustment expenses are presented before deduction of related reinsurance recoverable. (See Notes 2 and 5 of Notes
to Consolidated Financjal Statements.)

In 2004 and 2003, each as compared to the immediate prior year, paid losses have been increasing
largely as a result of an increase in the amount of business TRH has written over the past several years.
(See Management’s Discussion for further analysis of incurred and paid loss activity.)
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Investment Operations

TRH’s investments must comply with the insurance laws of the state of New York, the state of
domicile of TRC and Putnam, and of the other states and jurisdictions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are regulated. These laws prescribe the kind, quality and concentration of investments
which may be made by insurance companies. In general, these laws permit investments, within specified
limits and subject to certain qualifications, in federal, state and municipal obligations, corporate fixed
maturities, preferred and common stocks, real estate mortgages and real estate. The Finance Committee
of the Company’s Board of Directors and senior management oversee investments, establish TRH’s
investment strategy and implement investment decisions with the assistance of certain subsidiaries of
AIG, which act as financial advisors and managers of TRH’s investment portfolio and, in connection
therewith, make the selection of particular investments. Other than as set forth above, there are no
guidelines or policies with respect to the specific composition of TRH’s overall investment portfolio or
the composition of its fixed maturity portfolio by rating or maturity. A significant portion of TRH’s
domestic investments are in tax-exempt fixed maturities.

TRH’s current investment strategy seeks to maximize after-tax income through a high quality
diversified taxable fixed maturity and tax-exempt municipal fixed maturity portfolio, while maintaining
an adequate level of liquidityy TRH adjusts its mix of taxable and tax-exempt investments, as
appropriate, generally as a result of strategic investment and tax planning considerations. Tax-exempt
fixed maturities carry lower pre-tax yields than taxable fixed maturities that are comparable in risk and
term to maturity due to their tax-advantaged status. (See Management’s Discussion.) The equity
portfolio is structured to achieve capital appreciation primarily through investment in quality growth
companies. The great majority of other invested assets represent investments in limited partnerships
and the remainder, a limited duration bond fund managed by an AIG subsidiary.

TRH engages in securities lending transactions whereby certain securities (i.e., fixed maturities and
common stocks available for sale) from its portfolio are loaned to third parties. In these transactions,
initial collateral, principally cash, is received by TRH in an amount exceeding the market value of the
loaned security. Such funds are held in a pooled account of the lending agent in these transactions (an
AIG subsidiary) and are carried as an investment on the balance sheet (at cost, which approximates
market value). A liability is recorded in an amount equal to the collateral received to recognize TRH’s
obligation to return such funds when the related loaned securities are returned. The market value of the
loaned securities is monitored on a daily basis with additional collateral obtained or refunded as such
value fluctuates. Fees received net of fees paid related to these transactions are recorded in net
investment income.

The following table reflects investment results for TRH for each of the five years in the period
ended December 31, 2004.

INVESTMENT RESULTS

Pre-Tax
Pre-Tax Net  Pre-Tax Realized
Average Investment  Effective Net Capital
Years Ended December 31, Investments(1) Income(2) Yield(3) Gains (Losses)
(dollars in thousands)
2004 .. e $7,566,066 $306,786 41%  $22,181
2003 . e 6,211,294 270,972 44 9,942
200 e e e 5,278,276 252,026 4.8 (5,951)
2001 ... e e e 4,686,234 240,083 5.1 (240)
2000 . e 4,355,516 234,485 5.4 33,098

(1) Average of the beginning and ending carrying values of investments and cash for the year, excluding non-interest bearing
cash. Fixed maturities available for sale, common stocks, nonredeemable preferred stocks and other invested assets are
carried at market value. Other fixed maturities are carried at amortized cost and the short-term investment of funds received
under securities loan agreements is carried at cost.

(2) After investment expenses, excluding realized net capital gains (losses).

(3) Pre-tax net investment income for the year divided by average investments for the same year.
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The following table summarizes the investments of TRH (on the basis of carrying value) as of
December 31, 2004:
Breakdown of
Investments
December 31, 2004
Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Fixed maturities:
Held to maturity (at amortized cost):

Domestic and foreign municipal..........ccooi i $1,091,464 13.4%
Available for sale (at market value):
COTPOTALE . ..o ettt e 1,512,242 18.6
U.S. Government and government agencies ...................covvinnn. 250,401 3.1
Foreign government..............ouiiiiniiiiiiininiiieiinenaeniaenan. 186,722 23
Domestic and foreign municipal................ ... o oo 3374357 414
5,323,722 654
Total fixed maturities .........cviirtiit it e i 6,415,186 78.8
Equities:
COmMIMON StOCKS v\ttt et e e s 614,252 7.6
Nonredeemable preferred stocks............co i 17,948 0.2
Total equUIties ...ttt e e 632,200 7.8
Other INVEStEd ASSELS .\ttt ittt ettt et et e e 178,499 2.2
Short-term investment of funds received under securities loan agreements ..... 875,081 10.7
Y 0T0) £ 153 4 W 14 A0 1 101 o1 3 A 42 602 0.5
Total InVeStMENTS . ..ot it e e e e $8,143,568  100.0%

The carrying value of fixed maturities and equities available for sale are subject to significant
volatility from changes in their market values. (See Management’s Discussion.)

As of December 31, 2004, the market value of the total investment portfolio was $8,172.9 million.

The following table indicates the composition of the fixed maturity portfolio of TRH by rating as of
December 31, 2004:

Held to Available

Breakdown of Fixed Maturity Portfolio by Rating Maturity For Sale Total
AAA . e e 12.2% 45.6% 57.8%
A B e 3.6 314 350
A e 1.2 5.5 6.7
Baa .. e e — 0.3 0.3
Not rated ...ovviii e e et eeeeans = 0.2 0.2
Total oo e 17.0% 83.0% 100.0%

At December 31, 2004, TRH had no real estate or derivative instruments. (See Note 3 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In addition, TRH’s operations are exposed to market risk which could result in the loss of fair
market value resulting from adverse fluctuations in interest rates, equity prices and foreign currency
exchange rates. TRH has performed Value at Risk (VaR) analyses to estimate the maximum potential
loss of fair value that could occur over a period of one month at a confidence level of 95%. (See
Management’s Discussion.)

Competition

The reinsurance business is a mature, highly competitive industry in virtually all lines of business.
After many years of deteriorating prices and contract terms, rate increases were achieved in many lines
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in late 2000, and this trend continued in 2001 at a much greater pace following the September 11, 2001
terrorist attack.

Market conditions for reinsurers generally continued to improve throughout 2002 and 2003 as rates
increased and terms and conditions generally became more restrictive. Attracted by the improved
market conditions, additional capital entered the market starting in late 2001 through the formation of
new companies, principally in Bermuda, and the addition of capital to certain existing companies. The
newer reinsurance capacity spurred additional competition, most significantly in shorter tail, catastrophe
related lines, both domestically and internationally.

In 2004, property lines experienced meaningful rate decreases on both primary and reinsurance
contracts, but remained generally favorable with respect to catastrophe business. Despite the prevalence
of modest rate reductions on primary business, casualty rates generally remained firm on the treaty
reinsurance side. Rates, terms and conditions were generally stronger for longer tail casualty lines due,
in part, to elevated industry-wide loss activity in recent years (that also materially affected TRH)
experienced in certain of those lines related principally to losses occurring in 1997 through 2001.
Overall, market conditions in the reinsurance sector for 2004 generally remained favorable for most
classes. (See Management’s Discussion.)

The impact of market improvements in recent years and the generally favorable market conditions
in 2004 do not necessarily translate into ultimate pricing adequacy. In addition, there is no guarantee
that these conditions will remain in effect as TRH cannot predict, with any reasonable certainty, future
market conditions.

TRH faces competition from new market entrants and from market participants that devote
increasing amounts of capital to the types of business written by TRH. Over the past few years,
generally increased market capacity, domestic and international merger and acquisition activity, and
Lloyd’s, have added to competitive pressures. The ultimate impact on the market of these events is
uncertain.

Competition in the types of reinsurance in which TRH is engaged is based on many factors,
including the perceived overall financial strength of the reinsurer, Best, S&P and Moody’s ratings, the
states or other jurisdictions where the reinsurer is licensed, accredited, authorized or can serve as a
reinsurer, premiums charged, other terms and conditions of the reinsurance offered, services offered,
speed of claims payment and reputation and experience in the lines of business underwritten.

TRH competes in the United States and international reinsurance markets with numerous major
international reinsurance companies and numerous domestic reinsurance companies, some of which
have greater financial and other resources than TRH. While TRC and Putnam, on a combined basis,
would rank 2nd, on the basis of statutory net premiums written for the year ended December 31, 2004,
based on the RAA’s survey as of that date, they are a less significant reinsurer in international
reinsurance markets. TRH’s competitors include independent reinsurance companies, subsidiaries or
affiliates of established worldwide insurance companies, reinsurance departments of certain primary
insurance companies and domestic and European underwriting syndicates. Many of these competitors
have been operating for substantially longer than TRH and have established long-term and continuing
business relationships throughout the industry, which can be a significant competitive advantage.
Although most reinsurance companies operate in the broker market, most of TRH’s largest competitors
also work directly with ceding companies, competing with brokers. According to the RAA, there were
26 domestic reinsurers for which results were reported in their quarterly survey as of December 31,
2004.

Employees

At December 31, 2004, TRH had approximately 465 employees. Approximately 220 employees
were located in the New York headquarters; 45 employees were located in Chicago and Miami (serving
Latin America and the Caribbean) and 200 employees were located in other international offices.
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Regulation

The rates and contract terms of reinsurance agreements are generally not subject to regulation by
any governmental authority. This contrasts with primary insurance agreements, the rates and policy
terms of which are generally closely regulated by state insurance departments. As a practical matter,
however, the rates charged by primary insurers and the policy terms of primary insurance agreements
may affect the rates charged and the policy terms associated with reinsurance agreements.

The Company, TRC, TRZ and Putnam are subject to the insurance statutes, including insurance
holding company statutes, of various states and jurisdictions. The insurance holding company laws and
regulations vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, but generally require domestic insurance holding
companies and insurers and reinsurers that are subsidiaries of insurance holding companies to register
with the applicable state regulatory authority and to file with that authority certain reports which
provide information concerning their capital structure, ownership, financial condition and general
business operations.

Such holding company laws generally also require prior regulatory agency approval of changes in
direct or indirect control of an insurer or reinsurer and of certain material intercorporate transfers of
assets within the holding company structure. The New York Insurance Law provides that no
corporation or other person, except an authorized insurer, may acquire direct control of TRC or
Putnam, or acquire control of the Company and thus indirect control of TRC and Putnam, unless such
corporation or person has obtained the prior approval of the New York Insurance Department for such
acquisition. For the purposes of the New York Insurance Law, any investor acquiring ten percent or
more of the Common Stock of the Company would be presumed to be acquiring “control” of the
Company and its subsidiaries, unless the New York Insurance Department determines upon application
that such investor would not control the Company. An investor who would be deemed to be acquiring
control of the Company would be required to obtain the approval of the New York Insurance
Department prior to such acquisition. In addition, such investor would become subject to various
ongoing reporting requirements in New York and in certain other states.

TRC, TRZ and Putnam, in common with other reinsurers, are subject to regulation and supervision
by the states and by other jurisdictions in which they do business. Within the United States, the method
of such regulation varies but generally has its source in statutes that delegate regulatory and supervisory
powers to an insurance official. The regulation and supervision relate primarily to the standards of
solvency that must be met and maintained, including risk-based capital measurements, the licensing of
reinsurance, the nature of and limitations on investments, restrictions on the size of risks which may be
insured under a single contract, deposits of securities for the benefit of ceding companies, methods of
accounting, periodic audits of the affairs and financial reports of insurance companies, the form and
content of reports of financial condition required to be filed, and reserves for unearned premiums,
losses and other purposes. As required by the state of New York, TRC and Putnam adopted the
Caodification of Statutory Accounting Principles (Codification) as of January 1, 2001 as primary guidance
on statutory accounting. In general, such regulation is for the protection of the ceding companies and,
ultimately, their policyholders rather than security holders.

Risk Based Capital (RBC) is designed to measure the adequacy of an insurer’s statutory surplus in
relation to the risks inherent in its business. Thus, inadequately capitalized insurance companies may be
identified. The RBC formula develops a risk adjusted target level of statutory surplus by applying
certain factors to various asset, premium and reserve items. Higher factors are applied to items deemed
to have more risk by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners and lower factors are
applied to items that are deemed to have less risk. Thus, the target level of statutory surplus varies not
only as a result of the insurer’s size, but also on the risk profile of the insurer’s operations. The RBC
Model Law provides for four incremental levels of regulatory attention for insurers whose surplus is
below the calculated RBC target. These levels of attention range in severity from requiring the insurer
to submit a plan for corrective action to placing the insurer under regulatory control. At December 31,
2004, the statutory surpluses of TRC and Putnam each significantly exceeded the level of surplus
required under RBC requirements for regulatory attention.

Through the “credit for reinsurance” mechanism, TRC and Putnam are indirectly subject to the
effects of regulatory requirements imposed by jurisdictions in which TRC’s and Putnam’s ceding

17




companies are licensed. In general, an insurer which obtains reinsurance from a reinsurer that is
licensed, accredited or authorized by the state in which the insurer files statutory financial statements is
permitted to take a credit on its statutory financial statements in an aggregate amount equal to the
reinsurance recoverable on paid losses and the liabilities for unearned premiums and loss and loss
adjustment expense reserves ceded to the reinsurer, subject to certain limitations where amounts of
reinsurance recoverable on paid losses are more than 90 days overdue. Certain states impose additional
requirements that make it difficult to become so authorized, and certain states do not allow credit for
reinsurance ceded to reinsurers that are not licensed or accredited in that state without additional
provision for security.

In addition to licensing requirements, TRH’s international operations are also regulated in various
jurisdictions with respect to currency, amount and type of security deposits, amount and type of reserves
and amount and type of local investment, and are subject to local economic, political and social
conditions. International operations and assets held abroad may be adversely affected by political and
other developments in foreign countries, including possibilities of tax changes, nationalization and
changes in regulatory policy, as well as by consequences of hostilities and unrest. The risks of such
occurrences and their overall effect upon TRH vary from country to country and cannot easily be
predicted. In addition, TRH’s results of operations and net unrealized currency translation gain or loss
(a component of accumulated other comprehensive income) are subject to volatility as the value of the
foreign currencies fluctuate relative to the U.S. dollar. (See Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.) Regulations governing constitution of technical reserves and remittance balances in some
countries may hinder remittance of profits and repatriation of assets.

Relationship with the AIG Group

AIG

AIG is a holding company which through its subsidiaries is engaged in a broad range of insurance
and insurance-related activities in the United States and abroad. AIG’ primary activities include both
general and life insurance operations. Other significant activities include financial services, and
retirement services and asset management. AIG subsidiaries other than TRH, collectively, are one of
the largest purchasers of reinsurance in the insurance industry based on premiums ceded.

Control of the Company

As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, AIG beneficially owned approximately 60% of the
Company’s outstanding shares. During such years, four of the Company’s nine current directors,
including the Chairman, were active, or in the case of Mr. Matthews retired, executive officers of AIG
and held a number of executive positions with AIG, including the following: Mr. Greenberg was a
Director and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Matthews was an Honorary Director and
Senior Advisor; Mr. Smith was a Director and Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer; and, Mr.
Tizzio was an Honorary Director and Senior Vice Chairman—General Insurance.

AIG Group Reinsurance

AIG offers TRH the opportunity to participate in a significant amount of property and casualty
reinsurance purchased by other subsidiaries of AIG. TRH either accepts or rejects such reinsurance
offered based upon TRH’s assessment of risk selection, pricing, terms and conditions. Except where
insurance business written by AIG subsidiaries is, by prearrangement with TRH, almost entirely
reinsured by TRH, TRH has generally not set terms and conditions as lead underwriter with respect to
the treaty reinsurance purchased by other subsidiaries of AIG; however, TRH may in the future set
terms and conditions with respect to such business as lead underwriter and intends that the terms and
conditions of any such reinsurance will be negotiated on an arm’ length basis. The operating
management of TRH is not employed by the AIG Group, and the Underwriting Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company, which includes directors of the Company who are not employees of
the AIG Group, monitor TRH'’s underwriting policies.

Approximately $639 million (15% ), $633 million (17%) and $395 million (13%) of gross premiums
written by TRH in the years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were attributable to reinsurance
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purchased by other subsidiaries of AIG, for the production of which TRH paid ceding commissions
totaling approximately $122 million, $167 million and $88 million, respectively, in such years. (The
amounts discussed in the preceding sentence include transactions with C.V. Starr & Co., Inc. (Starr) as
described in Transactions with Starr.) The great majority of such gross premiums written were recorded
in the auto liability, property, other liability, ocean marine and aviation and, for 2004 only, medical
malpractice lines. Of the premiums assumed from other subsidiaries of AIG, $306 million, $294 million
and $162 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, represent premiums resulting from certain
insurance business written by other AIG subsidiaries that, by prearrangement with TRH, is almost
entirely reinsured by TRH, for the production of which TRH paid ceding commissions to such AIG
subsidiaries totaling approximately $40 million, $83 million and $31 million, respectively, in such years.
TRH has no goal with respect to the proportion of AIG Group subsidiary versus non-AlG Group
subsidiary business it accepts. TRH’s objective in determining its business mix is to evaluate each
underwriting opportunity individually with a view to maximizing overall underwriting results.

TRH retroceded gross premiums written to other subsidiaries of AIG in the years 2004, 2003 and
2002 of approximately $153 million, $87 million and $91 million, respectively, and received ceding
commissions of approximately $16 million, $10 million and $10 millicn, respectively, for the production
of such business in such years. (See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Transactions with Starr

Starr owned approximately 1.8% of AIG’s outstanding common stock at January 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003. As of such dates, certain directors of TRH, namely, Messrs. Greenberg, Matthews, Orlich, Smith
and Tizzio, were also stockholders, executive officers or directors of Starr.

Certain of Starr’s subsidiaries operate as insurance agencies or brokers for insurance subsidiaries of
AIG and, in such capacity, produce reinsurance business for TRH. TRH paid commissions to Starr
subsidiaries of $12 million, $8 million and $4 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for such
reinsurance purchased by subsidiaries of AIG totaling $56 million, $43 million and $30 million,
respectively, in such years. From these commissions, Starr is required to pay its operating and
acquisition expenses.

Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2004, the office space of TRH’s New York headquarters and its Chicago and
Toronto offices are rented from the AIG Group, which leases it from others. The Miami, Buenos Aires,
Rio de Janeiro, London, Paris, Zurich, Warsaw, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Tokyo and Sydney offices, are
rented from third parties. The lease for the office space occupied by TRHs New York headquarters
expires in 2021.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

TRH, in common with the reinsurance industry in general, is subject to litigation in the normal
course of its business. TRH does not believe that any pending litigation will have a material adverse
effect on its consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The table below sets forth the names, positions and ages of the persons who are the directors and
executive officers of the Company as of March 10, 2005.

Served as
Director or
Name Position Age  Officer Since
Robert F. Orlich........................ President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director 57 1990(1)
Paul A, Bonny ............c.cieinn. Executive Vice President, President
International Operations 48 1994
Steven S. Skalicky ...................... Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer 56 1995
Javier E. Vijil...................oooit Executive Vice President, President
Latin American Division 52 1996
Kenneth Apfel.......................... Senior Vice President and Chief
Actuary 46 2004(2)
Gary A. Schwartz ...................... Senior Vice President and General
Counsel 44 1999(3)
Elizabeth M. Tuck ...................... Secretary 49 1991
MR. Greenberg ........................ Chairman of the Board 79 1986
James Balog ................oiil Director 76 1988
C. Fred Bergsten ....................... Director 63 1998
Tomio Higuchi............ovvviiiiinn, Director 62 2003
John J. Mackowski ..................... Director 79 1990
Edward E. Matthews ................... Director 73 1986
Howard 1. Smith........................ Director 60 1994
Thomas R. Tizzio....................... Director 67 1990(1)

(1) Prior to April 1990, such person was a director or an officer of TRC and Putnam, but not of the Company.

(2) Mr. Apfel was elected Senior Vice President and Chief Actuary of the Company in August 2004.

(3) Mr. Schwartz was elected Senior Vice President and General Counsel of the Company in May 2004, having served as Vice
President and General Counsel before that time.

Except as noted, each of the executive officers has, for more than five years, occupied an executive
position with the Company or companies that are now its subsidiaries. For more than five years prior to
joining the Company in August 2004, Mr. Apfel served as an officer of certain AIG Group companies,
with his most recent position as Senior Vice President with AIG Reinsurance Advisors. Since January
1991, Ms. Tuck has also served as the Secretary of a number of AIG Group companies.




PART 1I

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities :

(a) The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices per share of the Company’s
Common Stock, as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape for each of the four
quarters of 2004 and 2003, adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect the 5-for-4 common stock split effected in
the form of a 25% common stock dividend, paid on July 16, 2004:

2004 2003
First Quarter ...ttt iniieenns 6997 64.44 5576 49.18
Second Quarter........... it i 7349 64.79 5716 5292
Third Quarter ..........coiviiiii i 65.96 53.80 58.64 5556
Fourth Quarter ...ttt 62.19 5422 06464 5782

(b) As of January 31, 2005, the approximate number of holders of Common Stock, including those
whose Common Stock is held in nominee name, was 28,000.

(c) In 2004, the Company declared a quarterly dividend of $0.088 per share of Common Stock in
March and $0.10 per share of Common Stock in each of May, September and December. In 2003, the
Company declared a quarterly dividend of $0.08 per share of Common Stock in March and $0.088 per
share of Common Stock in each of May, September and December. The Company paid each dividend in
the quarter following the date of declaration. All dividend information reflects the 5-for-4 split of the
common stock paid in July 2004.

The declaration and payment of future dividends, if any, by the Company will be at the discretion
of the Board of Directors and will depend upon many factors, including the Company’s consolidated
earnings, financial condition and business needs, capital and surplus requirements of the Company’s
operating subsidiaries, regulatory considerations and other factors.

The Company is a holding company whose principal source of income is dividends from its
subsidiary, TRC. The payment of dividends by TRC and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, TRZ and
Putnam, is restricted by insurance regulations. (See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.)

In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company repurchased 19,900 shares of its common stock as
detailed below:
Maximum Number

Total Number of of Shares That May
Shares Purchased Yet Be Purchased

Total Number As Part of Publicly Under the Plans or
of Shares Average Price Announced Plans Programs at End
Period Purchased(1) Paid Per Share or Programs of Month(2)
October 2004 ..................... — $ — — 294,750
November 2004 ................... 10,300 58.19 10,300 284,450
December 2004 ................... 9,600 59.37 9,600 274,850
Total ... 19,900 $58.76 19,900 274,850

(1) Does not include 16,470 shares and 68,008 shares related to options exercised in the three and twelve months ended
December 31, 2004, respectively, that were attested to in satisfaction of the exercise price by holders of the Company’s
employee or director stock options.

(2) In November 2000, the Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to 200,000 shares (375,000 shares after adjustment
for subsequent stock splits) of the Company’s common stock in the open market or through negotiated transactions.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

The following Selected Consolidated Financial Data is prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This data should be read in conjunction
with the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere herein.

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Net premiums written .......... $ 3,749,274 $3,341,077 $2,500,159 $1,905,647 $1,658,579
Net premiums earned .......... 3,661,090 3171226 2369452 1,790,339 1,631,536
Net investment income ......... 306,786 270,972 252,026 240,083 234,485
Realized net capital gains
(lOSSES) e v v e 22,181 9,942 (5,951) (240) 33,098
Revenues....................... 3,990,057 3,452,140 2,615,527 2,030,182 1,899,119
Income (loss) before income
taxes(l) ..o, 276,212 386,674 188,320 (34,107) 267,982
Net income..................... 254,584 303,644 169,318 18,892 211,638
Per Common Share:(2)
Net income:
Basic..........ooooiiinln $ 387 § 464 % 259 §$ 029 § 3.25
Diluted .................... 3.85 4.60 2.57 0.29 323
Cash dividends declared ........ 0.39 0.34 0.32 0.30 0.28

Share Data:(2)
Weighted average common

Basic....................... 65,731 65,508 65,378 65,280 65,159
Diluted .................... 66,189 65,953 65,944 65,921 65,594
Balance Sheet Data (at year end):

Investments and cash........... $ 8,287,003 $6,867,165 $5,587,530 $5,004,431 $4,391,226
ASSetS ..o 10,605,292 8,707,758 7,286,525 6,741,303 5,522,672

Unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses.......... 5,941,464 4,805,498 4,032,584 3,747,583 3,077,162
Unearned premiums............ 1,057,265 917,355 707,916 553,734 418,621
Stockholders’ equity ............ 2,587,129 2,376,587 2,030,767 1,846,010 1,856,365

(1) Includes pre-tax net catastrophe losses of $215 million in 2004, includes pre-tax net losses and loss adjustment expenses of
$100 million related to the fourth quarter increase in net loss reserves in certain casualty lines in 2002, and in 2001, includes
pre-tax net catastrophe losses of $215 million principally related to the September 11th terrorist attack on the United States
and $60 million related to Enron reinsurance exposure.

(2) Share and per share data have been retroactively adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect common stock splits.
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and other publicly available documents may include, and
Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, TRH) officers and representatives may
from time to time make, statements which may constitute “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the U.S. federal securities laws. These forward-looking statements are identified, including
without limitation, by their use of such terms and phrases as “intends,” “intend,” “intended,” “goal,”
“estimate,” “estimates,” “expects,” “expect,” “expected,” “project,” “projects,” “projected,”
“projections,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “anticipated,” “should,” “think,” “thinks,” “designed to,”
“foreseeable future,” “believe,” “believes” and “scheduled” and similar expressions. These statements
are not historical facts but instead represent only TRH’s belief regarding future events and financial
performance, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and outside of TRH’s control.
These statements may address, among other things, TRH’s strategy and expectations for growth,
product development, government and industry regulatory actions, legal matters, market conditions,
financial results and reserves, as well as the expected impact on TRH of natural and man-made (e.g.,
terrorist attacks) catastrophic events and political, economic, legal and social conditions. It is possible
that TRH’s actual results, financial condition and expected outcomes may differ, possibly materially,
from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause TRH’s
actual results to differ, possibly materially, from those discussed in the specific forward-looking
statements may include, but are not limited to, uncertainties relating to economic conditions and cyclical
industry conditions, credit quality, government, regulatory and accounting policies, volatile and
unpredictable developments (including natural and man-made catastrophes), the legal environment,
legal and regulatory proceedings, the reserving process, the competitive environment in which TRH
operates, interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, and the uncertainties inherent in
international operations, and are further discussed throughout Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. TRH is not under any obligation to (and expressly
disclaims any such obligations to) update or alter any forward-looking statement, whether written or
oral, that may be made from time to time, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries
(TRH) presents its operations in the way it believes will be most meaningful. TRH’s unpaid losses and
loss adjustment expenses net of related reinsurance recoverable (loss reserves) and TRH’s combined
ratio and its components are included herein and presented in accordance with principles prescribed or
permitted by insurance regulatory authorities as these are standard measures in the insurance and
reinsurance industries.

Financial Statements

The following discussion refers to the consolidated financial statements of TRH as of December 31,
2004 and 2003 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, which are
presented elsewhere herein. Financial data discussed below have been affected by certain transactions
between TRH and American International Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the AIG Group) and
transactions between TRH and C.V. Starr & Co., Inc. (See Notes 10, 12 and 14 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.)

Executive Overview

The operations of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. (the Company) are conducted principally by its three
major operating subsidiaries—Transatlantic Reinsurance Company (TRC), Trans Re Zurich (TRZ) and
Putnam Reinsurance Company (Putnam)—and managed based on its geographic segments. Through its
operations on six continents, TRH offers reinsurance capacity on both a treaty and facultative basis—
structuring programs for a full range of property and casualty products, with an emphasis on specialty
lines, which may exhibit greater volatility of results over time than most other lines. Such capacity is
offered through reinsurance brokers and, to a lesser extent, directly to domestic and foreign insurance
and reinsurance entities.

TRH’s operating strategy emphasizes product and geographic diversification as key elements in
controlling its level of risk concentration. TRH also adjusts its mix of business to take advantage of
market opportunities. Over time, TRH has also capitalized on market opportunities when they arise by
strategically expanding operations in an existing location or opening a branch or representative office in
new locations (except for the acquisition of TRZ in 1996). TRH’s operations that serve international
markets grow by leveraging TRH’s product knowledge, worldwide resources and financial strength,
typically utilizing indigenous management and staff with a thorough knowledge of local markets and
product characteristics.

In 2004, casualty lines comprised 72% of TRH’s net premiums written, while property lines totaled
28% . Treaty reinsurance totaled 96% of net premiums written, with the balance representing facuitative
accounts. Moreover, reinsurance assumed by international offices represented 51% of net premiums
written in 2004.

American International Group, Inc. (AIG), which through its subsidiaries is one of the largest
providers of insurance and investment products and services to businesses and individuals around the
world, beneficially owned approximately 60% of the common stock of the Company as of December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002.

Although TRC and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Putnam, are separate entities, together they would
have ranked as the 2nd largest domestic reinsurer, based upon combined statutory net premiums written
for the year ended December 31, 2004, based on the Reinsurance Association of America’s survey as of
that date.

TRH’s major sources of revenues are net premiums earned for reinsurance risks undertaken and
net investment income earned on investments made. The great majority of TRH’s investments are in
fixed maturity securities with an average duration of 5.0 years as of December 31, 2004. In general,
premiums are received significantly in advance of related claims payments. The following table
summarizes TRH’s revenues, income before income taxes and net income for the periods indicated:

24




Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Change Change Change
From From From
Amount Prior Year Amount Prior Year Amount Prior Year

(dollars in millions)

Revenues. ....oovveeeinnineeannnnn, $3,990.1 15.6% $3,452.1 32.0% $2,615.5 28.8%
Income before income taxes........ 276.2 (28.6) 386.7 105.3 188.3 —
Net InCOmMe........ovviviieenninnn, 254.6 16.2) 303.6 79.3 169.3 796.2

Consolidated Results

Revenues during the period under discussion grew significantly, principally due to increases in net
premiums earned which resulted from rate increases and increased coverage provided across most lines
and regions in which TRH does business, as well as the greater number of favorable underwriting
opportunities, particularly in international markets, for global reinsurers with superior financial strength
ratings and a full range of products, such as TRH. Revenue growth slowed in 2004 due to domestic net
premiums written remaining level resulting largely from softer market conditions and greater retention
levels by cedants in certain sectors. The markets in which TRH operates have historically been cyclical.
During most of the period under discussion, the market was characterized by capacity strain in certain
classes and rating downgrades of many major reinsurers. These occurrences generally resulted from
years of rate declines, high levels of industry loss activity, exacerbated by losses from the major
European storms of late 1999, the tragic event of September 11, 2001, losses related to major corporate
collapses such as Enron Corporation, adverse development in 2002 through 2004 on losses occurring
principally in 1998 through 2001 in certain specialty casualty classes such as directors’ and officers’
liability (included in the other liability line) and medical malpractice and record catastrophe losses in
2004. These events also materially affected TRH’s results in those years.

Catastrophe losses of $215 million, or $140 million after tax, dramatically affected 2004 results.
These losses resulted from Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan and Jeanne, that affected the
Southeastern United States and the Caribbean, typhoons that affected Japan and the tsunami which
principally affected South Asia. There were no significant catastrophe losses occurring in 2003 or 2002.

Income before income taxes and net income decreased in 2004 as compared to 2003 due primarily
to the above mentioned catastrophe losses. The impact of these losses was partially offset by increased
underwriting profit from International—Europe and increased net investment income from all segments
in 2004 as compared to 2003. Tax benefits associated with the catastrophe losses somewhat tempered
the impact of the catastrophe losses on net income in 2004. Underwriting profit (loss) is defined as net
premiums earned less net losses and loss adjustment expenses, net commissions and other underwriting
expenses, plus (minus) the increase (decrease) in deferred acquisition costs.

Income before income taxes and net income improved in 2003 as compared to 2002 due primarily
to improvements in underwriting profit (loss). Generally, rate improvements and more restrictive
contract terms and conditions increasingly benefited results in 2003 as compared to 2002. 2002 results
also included the impact of a fourth quarter increase in loss reserves (totaling $100 million, or $65
million, net of tax) largely caused by an unexpected increase, late in the year, in the frequency and
severity of reported losses occurring in 1998 through 2000 in certain casualty lines, reflecting industry
wide trends. (See Qperational Review.)

Market Conditions and Outlook

For the period under discussion, the reinsurance market has been characterized by significant
competition worldwide in most lines of business. In late 2000 and continuing through 2001, rate
increases, which were achieved in many lines, intensified after the net industry surplus drain occurring
as a result of the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack. A key insurance industry source estimates losses
from that attack, which affected many lines of business, approximated $32 billion.

Market conditions for reinsurers generally improved throughout 2002 and 2003 as rates increased
and terms and conditions generally became more restrictive. Attracted by improved market conditions,
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additional capital entered the market starting in late 2001, through the formation of new companies,
principally in Bermuda, and the addition of capital to certain existing companies. The newer reinsurance
capacity spurred additional competition, most significantly in shorter tail, catastrophe related lines, both
domestically and internationally.

In 2004, property lines experienced meaningful rate decreases on both primary and reinsurance
contracts during the year, but remained generally favorable with respect to catastrophe business.
Despite the prevalence of modest rate reductions on primary business, casualty rates generally
remained firm on the treaty reinsurance side. Rates, terms and conditions were generally stronger for
longer tail casualty lines due, in part, to elevated industry-wide loss activity in recent years (that also
materially affected TRH) experienced in certain of those lines related principally to losses occurring in
1997 through 2001. Overall, market conditions in the reinsurance sector for 2004 generally remained
favorable for most classes and management believes that conditions will remain favorable into 2005.

The impact of market improvements in recent years and the generally favorable market conditions
in 2004 do not necessarily translate into ultimate pricing adequacy. In addition, there is no guarantee,
despite management’s belief expressed above, that these conditions will remain in effect as TRH cannot
predict, with any reasonable certainty, future market conditions.

Further information related to items discussed in this Executive Overview may be found
throughout Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(Management’s Discussion).

Recent Developments

Various regulators including the New York State Attorney General have commenced investigations
relating to certain insurance and reinsurance business practices, non-traditional insurance products and
assumed reinsurance transactions. In connection with these investigations, AIG has asked TRH, as a
subsidiary of AIG, to review its documents and practices and TRH has been cooperating fully with AIG
in such request and will continue to cooperate fully in producing documents and other information in
response to all requests. To date, nothing has come to the attention of TRH’s management that would
indicate that TRH has been involved in any improper conduct.

Critical Accounting Estimates

This discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations are based upon
TRH’s consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial
statements requires the use of estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts and related
disclosures. TRH relies on historical experience and on various other assumptions, that it believes to be
reasonable under the circumstances, to make judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ materially from
these estimates.

TRH believes its most critical accounting estimates are those with respect to loss reserves, premium
revenues and deferred acquisition costs, as they require management’s most significant exercise of
judgment on both a quantitative and qualitative basis used in the preparation of TRH’s consolidated
financial statements and footnotes. The accounting estimates that result require the use of assumptions
about certain matters that are highly uncertain at the time of estimation. A discussion of the most
critical accounting estimates follow.

Loss Reserves

Estimates of loss reserves take into account TRH’s assumptions with respect to many factors that
will affect ultimate loss costs but are not yet known. Such factors, which contribute to the variability and
unpredictability of loss costs, include trends related to jury awards, social inflation, medical inflation,
tort reforms and court interpretations of coverages, among others. To the extent that these assumptions
underlying the loss reserve estimates are significantly incorrect, ultimate losses may be materially
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different from the estimates included in the financial statements and may materially affect net income.
The impact of those differences are reflected in the period they become known.

The reserving process is inherently difficult and subjective, especially in view of changes in the legal
and tort environment which impact the development of loss reserves, and therefore quantitative
techniques frequently have to be supplemented by subjective considerations and managerial judgment.
Trends that have affected development of liabilities in the past may not necessarily occur or affect
development to the same degree in the future. While this process is difficult for ceding companies, the
inherent uncertainties of estimating loss reserves are even greater for reinsurers, due primarily to the
longer term nature of much reinsurance business, the diversity of development patterns among different
types of reinsurance treaties or facultative contracts, the necessary reliance on the ceding companies for
information regarding reported claims and differing reserving practices among ceding companies, which
are subject to change without notice. Nevertheless, data received from cedants is subjected to audits
from time to time by TRH claims and underwriting personnel, to help ensure that reported data is
supported by proper documentation and conforms to contract terms, and analyzed, as appropriate, by
TRH underwriting and actuarial personnel. Such analysis often includes a detailed review of reported
data to assess the underwriting results of reinsurance assumed and to explain any significant departures
from expected performance. Over time, reported loss information is ultimately corroborated when such
information eventually attains paid status.

Generally, for each longer tail line of business, significant actuarial judgments are made with
respect to the following factors used in the loss reserve setting process:

e Loss trend factors are used to establish expected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios for
subsequent accident years based on the projected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios for
prior accident years. Provisions for inflation and social inflation (e.g., awards by judges and juries
which progressively increase in size at a rate exceeding that of general inflation) and trends in
court interpretations of coverage are among the factors which must be considered.

¢ Expected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios for the latest accident years generally reflect
the expected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios from prior accident years adjusted for the
loss trend (see loss trend factor discussion immediately above), as well as the impact of rate level
changes and other quantifiable factors. For certain longer tail lines of business that are typically
lower frequency, higher severity classes, such as excess medical malpractice and directors’ and
officers’ liability (D&O), expected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios are often utilized for
the last several accident years.

¢ Loss development factors are used to arrive at the ultimate amount of losses incurred for each
accident year based on reported loss information. These factors, which are initially calculated
based on historical loss development patterns (i.e., the emergence of reported losses over time
relative to the ultimate losses to be paid), are then adjusted for current trends.

During the loss settlement period, which can be many years in duration, additional facts regarding
individual claims and trends usually become known. As these facts and trends emerge, it usually
becomes necessary to refine and adjust the loss reserves upward or downward and even then the
ultimate net liability may be materially different from the revised estimates. (See discussion of adverse
development on losses occurring in prior years under Results of Operations and further discussion and
detail information about loss and loss adjustment expense reserves and the loss reserve setting process
under Financial Condition and Liquidity.)

Premium Revenues

Management must make certain judgments in the determination of premiums written and earned
by TRH. For pro rata treaty contracts, premiums written and earned are based on reports received from
ceding companies. Generally for excess-of-loss treaty contracts, premiums are recorded as written based
on contract terms and are earned ratably over the terms of the related coverages provided. (In recent
years, treaty contracts have generated approximately 95% of TRH’s premium revenues.) Unearned
premiums and prepaid reinsurance premiums .represent the portion of gross premiums assumed and
reinsurance ceded, respectively, relating to the unexpired terms of such coverages.
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Premiums written and earned, along with related costs, for which data has not been reported by the
ceding companies, are estimated based on historical patterns and other relevant information. Such
estimates of premiums earned are considered when establishing the reserve for loss and loss adjustment
expenses incurred but not reported (IBNR). The differences between these estimates and the actual
data subsequently reported, which may be material as a result of the diversity of cedants, reporting
practices and the inherent difficulty in estimating premium inflows, among other factors, are recorded in
the period when the actual data becomes available and may materially affect net income. In the
Consolidated Statements of Operations, premiums written and earned and the change in unearned
premiums are presented net of reinsurance ceded.

Estimates of premiums assumed less related ceding commission by major class of business included
in the appropriate components of the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2004 and the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2004 were as follows:

Premium
Premiums Balances
Major Class Assumed  Commissions Receivable
(in thousands)
Casualty:
Other Hability .........o.oiiiiiii i $ 76,579  $20,650 $ 55,929
Auto lability ... e 21,691 5,774 15,917
Medical malpractice ..........cc.ooiiiiiieniiiiiiiiiiiiann 7,684 2,115 5,569
Ocean marine and aviation ..........c.ooiiiiiiiinineeennna 26,187 6,057 20,130
Surety and credit ... ... 9,851 3,163 6,688
Accident and health ........ ..o i i 12,436 3,251 9,185
OtRer. . 9,720 2,738 6,982
Total casualty ... 164,148 43,748 120,400
Property:
Fire o 8,927 1,535 7,392
Allied lines . ... e 19,281 4,086 15,195
Homeowners multiple peril ............ ..o it 31,360 11,624 19,736
Auto physical damage ... 4,937 1,427 3,510
L 1 T3 8,756 2,428 6,328
Total Property. .. ..o e 73,261 21,100 52,161
Total . e $237,409 $64,848 $172,561

TRH has provided no allowance for bad debts related to the premium estimates based on its
historical experience, general profile of its cedants and the ability TRH has in most cases to significantly
offset these premium receivables with losses and loss adjustment expenses or other amounts payable to
the same parties.

Deferred Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs, consisting primarily of net commissions incurred on business conducted through
reinsurance contracts or certificates, are deferred and then amortized over the period in which the
related premiums are earned, generally one year. The evaluation of recoverability of acquisition costs to
be deferred considers the expected profitability of the underlying treaties and facultative certificates,
which may vary materially from actual results. If the actual profitability varies from the expected
profitability, the impact of such differences are recorded, as appropriate, when actual results become
known and may have a material effect on net income.
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Operational Review

Results of Operations

TRH derives its revenue from two principal sources: premiums from reinsurance assumed net of
reinsurance ceded (i.e., net premiums earned) and income from investments. Premiums are primarily
earned ratably over the term of the related coverages. Unearned premiums and prepaid reinsurance
premiums represent the portion of gross premiums assumed and reinsurance ceded, respectively,
relating to the unexpired terms of such coverages. The relationship between net premiums written and
net premiums earned will, therefore, vary depending generally on the volume and inception dates of the
business assumed and ceded and the mix of such business between pro rata and excess-of-loss
reinsurance.

The following table shows net premiums written, net premiums earned and net investment income
of TRH for the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Change Change Change
From From From
Amount Prior Year Amount Prior Year Amount Prior Year

(dollars in millions)

Net premiums written .............. $3,749.3 122% $3341.1 33.6% $2,500.2 31.2%
Net premiums earned .............. 3,661.1 154 3,171.2 33.8 2,369.5 323
Net investment income ............. 306.8 13.2 271.0 7.5 252.0 5.0

The increase in net premiums written in 2004 compared to 2003 resulted largely from pricing
increases and increased coverage provided. The increase in net premiums written in 2003 compared to
2002 resulted largely from rate increases and, to a lesser extent, increased coverage provided. In
addition, in both 2004 and 2003, as compared to their respective immediately prior year, net premiums
written increased due to the impact of the weakened U.S. dollar compared to the currencies in which
TRH does business, particularly in TRH’s European locations. In 2004 and 2003, as compared to the
immediately prior years, premium increases were primarily from treaty business. On a worldwide basis,
casualty lines business represented 72.4% of net premiums written in 2004 versus 73.5% and 73.9% in
2003 and 2002, respectively. The balance represented property lines. Treaty business represented 96.4%
of net premiums written in 2004 versus 96.4% in 2003 and 95.4% in 2002. The balance represented
facultative accounts.

Domestic net premiums written totaled $1,840.0 million in 2004, remaining level with 2003 due
generally to softer market conditions in many sectors and greater retention levels by cedants. Significant
domestic increases in net premiums written were recorded in the medical malpractice, other liability
(principally general casualty) and accident and health lines of $41.2 million, $29.6 million and $25.1
million, respectively. The increases were offset by significant decreases in net premiums written in the
auto liability, property and surety lines of $74.5 million, $17.9 million and $14.9 million, respectively.

Net premiums written by international offices increased in 2004 by $409.0 million, or 27.3%, over
the prior year, to $1,909.3 million. Generally, as a result of more favorable opportunities prevailing
internationally, all of the international offices recorded increases in net premiums written, led by
London, TRZ and Paris with increases of $151.7 million, $119.5 million and $77.6 million, respectively.
International net premiums written increased significantly in the property, auto liability, credit and
ocean marine lines with increases of $166.9 million, $69.7 million, $41.9 million and $33.2 million,
respectively. Note that increases in international net premiums written resulted, in part, from the impact
of the weakened U.S. dollar in 2004 compared to the currencies in which TRH does business.
International business represented 50.9% of 2004 net premiums written compared to 44.9% in 2003.

Of the total increase in net premiums written in 2003 compared to 2002, domestic net preminms
written increased by $478.2 million, or 35.1%, to $1,840.8 million, due principally to the above
mentioned rate increases and overall improved market conditions, with significant increases in net
premiums written recorded in the other liability (principally D&O and other professional liability
(errors and omissions coverages (E&Q))), medical malpractice, property and ocean marine and aviation
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lines of $226.6 million, $97.3 million, $95.2 million and $48.0 million, respectively. The increase in net
premiums written in property lines is due, in part, to a reduction in property quota share retrocession
coverage purchased.

Net premiums written by international offices increased in 2003 by $362.7 million, or 31.9%, over
the prior year, to $1,500.3 million. All international offices recorded increases in net premiums written,
led by London, TRZ and Paris with increases of $162.8 million, $98.7 million and $54.4 million,
respectively. International net premiums written increased significantly in the property, other liability
(principally D&O and E&O) and auto liability lines with increases of $137.2 million, $75.4 million and
$36.0 million, respectively. Note that increases in international net premiums written resulted, in part,
from the impact of the weakened U.S. dollar in 2003 compared to the currencies in which TRH does
business. International business represented 44.9% of 2003 net premiums written compared to 45.5% in
2002.

Generally, reasons for increases in gross premiums written between years are similar to those for
net premiums written. A significant portion of the increase in ceded premiums written and earned in
2004 compared to 2003 is due to premiums assumed from an affiliate that were ceded in an equal
amount to other affiliates. In 2003 over 2002, ceded premiums written and earned were lower primarily
due to less property quota share retrocession coverage purchased in 2003 as compared to 2002 and to a
reduction in ceded premiums resulting from certain domestic contracts in the specialty casualty area
wherein a portion of premiums assumed under those agreements was retroceded to non-affiliates.

As further discussed in Notes 12 and 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, TRH
transacts a significant amount of business assumed and ceded with other subsidiaries of AIG. TRH
either accepts or rejects the proposed transactions with such companies based on its assessment of risk
selection, pricing, terms and conditions.

As premiums written are primarily earned ratably over the terms of the related coverages, the
reasons for increases in net premiums earned are generally similar to the reasons for increases in net
premiums written.

Net investment income increased in 2004 and 2003, each as compared to the immediately prior
year, due to the investment (principally in fixed maturities) of significant positive cash flow from
operating activities generated in recent periods and, to a lesser extent, the impact of the weakening U.S.
dollar compared to certain currencies, particularly from European countries, in which TRH’s net
investment income is earned. (See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and cash flow
discussion under Financial Condition and Liquidity.) For 2004, 2003 and 2002, the pre-tax effective
yields on investments were 4.1%, 4.4% and 4.8%, respectively. A substantial portion of the decline in
investment yield in 2004 compared to 2003 relates to the significant increase in 2004 in the asset amount
of short-term investment of funds received under securities loan agreements, which asset produces
minimal net investment income. (See Note 2(b) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.) The
pre-tax effective yield on investments represents pre-tax net investment income for the periods
indicated divided by the average balance sheet carrying value of investments and interest-bearing cash
for such periods.

Pre-tax realized net capital gains (losses) totaled $22.2 million in 2004, $9.9 million in 2003 and
($6.0) million in 2002. Realized capital gains and losses are generally the result of investment
dispositions which reflect TRH’s investment and tax planning strategies to maximize after-tax income. In
addition, pre-tax realized net capital gains (losses) include charges for write-downs related to certain of
such securities that, in the opinion of management, had experienced a decline in market value that was
other than temporary. In 2004, pre-tax realized net capital gains included charges for write-downs for
other than temporary declines in market value totaling $6.2 million related to other invested assets. In
2003, pre-tax realized net capital gains include charges for write-downs for other than temporary
declines in market value totaling $6.1 million and $4.6 million of equities available for sale and fixed
maturities available for sale, respectively. In 2002, write-downs for such declines totaled $12.1 million
and $1.8 million of equities available for sale and fixed maturities available for sale, respectively. Upon
the ultimate disposition of securities which have recorded write-downs, a portion of the write-downs
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may be recoverable depending on market conditions at the time of disposition. (See discussion under
Financial Condition and Liquidity for criteria used in determination of such write-downs.)

The property and casualty insurance and reinsurance industries use the combined ratio as a
measure of underwriting profitability. The combined ratio reflects only underwriting results, and does
not include income from investments. Generally, a combined ratio under 100 indicates an underwriting
profit and a combined ratio exceeding 100 indicates an underwriting loss. Underwriting profitability is
subject to significant fluctuations due to competition, natural and man-made catastrophic events,
economic and social conditions, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, interest rates and other
factors. The combined ratio represents the sum of the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio and the
underwriting expense ratio, The loss and loss adjustment expense ratio represents net losses and loss
adjustment expenses divided by net premiums earned, while the underwriting expense ratio represents
the sum of net commissions and other underwriting expenses expressed as a percentage of net
premiums written.

The following table presents loss and loss adjustment expense ratios, underwriting expense ratios
and combined ratios for consolidated TRH, and separately for its domestic and international
components, for the years indicated:

Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Consolidated:
Loss and loss adjustment expense ratio................ 753 704 758
Underwriting expense ratio.............c.coeeeeneen.. 262 261 265
Combined ratio ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1015 965 1023
Domestic: '
Loss and loss adjustment expense ratio................ 798 708 73.0
Underwriting expense ratio...............cocvvuinn... 263 258 276
Combined 1atio ...t 106.1 96.6 100.6
International: ’
Loss and loss adjustment expense ratio................ 708 700 792
Underwriting expense ratio..............c..cooevuienonn. 261 263 252
Combined ratio ........coiieiiiiiii i 969 963 104.4

TRH’s 2004 results include net pre-tax catastrophe losses of $215.0 million (domestic—$114.1
million; international—$100.9 million) related to Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan and Jeanne, that
affected the Southeastern United States and the Caribbean, typhoons that affected Japan and the
tsunami which principally affected South Asia. Such events in the aggregate added 5.9, 6.3 and 5.4 to
each of the loss and loss adjustment expense ratios and combined ratios for consolidated TRH,
domestic and international, respectively.

In addition, as a result of net increases in estimates of losses occurring in prior years, net losses and
loss adjustment expenses were increased by $317.4 million in 2004. See table below for detail of such net
adverse loss reserve development:

Amount of

Year-end 2003 Net Re-estimation-
Net Loss Reserve at  Reestimated Liability Redundancy

Lines of Business December 31, 2003 at Year-end 2004 (Deficiency)(1)
(in thousands)
Other liability ....................... $1,356,736 $1,631,627 $(274,891)
Medical malpractice ................. 582,966 674,157 (91,191)
Fire ... 335,620 288,911 46,709
Fidelity. ... ... 65,850 98,162 (32,312)
Ocean marine and aviation.......... 417,505 387,281 30,224
Other,net..............cooiiiint. 1,197,743 1,193,664 4,079
Total................ciiini... $3,956,420 $4,273,802 $§ 317,382)

(1) Amount of re-estimation represents the amount of net losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred in 2004 related to losses
occuring in 2003 and prior years.
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As a result of greater than expected reported loss activity in 2004, indicating that TRH’s estimates
as of the end of 2003 of the ultimate amounts of losses occurring in 2003 and prior required a net
increase, significant net adverse development was recorded in 2004 (as presented in the table above).
The vast majority of such adverse development relates to the other liability, including certain specialty
casualty classes such as D&O and E&O, and medical malpractice lines for losses occurring between
1998 and 2001, principally in domestic and, to a lesser extent, London operations. These increases to
incurred losses were offset, in part, by favorable development across most lines on losses occurring in
2003 and, to a lesser extent, on losses occurring during 2002 in the other liability, aircraft and fire lines.

TRH writes a significant amount of non-proportional assumed casualty reinsurance as well as
proportional assumed reinsurance of excess casualty business for such volatile classes as medical
malpractice and D&O. At the primary level, there are significant risk factors which contribute to the
variability and unpredictability of the loss trend factor for this business such as jury awards, social
inflation, medical inflation, tort reforms and court interpretations of coverage. In addition, as a
reinsurer, TRH is also highly dependent upon the claims reserving and reporting practices of its cedants,
which vary greatly by size, specialization and country of origin and whose practices are subject to
change without notice.

TRH sets its loss reserves, in part, based on historical reported loss development patterns, adjusted
for current trends and other factors. The methods used to estimate ultimate losses and to establish the
resulting loss reserves are continually reviewed and updated. During 2004, as losses reported from
accident years 1998 through 2001 significantly exceeded expectations that were factored into the
determination of year-end 2003 loss reserves for certain classes, adjustments were made to the estimates
of the required loss reserve level, thus recognizing adverse development. During TRH’s comprehensive
annual review of loss reserves, it became apparent that for certain classes such as other liability,
including certain specialty casualty classes such as D&O and E&O, and medical malpractice lines, there
had been marked unexpected increases in both the frequency and severity of large losses reported. The
impact of this emergence was incorporated into the actuarial methodologies used to estimate ultimate
losses and, as previously stated, the adverse development that was recognized. Additionally, loss
estimates for these classes for other accident years, such as 2003 and, to a lesser extent, 2002, developed
favorably and such impact was recognized accordingly. Loss reserves are set based on assumptions and
actuarial methodologies judged to be most appropriate at the time. Based on information presently
available, TRH believes its current loss reserves are adequate, but there can be no assurance that TRH’s
loss reserves will not develop adversely due to, for example, the inherent volatility in loss trend factors
and variability of reporting practices for those classes, among other factors, and materially exceed the
carried loss reserves as of December 31, 2004 and thus, materially affect net income.

There were no significant catastrophe losses occurring during 2003. In addition, as a result of net
increases in estimates of losses occurring in prior years, net losses and loss adjustment expenses were
increased by $322.6 million in 2003. As a result of greater than expected reported loss activity in 2003
indicating that TRH’s estimates as of the end of 2002 of the ultimate amounts of losses occurring in 2002
and prior years required a net increase, significant adverse development was recorded in 2003 on losses
occurring between 1998 and 2000 in certain casualty lines, principally in domestic and, to a lesser extent,
London branch operations. Such lines included other liability (a portion of which represents certain
specialty casualty classes such as D&O and E&Q), medical malpractice and, to a lesser extent, surety
and fidelity lines. These increases to incurred losses were offset, in small part, by favorable development
on losses occurring in 2001 and 2002 in fire and allied lines and, in 2002 only, in other liability lines.

There were no significant catastrophe losses occurring during 2002. In addition, as a result of net
increases in estimates of losses occurring in prior years, net losses and loss adjustment expenses were
increased by $339.1 million in 2002. Of this amount, in the fourth quarter of 2002, TRH recorded an
increase to net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves of $100 million ($55 million domestic and $45
million international), resulting in a $65 million after-tax charge to net income. Such net reserve
increase was largely caused by the impact of losses principally occurring between 1998 and 2000 in
certain casualty lines. Such lines include other liability (a portion of which represents certain specialty
casualty classes such as D&O and E&O), medical malpractice and surety. This fourth quarter reserve
adjustment was based primarily on an unexpected increase in the frequency and severity of reported
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claims late in the year reflecting industry-wide trends. The aforementioned fourth quarter increase to
net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves added 4.2 to each of the loss and loss adjustment expense
ratios and combined ratios for consolidated, domestic and international operations. In addition, as a
result of greater than expected reported loss activity in 2002 indicating that TRH’s estimates as of the
end of 2001 of the ultimate amounts of losses occurring in 2001 and prior years required a further net
increase, significant adverse development was also recorded in 2002 on losses occurring in 1998 through
2001 in the auto liability and aviation lines and in 1999 through 2001 in the accident and health line.
These increases to incurred losses were partially offset by favorable development on losses occurring in
2001, principally in fire and allied lines and other liability lines.

While TRH believes that it has taken appropriate steps to control its exposure to possible future
catastrophe losses, the occurrence of one or more catastrophic events of unanticipated frequency or
severity, such as a terrorist attack, earthquake or hurricane, that causes insured losses could have a
material adverse effect on TRH’s results of operations, liquidity or financial position. Current
techniques and models may not accurately predict the probability of catastrophic events in the future
and the extent of the resulting losses. Moreover, one or more catastrophe losses could weaken TRH’s
retrocessionnaires and result in an inability of TRH to collect reinsurance recoverables.

The underwriting expense ratio for consolidated TRH increased in 2004 compared to 2003 due to
an increase of 0.2 in the net commission component of the ratio, partially offset by a decrease of 0.1 in
the other underwriting expense component of the ratio.

The underwriting expense ratio for consolidated TRH decreased in 2003 compared to 2002 due to
decreases of 0.2 in each of the net commission component and the other underwriting expense
component of the ratio. With respect to the net commission component, the decrease between years
results from a decrease in such component related to Domestic and International-Other, offset, in part,
by an increase in International-Europe, all due largely to slight changes in the mix of business between
periods. With respect to the other underwriting expense component, the decreases between years are
primarily due to the fact that the rates of increase in other underwriting expenses, for Domestic and
International-Europe, are exceeded by the rates of increase of net premiums written for the respective
periods.

The increase in deferred acquisition costs for 2004 was significantly less than the comparable 2003
amount. As the increase in unearned premiums in 2004 was significantly less than such increase in 2003,
a related, and smaller, portion of acquisition costs was deferred in 2004 as compared to 2003. The
increase in deferred acquisition costs for 2003 exceeded the 2002 amount. As the increase in unearned
premiums in 2003 was greater than such increase in 2002, a related, and larger, portion of acquisition
costs was deferred in 2003 as compared to 2002. Acquisition costs (consisting primarily of net
commissions incurred) are charged to earnings over the period in which the related premiums are
earned.

Other deductions, net, generally includes expense charges of $2.9 million and $1.1 million for stock-
based compensation, in 2004 and 2003, respectively, (see Other Matters herein for a discussion of the
Change in Accounting Principle and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation) related to TRH’s
voluntary adoption of the recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 123, as well as currency transaction gains and losses and other miscellaneous income and
expense items.

Income before income taxes was $276.2 million in 2004, $386.7 million in 2003 and $188.3 million in
2002. The decrease in income before income taxes in 2004 compared to the prior year resulted primarily
from $215.0 million of net pre-tax catastrophe losses offset, in part, by increased underwriting profit
(loss) from International-Europe and increased net investment income from all segments, both in 2004
as compared to 2003. The increase in income before income taxes in 2003 compared to the prior year
resulted primarily from improved underwriting profit (loss) and, to a much lesser extent, increased net
investment income in 2003. In particular, the consolidated loss and loss adjustment expense ratio
significantly improved in 2003 compared to the prior year, as further discussed above.

Federal and foreign income tax expense of $21.6 million, $83.0 millicn and $19.0 million were
recorded in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries, TRC (which
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includes foreign operations) and Putnam, filed consolidated federal income tax returns for the years
under discussion, except those for 2004 which are not yet due. The tax burden among the companies is
allocated in accordance with a tax sharing agreement. TRC will also include as part of its taxable
income or loss those items of income of the non-U.S. subsidiary, TRZ, which are subject to U.S. income
tax currently, pursuant to Subpart F income rules of the Internal Revenue Code, and included, as
appropriate, in the consolidated federal income tax return.

The effective tax rates, which represent the sum of current and deferred income taxes divided by
income before income taxes, were 7.8% in 2004, 21.5% in 2003 and 10.1% in 2002. The major
adjustments reconciling the “expected” tax expense to actual tax expense in each of the three years
under discussion (as detailed in Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) are similar in
terms of their nature and relative size, except that the adjustment for tax-exempt interest has been
steadily increasing as the size of the tax-exempt fixed maturity portfolio has grown in 2004 and 2003
over the respective immediately prior year. In addition, the year 2004 included a tax benefit of $10.9
million related to amended tax returns.

The lower effective tax rate in 2004 compared to 2003 resulted primarily from the impact of
catastrophe losses occurring in 2004. As a result, tax-exempt income was a larger percentage of income
before income taxes in 2004 compared to 2003. The increased effective tax rate in 2003 compared to
2002 resulted primarily from the fact that income before income taxes increased at a greater rate than
tax-exempt investment income.

Net income and net income per common share on a diluted basis, respectively, were as follows:
2004—$254.6 million, $3.85; 2003—$303.6 million, $4.60; 2002—$169.3 million, $2.57. Reasons for the
changes between years are as discussed earlier. Outstanding share amounts used in the net income per
common share calculation have been retroactively adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect the S-for-4
common stock split paid in July 2004. (See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In the years under discussion, the after-tax impacts on net income of certain significant items
discussed above in the Operational Review are as follows: 2004—catastrophe losses—$139.7 million;
2002—fourth quarter increase in net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves in certain casualty
lines—$65.0 million. (See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Segment Results

(a) Domestic:

2004 compared to 2003—Domestic revenues increased over the prior year due primarily to
increases in net premiums earned and, to a lesser extent, realized net capital gains and net investment
income. The increase in net premiums earned in 2004 compared to 2003 occurred primarily in the
medical malpractice, other liability and property lines, partially offset by decreases in the auto liability
line. Income before income taxes for 2004 decreased compared to the prior year due primarily to a
decrease in underwriting profit (loss) caused principally by $114.1 million of net pre-tax catastrophe
losses, principally related to hurricanes, that occurred in 2004. Both years included significant adverse
development of losses occurring in 1998 through 2000 in certain more volatile casualty classes as
discussed earlier under Results of Operations.

2003 compared to 2002—Domestic revenues increased over the prior year due primarily to
increases in net premiums written for reasons discussed earlier in the Operational Review. Income
before income taxes for 2003 increased compared to the prior year due primarily to improved
underwriting profit (loss) caused principally by a lower loss and loss adjustment expense ratio resulting
from improving market conditions in recent years. Both years included significant adverse development
of losses occurring in 1998 through 2000 in certain more volatile casualty classes as further discussed
earlier under Results of Operations. Loss activity in 2002 includes a $55 million fourth quarter pre-tax
charge to net losses and loss adjustment expenses related to an increase in loss reserves, comprising part
of the adverse development as discussed earlier in this paragraph.
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(b) International—Europe (London and Paris branches and TRZ):

2004 compared to 2003—European revenues increased compared to the prior year primarily due to
significant increases in net premiums written in each location, with the largest increase occurring in
London. These increases generally occurred in the property, auto liability, credit and ocean marine lines.
Such increases also resulted, in part, from the weakening U.S. dollar compared to the currencies in
which premiums were written in 2004 as compared to 2003. Income before income taxes for 2004
increased compared to the prior year amounts due principally to improved underwriting profit (loss),
that was largely the result of better loss experience in London, and increased net investment income in
London. Loss activity in 2004 includes $26.3 million of net pre-tax catastrophe losses recorded in
London related to hurricanes in the Southeastern United States and the Caribbean, and to the tsunami
which affected South Asia.

The significant increase in assets in 2004 as compared to 2003 is primarily due to significant
operating cash flows in 2004 and, to a lesser extent, the impact of foreign exchange on investments held,
as the U.S. dollar weakened during the year compared to currencies in which the investments were held.

2003 compared to 2002—European revenues increased compared to the prior year primarily due to
significant increases in net premiums written in each location, with the largest increase occurring in
London. These increases generally occurred in the property, specialty casualty (principally D&O and
E&O (included in other liability) and medical malpractice) and auto liability lines. Such increases were
a result, in part, of the weakening U.S. dollar compared to the currencies in which premiums were
written in 2003 as compared to 2002. Income before income taxes for 2003 increased compared to the
prior year amounts due principally to improved underwriting profit (loss) that was the result of better
loss experience in each location, partially offset by a higher commission rate in London, due to a slight
change in the mix of business. Such improved loss experience resulted from improving market
conditions in recent years. Both years included adverse development from the London branch on losses
occurring in 1998 through 2000 in certain more volatile casualty classes as discussed earlier under
Results of Operations. Loss activity in 2002 includes a $30 million fourth quarter pre-tax charge (related
to the London branch) to net losses and loss adjustment expenses related to an increase in loss reserves,
comprising part of the adverse development as discussed earlier in this paragraph.

The significant increase in assets in 2003 as compared to 2002 is primarily due to significant
operating cash flows in 2003 and, to a lesser extent, the impact of foreign exchange on investments held,
as the U.S. dollar weakened during the year compared to currencies in which the investments were held.

(c) International—Other (Miami (serving Latin America and the Caribbean), Toronto, Hong
Kong and Tokyo branches):

2004 compared to 2003—Revenues increased in 2004 versus the prior year due primarily to
increases in net premiums written, net of the change in unearned premiums, in Miami and Tokyo. These
increases generally occurred in the property line. 2004 income before income taxes decreased compared
to the prior year, due principally to $74.6 million of net pre-tax catastrophe losses primarily from
hurricanes in the Caribbean, typhoons which affected Japan and the tsunami which affected South Asia.

2003 compared to 2002—Revenues increased in 2003 versus the prior year due to increases in net
premiums written, net of the change in unearned premiums, in each location. These increases generally
occurred in the property line. 2003 income before income taxes improved significantly over the loss
before income taxes reported in 2002, due principally to improved loss experience in each location. Loss
activity in 2002 includes a $15 million fourth quarter pre-tax charge (related to the Miami branch) to net
losses and loss adjustment expenses related to an increase in loss reserves as discussed earlier in the
Operational Review.

Financial Condition and Liquidity

As a holding company, the Company’s assets consist primarily of the stock of TRC and the
Company’s future cash flows depend on the availability of dividends or other statutorily permissible
payments from TRC and its wholly-owned operating subsidiaries, TRZ and Putnam. (See Note 13 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of restrictions on dividend payment.) In
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2004 and 2003, the Company received cash dividends from TRC of $23.8 million and $21.9 million,
respectively. Sources of funds for the operating subsidiaries consist primarily of premiums, reinsurance
recoverables, investment income, proceeds from sales, redemptions and the maturing of investments
and funds received under securities loan agreements. Funds are applied primarily to payments of claims,
ceded reinsurance premiums, insurance operating expenses, income taxes and investments in fixed
income and equity securities. Premiums are generally received substantially in advance of related claims
payments. Cash and cash equivalents are maintained for the payment of claims and expenses as they
become due. TRH does not anticipate any material capital expenditures in the foreseeable future.

While the overall duration of liabilities (see contractual obligations table later in this section) is
considered in the investment management process, it is not the only factor considered as TRH has
historically funded its claims payments from current operating cash flows. As a result of such funding
history, TRH does not maintain a credit facility. TRH’s primary investment goal is to maximize after-tax
income through a high quality diversified taxable fixed maturity and tax-exempt municipal fixed
maturity portfolio, while maintaining an adequate level of liquidity. See discussion later in this section of
the potential liquidity strain that could arise as a result of a significant acceleration of paid losses
beyond TRH’s ability to fund such payments.

At December 31, 2004, total investments and cash were $8,287.0 million compared to $6,867.2
million at December 31, 2003. The increase was caused, in large part, by $904.9 million of cash provided
by operating activities, the investment of $389.2 million of net funds received under securities loan
agreements and, to a lesser extent, the impact of the weakening U.S. dollar on investments held,
principally in European currencies.

TRH’s fixed maturity investments, approximately 78.8% of total investments as of December 31,
2004, are predominantly investment grade, liquid securities, approximately 68.1% of which will mature
in less than 10 years. Also as of that date, approximately 7.8% of total investments were in common and
nonredeemable preferred stocks, approximately 2.2% of total investments were in other invested assets,
including investments in limited partnerships, approximately 10.7% of total investments were in the
short-term investment of funds received under securities loan agreements, and the remaining 0.5%
consisted of short-term investments. Based on the foregoing, TRH considers its liquidity to be adequate
through the end of 2005 and thereafter for a period the length of which is difficult to predict, but which
TRH believes will be at least one year.

Activity within the fixed maturities available for sale portfolio for the years under discussion
generally represented strategic portfolio realignments to maximize after-tax income. TRH adjusts its
mix of taxable and tax-exempt investments, as appropriate, generally as a result of strategic investment
and tax planning considerations. In 2004 and 2003, TRH purchased certain fixed maturities which are
classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortized cost as TRH has the positive intent and ability to
hold each of these securities to maturity. The duration of the fixed maturity portfolio was 5.0 years as of
December 31, 2004. In addition, TRH engaged in securities lending transactions whereby certain
securities (i.e., fixed maturities and common stocks available for sale) from its portfolio were loaned to
third parties. (See Note 2(b) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.) The market values of fixed
maturities and common stocks available for sale that are on loan are reflected parenthetically as pledged
on the balance sheet and totaled $823.2 million and $30.2 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2004,

Gross unrealized gains and losses on all fixed maturities as of December 31, 2004 amounted to
$230.3 million and $7.3 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2004, 92.8% of the fixed maturity portfolio was rated Aaa or Aa, an additional
7.0% was also rated investment grade or better and 0.2% was not rated. Also, as of December 31, 2004,
TRH had no derivative instruments. (See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Management reviews TRH’s investments on a continual basis for evidence of other than temporary
declines in market value and exercises its judgment in making such a determination and calculating the
amount of loss recognition (as a realized capital loss) resulting from investment write-downs.

In general, a security is considered a candidate for such a write-down if it meets any of the
following criteria:
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¢ Trading at a significant discount to par, amortized cost (if lower) or cost for an extended period
of time;

o The occurrence of a discrete credit event resulting in (i) the issuer defaulting on a material
outstanding obligation; or (ii) the issuer seeking protection from creditors under the bankruptcy
laws or any similar laws intended for the court supervised reorganization of insolvent enterprises;
or (iii) the issuer proposing a voluntary reorganization pursuant to which creditors are asked to
exchange their claims for cash or securities having a fair value substantially lower than par value
of their claims; or,

e In the opinion of management, it is possible that TRH may not realize a full recovery on its
investment, irrespective of the occurrence of one of the foregoing events.

Once a security has been identified as impaired, the amount of such impairment is determined by
reference to that security’s contemporaneous market price.

TRH has the ability to hold any security to its stated maturity. Therefore, the decision to sell
reflects the judgment of management that the security sold is unlikely to provide, on a relative value
basis, as attractive a return in the future as alternative securities entailing comparable risks. With
respect to distressed securities, the sale decision reflects management’s judgment that the risk-
discounted anticipated ultimate recovery is less than the value achievable on sale. (See Operational
Review for a discussion of realized capital losses resulting from write-downs of securities for other than
temporary declines in market value.)

At December 31, 2004, the reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses totaled $5.94
billion. The components of such reserve by major class of business, split between reported (case)
amounts and IBNR amounts is presented below:

Unpaid Losses and Loss
Adjustment Expenses
Case IBNR Total

(in millions)

Casualty:
Other liability .......coini i $1,004.9 $1,073.7 $2,078.6
Auto Hability .. ... 541.8 195.7 737.5
Medical malpractice ............. 358.6 465.2 823.8
Ocean marine and aviation . .........cooviiieineniiiieenenenenne, 344.0 186.6 530.6
Surety and credit ...t 120.3 103.3 223.6
Accident and health .......... ... ... 1727 112.5 285.2
L 4T P 1914 179.7 371.1
Total casualty ...t e 2,733.7 2,316.7 5,050.4
Property:
3 L 349.4 182.8 532.2
Allied Hnes......ooueii i 67.1 84.9 152.0
Homeowners multiple peril ..., 254 62.1 81.5
Auto physical damage ............ ..o 19.6 23.6 43.2
O T .o 48.7 275 76.2
Total Property ......covvviiviiiiiiiiii i 510.2 380.9 891.1
Total . o $3,243.9 $2,697.6 $5,941.5

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses increased $1.14 billion in 2004, or 23.6% over 2003.
Also at December 31, 2004, reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
totaled $947.8 million, an increase of $111.8 million, or 13.4%, from the prior year end. Of the amount
of reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, which totaled
$976.7 million as of December 31, 2004, $730.7 million represented balances that were unsecured. Of
such unsecured balances, $211.2 million was due from affiliates (which are rated AAA) and 88.5% of
the remaining balance was due from companies rated A- or better. (See Note 14 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.) An analysis of the change in net loss reserves from year-end 2003
to year-end 2004 is included in Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and reflects the
impact of adverse development of losses occurring in prior years and the impact of 2004 pre-tax net
catastrophe losses, as further discussed earlier under Results of Operations, as well as the impact of the
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weakening U.S. dollar against most foreign currencies, particularly from Europe. Each of these factors
served to increase net loss reserves in 2004.

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses represent the accumulation of estimates of future
liability occurring on or prior to the balance sheet date. Net losses and loss adjustment expenses are
charged to income as incurred. Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses are principally based on
reports and individual case esiimates received from ceding companies. Standard actuarial
methodologies employed to estimate ultimate losses incorporate the inherent “lag” from the time claims
are reported to the cedant to when the cedant reports the claims to the reinsurer. Certain actuarial
methodologies may be more appropriate than others in instances where this “lag” may not be consistent
from period to period, so additional actuarial judgment is employed in the selection of methodologies to
best incorporate the potential impact of this situation.

A provision is included for IBNR on the basis of past experience and other factors. The methods
used to determine such estimates and to establish the resulting reserves are continually reviewed and
updated. Any adjustments therefrom are reflected in income currently.

TRH believes that its reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses at December 31, 2004
are adequate. While TRH annually reviews the adequacy of established loss reserves, there can be no
assurance that TRH’s ultimate loss reserves will not develop adversely and materially exceed TRH’s
carried loss reserves as of December 31, 2004. In the future, if loss reserves develop deficiently, such
deficiency could have a material adverse impact on future results of operations.

The reserving process is inherently difficult and subjective, especially in view of changes in the legal
and tort environment which impact the development of loss reserves, and therefore quantitative
techniques frequently have to be supplemented by subjective considerations and managerial judgement.
Trends that have affected development of liabilities in the past may not necessarily occur or affect
development to the same degree in the future. While this process is difficult for ceding companies, the
inherent uncertainties of estimating loss reserves are even greater for the reinsurer, due primarily to the
longer term nature of much reinsurance business, the diversity of development patterns among different
types of reinsurance treaties or facultative contracts, the necessary reliance on the ceding companies for
information regarding reported claims and differing reserving practices among ceding companies, which
are subject to change without notice.

During the loss settlement period, which can be many years in duration, additional facts regarding
individual claims and trends usually become known. As these facts and trends emerge, it usually
becomes necessary to refine and adjust the loss reserves upward or downward and even then the
ultimate net liability may be materially different from the revised estimates. (See discussion of adverse
development on losses occurring in prior years under Results of Operations.)

Estimation of ultimate net losses for longer tail casualty reinsurance lines of business is a complex
process whereby numerous judgments and actuarial assumptions are made. For longer tail lines of
business, actuarial assumptions generally are made with respect to the following:

¢ Loss trend factors which are used to establish expected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios
for subsequent accident years based on the projected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios for
prior accident years. Provisions for inflation and social inflation (e.g., awards by judges and juries
which progressively increase in size at a rate exceeding that of general inflation) and trends in
court interpretations of coverage are among the factors which must be considered.

* Expected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios for the latest accident years. The expected loss
and loss adjustment expense ratios generally reflect the projected loss and loss adjustment
expense ratios from prior accident years adjusted for the loss trend (see above) and the impact of
rate changes and other quantifiable factors. For certain longer tail lines of business which are
typically lower frequency, higher severity classes, such as excess medical malpractice and D&O,
expected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios are often utilized for the last several accident
years.

o Loss development factors which are used to project the reported losses for each accident year to
an ultimate basis.

38




A comprehensive annual loss reserve review is conducted in the fourth quarter of each year. These
reviews are conducted in full detail for each class or line of business for each underwriting office. The
purpose of these reviews is to confirm the reasonableness of the carried loss reserve. In the course of
the analysis, the indicated loss reserve need for a class of business (or an underwriting year within a
class of business) is determined either by utilizing a single best estimate that TRH believes is a
reasonable estimate of the required loss reserve or by selecting a range based on ultimate loss
indications from methodologies that are considered to be most appropriate. The addition of these point
estimates and ranges (where they exist) across all years, classes of business and underwriting offices
create a range of estimated loss reserve needs for TRH. This range, determined in the fashion described
above, does not represent all reasonable outcomes. The potential exists for significant variation in the
actual results versus the assumptions used to test loss reserves, particularly for longer tail casualty
reinsurance lines such as excess casualty and D&O. The usefulness of the indicated range is, however,
that the midpoint of the range is thought to be a reasonable estimate of the required loss reserve and
that other amounts within the range would not necessarily be unreasonable. As shown below, a
comparison of the carried net loss reserves as of December 31, 2004 to the midpoint of the range
indicates the carried net loss reserves of $4.98 billion is approximately $37 million above the midpoint of
the range.

Indicated Range of Net Loss Reserves
As of December 31, 2004:

(in millions)
Low High Midpoint Carried

$4,664 $5,224 $4,944 $4,981

There can be no assurances that the net liability will not exceed the high end of this range. Note
that for many classes, a single estimate or a very small range was utilized for the more current
underwriting years’ assessment of ultimate losses incorporated in the range shown. As an example of
the sensitivity of this range to key assumptions, for longer tail casualty classes an increase in the
expected loss and loss adjustment expense ratios for business written since the beginning of 2003 of 5
percentage points would add roughly $150 million to the top of the range. Loss development factors,
which are utilized to project reported losses for each year to an ultimate basis or to determine the
percentage of losses unreported, are another key assumption for longer tail classes, such as excess
casualty and D&O. There can be no assurance that future loss development patterns will follow
historical patterns. Using the longer tail casualty classes again as an example, if future loss development
factors differed by 5% in either direction from those utilized in the 2004 loss reserve review, the impact
would be over $100 million to each end of the range.

Additionally, loss reserves include amounts resulting from the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack
which are principally related to property (including business interruption), other liability, workers’
compensation and aviation coverages. These amounts are subject to significant uncertainty due to a
variety of issues such as coverage disputes, the assignment of liability and a potentially long latency
period for claims due to respiratory disorders and stress. As of December 31, 2004, loss reserves related
to this event totaled $102 million.

Loss reserves include amounts for risks related to environmental impairment and asbestos-related
illnesses totaling $85 million and $75 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, including $23
million and $22 million at the aforementioned dates, respectively, related to losses occurring in 1985 and
prior. As TRC, the major operating subsidiary of the Company, commenced operations in 1978, the
great majority of TRH’s environmental and asbestos-related liabilities arose from contracts entered into
after 1985 that were underwritten specifically as environmental or asbestos-related coverages rather
than as standard general liability coverages, where the environmental or asbestos-related liabilities were
neither clearly defined nor specifically excluded. The reserves carried for these claims, including IBNR,
are based upon known facts and current law. However, significant uncertainty exists in determining the
amount of ultimate liability for environmental impairment and asbestos-related losses, particularly for
those occurring in 1985 and prior. This uncertainty is due to inconsistent court resolutions and judicial
interpretations with respect to underlying policy intent and coverage and uncertainties as to the
allocation of responsibility for resultant damages, among other things.
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Because the reserving process is inherently difficult and subjective, actual net losses and loss
adjustment expenses may materially differ from reserves and related reinsurance recoverables reflected
in TRH’s consolidated financial statements, and accordingly, may have a material effect on future results
of operations. And while there is also the possibility of changes in statutes, laws, regulations and other
factors that could have a material effect on these liabilities and, accordingly, future earnings, TRH
believes that its loss and loss adjustment expense reserves carried at December 31, 2004 are adequate.

In the ordinary course of business, TRH is involved in lawsuits, arbitrations and other formal and
informal dispute resolution procedures, the outcomes of which will determine TRH’ rights and
obligations under reinsurance agreements and other more general contracts. In some disputes, TRH
seeks to enforce its rights under an agreement or to collect funds owing to it. In other matters, TRH is
resisting attempts by others to enforce alleged rights. Such disputes are resolved through formal and
informal means, including litigation, arbitration and mediation.

In all such matters, TRH believes that its positions are legally and commercially reasonable. TRH
also regularly evaluates those positions, and where appropriate, establishes or adjusts loss reserves to
reflect its evaluation. TRH’s aggregate loss reserves take into account the possibility that TRH may not
ultimately prevail in each and every disputed matter. TRH takes into consideration changes in judicial
interpretation of legal liability and policy coverages, changes in claims handling practices and inflation.
TRH considers not only monetary increases in the cost of what it reinsures, but also changes in societal
factors that influence jury verdicts and case law, TRH’s approach to claim resolution, and, in turn, claim
costs. TRH believes its aggregate loss reserves reduce the potential that an adverse resolution of one or
more of these matters, at any point in time, would have a material impact on TRH’s financial condition
or results of operations. However, there can be no assurance that adverse resolutions of such matters in
any one period or in the aggregate will not result in a material adverse effect on TRH’s results of
operations.

For 2004, TRH’s operating cash flows totaled $904.9 million, a slight decrease from 2003. The
decrease was caused largely by increased losses and loss adjustment expenses paid, including 2004
catastrophe losses, and income taxes paid offset, in part, by increased premiums received, net of
commissions, and increased investment income collected.

For 2003, TRH’s operating cash flows of $921.1 million exceeded the comparable 2002 amount of
$598.0 million. The increase was caused largely by increased net premiums written, net of commissions,
partially offset by increased paid losses and loss adjustment expenses and taxes paid.

As significant losses from catastrophes occurring in 2004, the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack
(see Operational Review above) and Enron reinsurance exposure remain unpaid, TRH expects that
payments related to these events may negatively impact cash flows in 2005.

Of total consolidated operating cash flows, $583.7 million, $431.7 million and $229.2 million, were
derived from international operations in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. More than half of such
international operating cash flows was derived from London in each of such years.

TRH believes that its balance of cash and cash equivalents of $143.4 million as of December 31,
2004 and its future cash flows will be sufficient to meet TRH’s cash requirements through the end of
2005 and thereafter for a period the length of which is difficult to predict, but which TRH believes will
be at least one year.

Generally, paid losses have been increasing in more recent years largely as a result of an increase in
the amount of business TRH has written over the past several years. If paid losses accelerated
significantly beyond TRH’s ability to fund such paid losses from current operating cash flows, TRH
would be compelled to liquidate a portion of its investment portfolio and/or arrange for financing. Such
events that may cause such a liquidity strain could be the result of several catastrophic events occurring
in a relatively short period of time. Additional strain on liquidity could occur if the investments sold to
fund such paid losses were sold in a depressed marketplace and/or reinsurance recoverable on such paid
losses became uncollectible.

TRH’s operations are exposed to market risk. Market risk is the risk of loss of fair market value
resulting from adverse fluctuations in interest rates, equity prices and foreign currency exchange rates.
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Measuring potential losses in fair values is a major focus of risk management efforts by many
companies. Such measurements are performed through the application of various statistical techniques.
One such technique is Value at Risk (VaR). VaR is a summary statistical measure that uses changes in
historical interest rates, equity prices and foreign currency exchange rates to calculate the maximum loss
that could occur over a defined period of time given a certain probability.

TRH believes that statistical models alone do not provide a reliable method of monitoring and
controlling market risk. While VaR models are relatively sophisticated, the quantitative market risk
information generated is limited by the assumptions and parameters established in creating the related
models. Therefore, such models are tools and do not substitute for the experience or judgment of senior
management.

TRH has performed VaR anatyses to estimate the maximum potential loss of fair value for financial
instruments for each type of market risk. In this analysis, financial instrument assets include all
investments and cash and accrued investment income. Financial instrument liabilities include unpaid
losses and loss adjustment expenses and unearned premiums, each net of reinsurance. TRH has
calculated the VaR for 2004 and 2003 using historical simulation. The historical simulation methodology
entails re-pricing all assets and liabilities under explicit changes in market rates within a specific
historical time period. In this case, the most recent three years of historical market information for
interest rates, equity index prices and foreign currency exchange rates are used to construct the
historical scenarios. For each scenario, each transaction is re-priced. Consolidated totals are calculated
by netting the values of all the underlying assets and liabilities. The final VaR number represents the
maximum potential loss incurred with 95% confidence (i.e., only 5% of historical scenarios show losses
greater than the VaR figure). A one-month holding period is assumed in computing the VaR figure.

The following table presents the VaR on a combined basis and of each component of market risk
for 2004 and 2003. VaR with respect to combined operations cannot be derived by aggregating the
individual risk amounts presented herein.

2004 2003
Market Risk Year-End  Average High Low  Year-End Average High Low
(in millions)
Combined ............ $186 $181 $198 166  $171 $135  $171  $105
Interest rate.......... 214 206 214 193 198 148 198 104
EQUity......covven.. 65 68 73 63 73 61 73 48
Currency ............. 12 6 12 4 4 4 4 3

TRH’s stockholders’ equity totaled $2.59 billion at December 31, 2004, an increase of $210.5 million
from year-end 2003. The net increase consisted principally of net income of $254.6 million less a

decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income of $25.5 million and cash dividends declared of
$25.5 million.

The decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income consisted principally of the following:
net unrealized depreciation of equities, net of income tax, of $6.9 million, partially offset by net
unrealized appreciation of fixed maturities available for sale, net of income tax, of $2.5 million, and net
unrealized currency translation loss, net of income tax, of $24.1 million, caused, in large part, by the
weakening of the U.S. dollar particularly against certain European currencies.

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments, net of income taxes, is subject to
significant volatility resulting from changes in the market value of fixed maturities and equities available
for sale and other invested assets. Market values may fluctuate due to changes in general economic and
political conditions, market interest rates, prospects of investee companies and other factors.

In May 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a 5-for-4 split of the common stock
in the form of a 25% common stock dividend that was paid on July 16, 2004, to stockholders of record
on June 25, 2004.
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As of December 31, 2004, the amounts of payment due under specified contractual obligations of
TRH are as follows:

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Long-Term Debt..................... $ — % — — 3 — 3 —

Capital Lease Obligations............ — — — — —

Operating Leases .................... 89,094 8,754 15,771 15,298 49,271

Purchase Obligations................. —_ — — — —
Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment

Expenses .........coiiiiiiiiiiiin, 5,941,464 1,621,554 1,853,358 1,096,587 1,369,965

Other Long-Term Liabilities ......... — — — — —

Other(1) ..., 18,706 18,706 — — —

Total ..ot $6,049.264 $1,649,014 $1,869,129 $1,111,885 $1,419,236

(1) Represents commitments to invest in limited partnerships.

With respect to commitments and contingent liabilities, see Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Risk-based capital (RBC) standards, promulgated by the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (NAIC), relate an individual company’s statutory policyholders’ surplus to the risk
inherent in its overall operations and set thresholds at which certain company and regulatory corrective
actions are mandated. At December 31, 2004, the statutory surpluses of TRC and Putnam each
significantly exceeded the level of surplus required under RBC requirements for regulatory attention.

Other Matters

(a) Change in Accounting Principle and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation:

Prior to 2003, TRH had accounted for stock-based compensation based on the intrinsic-value
method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees” and related Interpretations, as permitted under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation.”

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of SFAS
No. 123,” to provide alternative methods (in addition to the prospective method already provided in
SFAS No. 123) of transition for a voluntary change to the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, as
well as to amend certain of its disclosure requirements as reflected in Note 2(i) of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

On January 1, 2003, TRH adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, using the
prospective method of transition. That method requires application of such recognition provisions under
the fair value method to all stock-based compensation awards granted, modified, or settled on or after
the date of adoption of the standard. Accordingly, net income for 2004 and 2003 reflects compensation
expenses, primarily related to stock options, for stock-based compensation awards granted in 2003 and
thereafter. Such expenses are included in the Statement of Operations as a component of other
deductions, net. The impact of adopting the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 was not material to
net income, financial condition or cash flows in 2004 or 2003. Pursuant to APB No. 25, no stock-based
compensation expenses were recognized in 2002. (See Note 2(i) of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.)

While the pro forma impact of applying the recognition provisions to all award grants are disclosed,
the charges to income in 2004 and 2003 resulting from TRH adopting the recognition provisions. of
SFAS No. 123 may not be indicative of future amounts charged to income, as those charges to income
under the prospective method of transition will not reflect costs associated with stock-based
compensation issued or granted prior to January 1, 2003.
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(b) Recent Accounting Standards:

(i) In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payments”
(SFAS No. 123R). SFAS No. 123R replaces SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB No. 25. SFAS No. 123,
as originally issued in 1995, established as preferable a fair-value based method of accounting for share
based payment transactions with employees. As discussed above, on January 1, 2003, TRH adopted the
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 123R requires share based payment transactions
with employees to be accounted for using a fair-value based method and broadens the recognition
provisions to include share based payments awarded to an employee by related parties or other holders
of an economic interest in the reporting entity. SFAS No. 123R will be effective for TRH in the quarter
beginning July 1, 2005. TRH is currently assessing the impact of SFAS No. 123R.

(ii)) At the March 2004 meeting, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a
consensus with respect to Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments.” On September 30, 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
No. 03-1-1, “Effective Date of Paragraphs 10-20 of EITF Issue No. 03-1, ‘The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments™ delaying the effective date of this
guidance until the FASB has resolved certain implementation issues with respect to this guidance. This
delay does not suspend the requirement to recognize other than temporary impairments as required by
existing authoritative literature. The disclosure requirements of EITF Issue No. 03-1 for investments
accounted for under SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities” were previously adopted by TRH as of December 31, 2003. For all other investments within
the scope of EITF Issue No. 03-1, the disclosures are effective for the year ending December 31, 2004.
In accordance with EITF Issue No. 03-1, TRH has provided the information required in Note 3(f) of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Included in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively TRH), is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. TRH’s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of TRH’s principal executive
and principal financial officers to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of TRH’s financial statements for external reporting purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As of the end of TRH’s 2004 fiscal year, management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness
of TRH’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment, management has determined that TRH’ internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 is effective.

TRH’ internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and
dispositions of assets; provide reasonable assurances that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and the directors of TRH; and provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of TRH’s assets
that could have a material effect on TRH’s financial statements.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of TRH’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their report included herein, which expresses unqualified opinions
on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of TRH’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004.

45




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Transatlantic Holdings, Inc.:

We have completed an integrated audit of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc.’s 2004 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its
2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are
presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. and its Subsidiaries at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedules
listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein
when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements
and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 8, that the Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria.
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s
assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control
over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
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recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

‘WM?A/VS—' Lep
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New York, New York
March 15, 2005
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003

(in thousands, except
share data)
ASSETS

Investments and cash:
Fixed maturities:
Held to maturity, at amortized cost (market value: 2004—
$1,120,789; 2003—8634,768) ...\ .veii e $ 1,091,464 §$ 622,620
Available for sale, at market value (amortized cost: 2004—
$5,130,081; 2003-—$4,591,165) (pledged, at market value:

2004—$823,155; 2003—8426,536) ... .t 5,323,722 4,780,919
Equities:
Common stocks available for sale, at market value (cost: 2004—
$565,137; 2003—$495,378) (pledged, at market value: 2004—
$30,228; 2003—3$47,999) . ...t 614,252 555,255
Nonredeemable preferred stocks available for sale, at market
value (cost: 2004—$18,008; 2003—$29,310)..................... 17,948 29,131
Other Invested ASSETS .o u ittt ettt ettt it e et 178,499 183,773
Short-term investment of funds received under securities loan
Y (=T=3 1731 L 875,081 485,869
Short-term investments, at cost which approximates market value .... 42,602 26,711
Cash and cash equivalents................ .o ot 143,435 182,887
Total investments and cash .......... ..o, 8,287,003 6,867,165
Accrued Investment iNCOMIE . ..... vttt ittt eiiiinneenns 94,671 103,646
Premium balances receivable, net ............ ... . i i 647,894 408,029
Reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses:
AL A ... i e e 272,362 221,686
[ 14173 S 704,372 648,227
Deferred acquisition COSES. .. ......iueeret ittt ia e eniineneanen, 203,061 173,612
Prepaid reinsurance premitms .............coiiiiiiiniiiiiii e 97,532 75,515
Deferred INComeE taXeS ..ottt ettt et iee ettt e eitte e iineeeenan 236,710 165,670
10 141 T=5 Q=13 1 - AU 61,687 44208
TOta] BSSEES . vttt ittt et e $10,605,292  $8,707,758
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment eXpenses ..............ccoevevrvnenn.. $ 5,941,464 $4,805,498
Unearned Premilms .. ......uurveeen e tneaninennetietaaeariieneeaniesnn 1,057,265 917,355
Payable under securities loan agreements ..............cooeiiiiiiiiia... 875,081 485,869
Other LHabilities .. ...ttt i e e e e 144,353 122,449
Total Habilities. .. ...t it 8,018,163 6,331,171
Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value; shares authorized: 5,000,000............. — —
Common Stock, $1.00 par value; shares authorized: 100,000,000; shares
issued: 2004—66,711,866; 2003—53,332,678 ... .t 66,712 53,333
Additional paid-in capital ............ . 191,403 196,645
Accumulated other comprehensive income ...t 95,234 120,770
Retained earnings. . ........o.iuiniieiiit it 2,249,393 2,020,282
Treasury Stock, at cost; 2004—=884,100; 2003—864,200 shares of common
SEOCK it e (15,613) (14,443)
Total stockholders’ equity ...........covieiiinriieieanin... 2,587,129 2,376,587
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ..................... $10,605,292  $8,707,758

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Revenues:

Net premiums WIitten........o.vuiiiiiiiii e
Increase in net unearned premiums.......................

Net premiums earned ...
Net investment income ..........coviiiiiiiiiiineninan..
Realized net capital gains (losses) ........................

Expenses:

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses ..................
Net commissions . .........ouiiniiiiiiiiii i
Other underwriting expenses............ovoviinininiennn..
Increase in deferred acquisition costs .....................
Other deductions, net..........ooovriii it

Income before INCome taXes. ...ovvirin it

Income taxes (benefits):

(1116 (=) 1 AP A
Deferred. ...

F (S A 1 oo ) ¢+ L= A

Net income per common share:

BasIC oo
Diluted ..o

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic ...
Diluted ...

2004

2003

2002

(in thousands, except per share data)

$3,749,274  $3,341,077 $2,500,159

(88,184)  (169.851)  (130,707)
3,661,090 3171226  2,369452
306,786 270972 252,026
22,181 9,942 (5,951)
3,990,057 3452,140 2,615,527
2,754,560 2,233,447 1,796,352
910,325 804,680 607,539
72,496 65,525 55,040
(29.449)  (40,645)  (31,821)
5,913 2,459 97
3,713,845 3065466 2,427,207
276212 386,674 188320
78918 110,254 22,352
(57290)  (27,224) (3,350)
21,628 83,030 19,002

$ 254,584 § 303,644 § 169,318

$

464 §
4.60

65,508
65,953

2.59
257

65,378
65,944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
2004 2003 2002

(in thousands, except per share data)

Common Stock:

Balance, beginning of year.................c.oiciiien... $ 53333 § 53225 $ 53,120
Stock split effected as a dividend ......................... 13,152 — —
Issued under stock option and purchase plans ............ 227 108 105
Balance, end of year ............ .. ..ol 66,712 53,333 53,225
Additional paid-in capital:
Balance, beginning of year...............c.ooiiiiilll 196,645 192,141 189,243
Stock split effected as a dividend .................. ... (13,158) — —_
Excess of proceeds over par value of common stock
issued under stock option and purchase plans .......... 5,098 3,464 2,898
Other . oo e 2,818 1,040 —
Balance, end of year ............. ... 191,403 196,645 192,141
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Balance, beginning of year.....................ooiieen 120,770 60,644 27,603
Net change for year ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiinan.. (39,285) 92,501 50,552
Income tax effect on net change.......................... 13,749 (32,375) (17,511)
Balance, end of year ..............coiiiiiii 95,234 120,770 60,644
Retained earnings:
Balance, beginning of year................ ..o 2,020,282 1,739,200 1,590,487
Net INCOMIE ...ttt e e et eennens 254,584 303,644 169,318
Cash dividends declared (per common share: 2004—3$0.39;
2003—3$0.34; 2002—80.32) ..ottt (25,473) (22,562) (20,605)
Balance, end of year .......... ..ot 2,249,393 2,020,282 1,739,200
Treasury Stock:
Balance, beginning of year.................ooeiiiiiiiia (14,443) (14,443) (14,443)
Acquisition of treasury stock ..............ciiiiiiiiin (1,170) —_ —
Balance, end of year ...............oiiiiiiiiin (15,613) (14,443) (14,443)
Total stockholders’ equity .........c.ooeiiiiiiiiiiiiniennen.n. $2,587,129 $2,376,587 $2,030,767

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:

NEt INCOME .ottt ettt ettt $ 254584 $ 303644 $ 169,318
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Changes in unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses, unearned premiums and prepaid

TEINSUTance PIeMIUINS. .. ..ovvrrerenenrrrorenennnnns 1,251,503 972,647 424,600
Changes in premium and reinsurance balances
receivable and payable, net........................ (381,804)  (168,835) 112,420
Change in deferred acquisition costs ................. (29,449) (40,645) (31,821)
Change in accrued investment income ............... (28,562) (35,336) (17,973)
Realized net capital (gains) losses ................... (22,181) (9,942) 5,951
Changes in current and deferred income taxes....... (85,558) 16,472 (11,372)
Change in net unrealized currency translation
AdJUSTMENTt . ..o\t (131,586)  (148,892) (41,345)
Changes in other assets and liabilities, net........... 58,384 18,851 (13,729)
L0173 D T 19,580 13,087 1,915
Total adjustments. .........c.coovveiineninnenann.s 650,327 617,407 428,646
Net cash provided by operating activities........ 904,911 921,051 597,964
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds of fixed maturities available for sale sold....... 656,095 676,701 1,071,013
Proceeds of fixed maturities available for sale redeemed
or matured. ......ovitir e 367,819 337,296 296,357
Proceeds of equities sold ...l 872,900 610,199 655,436
Purchase of fixed maturities held to maturity............. (470,748) (623,953) —
Purchase of fixed maturities available for sale............ (1,496,533) (1,310,482) (1,881,681)
Purchase of equities.............coviiiiiiniiiniinan... (876,074)  (639,294)  (695,699)
Net sale (purchase) of other invested assets.............. 15,678 106,885 (23,948)
Net (purchase) sale of short-term investment of funds
received under securities loan agreements.............. (389,212) (138,222) 85,111
Net purchase of short-term investments .................. (15,891) (8,891) (10,250)
Change in other liabilities for securities in course of
settlement.. ... ... .o e 11,933 (12,285) (6,989)
Other, Met. . .o e 4,007 3,322 14,693
Net cash used in investing activities ............. (1,320,026) (998,724) (495,957)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net funds received (disbursed) under securities loan

F:Ye3 (11113 11 £ 389,212 138,222 (85,111)
Dividends to stockholders .................ccooiiiiiiiaL (24,723) (22,012) (20,505)
Proceeds from common stock issued ..................... 5,325 3,572 3,003
Acquisition of treasury stock ............... ..ol 1,170) — —_
Other, Det ... ..o i e (150) — (1,739)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACHIVILIES ..o\ttt e 368,494 119,782 (104,352)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7,169 13,376 5,533
Change in cash and cash equivalents ............ (39,452) 55,485 3,188
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year................. 182,887 127,402 124,214
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ......... $ 143435 § 182887 §$§ 127,402

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

00 203 2002
(in thousands)
D =T 1T 1+ = $254,584 $303,644 $169,318
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Net unrealized (depreciation) appreciation of investments:
Net unrealized holding gains .................coiiiiiniena 19,925 123,328 11,685
Related income tax effect .......... .o, (6,974) (43,165) (4,090)
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses included in net
FTeLe) 1+ = (22,181)  (9,942) 5,951
Related income tax effect .....................oiiiiian 7,763 3,480 (2,083)
1,467y 73,701 11,463
Net unrealized currency translation (loss) gain .................. (37,029) (20,885) 32,916
Related income tax effect ............... .. it 12,960 7,310 (11,338)
- (24,069) (13,575) 21,578
Other comprehensive (loss) income ..........c.oviviiieiiniienenn.. (25,536) 60,126 33,041
Comprehensive INCOME ..........vuiiiitiuiiiiiiieiiiaaeanaanes $229,048 $363,770 $202,359

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Nature of Operations

Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is a holding company, incorporated in the state of
Delaware, which owns all of the common stock of Transatlantic Reinsurance Company (TRC). TRC
owns all of the common stock of Trans Re Zurich (TRZ) and Putnam Reinsurance Company (Putnam).
As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, American International Group, Inc. (AIG, and collectively,
with its subsidiaries, the AIG Group) beneficially owned approximately 60% of the Company’s
outstanding shares.

Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, TRH), through its operating
subsidiaries TRC, TRZ and Putnam, offers reinsurance capacity for a full range of property and
casualty products to insurers and reinsurers on a treaty and facultative basis, with an emphasis on
specialty classes. Including domestic as well as international risks, TRH’s principal lines of business are
other liability (including directors’ and officers’ liability (D&O) and other professional liability (errors
and omissions coverages (E&O))), auto liability (including non-standard risks), medical malpractice,
ocean marine and aviation, surety and credit and accident and health in the casualty lines, and fire,
allied, homeowners multiple peril and auto physical damage in the property lines (which include
property catastrophe risks). Casualty lines represented 72.4%, 73.5% and 73.9% of net premiums
written in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The balance represented property lines.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP). Certain reclassifications have been made to conform prior years’
presentations with 2004.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

(b) Investments: Fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortized cost if
TRH has the positive intent and ability to hold each of these securities to maturity. The balance of fixed
maturity securities is classified as available-for-sale and carried at market value. As of December 31,
2002, all fixed maturities were classified as available-for-sale and carried at market value. Common and
nonredeemable preferred stocks are carried principally at market value. Market values for fixed
maturity securities and equities are generally based upon quoted market prices. For certain fixed
maturity securities, for which market prices were not readily available, market values were principally
estimated using values obtained from independent pricing services. Other invested assets consist of
investments in limited partnerships, certain of which (those in which TRH holds a 5% or greater
interest) are accounted for under the equity method, and, to a lesser extent, a limited duration bond
fund managed by an AIG subsidiary, which are carried primarily at market value. Short-term
investments are carried at cost, which approximates market value.

TRH engages in securities lending transactions whereby certain securities (i.e., fixed maturities and
common stocks available for sale) from its portfolio are loaned to third parties. In these transactions,
initial collateral, principally cash, is received by TRH in an amount exceeding the market value of the
loaned security. Such funds are held in a pooled account of the lending agent in these transactions (an
AIG subsidiary) and are carried as an investment on the balance sheet (at cost, which approximates
market value). A liability is recorded in an amount equal to the collateral received to recognize TRH'’s
obligation to return such funds when the related loaned securities are returned. The market value of the
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

loaned securities is monitored on a daily basis with additional collateral obtained or refunded as such
value fluctuates. Fees received net of fees paid related to these transactions are recorded in net
investment income.

Realized gains or losses on the sale of investments are determined on the basis of specific
identification. In addition, where the declines in the market value of securities below cost or amortized
cost are considered to be other than temporary, a realized loss is recorded for the difference between
cost or amortized cost and estimated market value of such securities. Except where there has been an
other than temporary impairment of market value, changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of
fixed maturities available for sale, equity investments and certain other invested assets are charged or
credited, net of deferred income taxes, directly to accumulated other comprehensive income (see Note
9), a component of stockholders’ equity. Changes in the carrying value of other invested assets which
are accounted for under the equity method are included as a component of net investment income.
Investment income is recorded as earned. Amortization of fixed maturity premium and the accrual of
fixed maturity discount are charged or credited, respectively, to net investment income.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents generally include cash deposited in
demand deposits at banks and highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.

(d) Deferred Acquisition Costs: Acquisition costs, consisting primarily of net commissions incurred
on business conducted through reinsurance contracts or certificates, are deferred, and then amortized
over the period in which the related premiums are earned, generally one year. Anticipated losses and
loss adjustment expenses and estimated remaining costs of servicing the contracts are considered in the
evaluation of recoverability of acquisition costs to be deferred. Anticipated investment income is not
considered in such evaluation.

(e) Premium Revenues: In recent years, premiums from treaty contracts have approximated 95% of
net premiums written, while facultative contracts have approximated 5%. For pro rata treaty contracts,
premiums written and earned are based on reports received from ceding companies. Generally, for
excess-of-loss treaty contracts, premiums are recorded as written based on contract terms. Premiums are
earned ratably over the term of the related coverages. Unearned premiums and prepaid reinsurance
premiums represent the portion of gross premiums assumed and reinsurance ceded, respectively,
relating to the unexpired terms of such coverages. Premiums written and earned, along with related
costs, for which data has not been reported by the ceding companies, are estimated based on historical
patterns and other relevant information. These estimates are subject to change when actual data for
such items estimated becomes available. In the Consolidated Statements of Operations, premiums
written and earned and the change in unearned premiums are presented net of reinsurance ceded.

(f) Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses: Losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of related
reinsurance recoverable, are charged to income as incurred. Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
are principally based on reports and individual case estimates received from ceding companies. An
amount is included for losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred but not reported (IBNR) on the
basis of past experience. The methods of making such estimates and for establishing the resulting
reserves are continually reviewed and updated, and any adjustments resulting therefrom are reflected in
income currently.

Estimation of loss reserves is a difficult process, especially in view of changes in the legal and tort
environment, which impact the development of loss reserves, and therefore quantitative techniques
frequently have to be supplemented by subjective considerations and managerial judgment. In addition,
trends that have affected development of liabilities in the past may not necessarily occur or affect
liability development to the same degree in the future.

While the reserving process is difficult and subjective for the ceding companies, the inherent
uncertainties of estimating such reserves are even greater for the reinsurer, due primarily to the longer-
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

term nature of most reinsurance business, the diversity of development patterns among different types
of reinsurance treaties or facultative contracts, the necessary reliance on the ceding companies for
information regarding reported claims and differing reserving practices among ceding companies, which
are subject to change without notice. TRH writes a significant amount of non-proportional assumed
casualty reinsurance as well as proportional assumed reinsurance of excess casualty business for classes
such as medical malpractice and D&O. Claims from such classes can exhibit greater volatility over time
than most other classes due to their low frequency, high severity nature and loss cost trends that are
more difficult to predict.

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of related reinsurance recoverables, include
certain amounts for the reinsurance of risks related to environmental impairment and asbestos-related
illnesses. The majority of TRH’ environmental and asbestos-related liabilities arise from contracts
entered into after 1985. These obligations generally arose from contracts underwritten specifically as
environmental or asbestos-related coverages rather than from standard general liability coverages where
the environmental or asbestos-related liabilities were neither clearly defined nor specifically excluded.
The reserves carried at December 31, 2004 for such claims, including IBNR, are based upon known
facts and current law. However, significant uncertainty exists in determining the amount of ultimate
liability for environment impairment and asbestos-related losses, particularly for those occurring in 1985
and prior. This uncertainty is due to inconsistent court resolutions and judicial interpretations with
respect to underlying policy intent and coverage and uncertainties as to the allocation of responsibility
for resultant damages, among other things. Further, there is always the possibility of changes in statutes,
laws, regulations and other factors that could have a material effect on these liabilities and, accordingly,
future earnings.

Additionally, unpaid loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, net of related reinsurance
recoverables, include amounts resulting from the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack which are
principally related to property (including business interruption), other liability, workers’ compensation
and aviation coverages. These amounts are subject to significant uncertainty due to a variety of issues
such as coverage disputes, the assignment of liability and a potentially long latency period for claims
due to respiratory disorders and stress.

(g) Deferred Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are provided for the expected tax effect of
temporary differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities used for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used in tax returns.

(h) Currency Translation: Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates. Income and expense accounts are translated at average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting net unrealized currency translation gain (loss) for functional
currencies is reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of stockholders’
equity.

Transaction gains and losses on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reflected
in results of operations during the period in which they occur.

(i) Change in Accounting Principle and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation: Prior to 2003,
TRH had accounted for stock-based compensation based on the intrinsic-value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and
related Interpretations, as permitted under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of SFAS
No. 123,” to provide alternative methods (in addition to the prospective method already provided in
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

SFAS No. 123) of transition for a voluntary change to the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, as
well as to amend certain of its disclosure requirements as reflected in the table below.

On January 1, 2003, TRH adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, using the
prospective method of transition. That method requires application of such recognition provisions under
the fair value method to ali stock-based compensation awards granted, modified, or settled on or after
the date of adoption of the standard. Accordingly, net income for 2004 and 2003 reflects compensation
expenses, primarily related to stock options, for stock-based compensation awards granted in 2003 and
thereafter. Such expenses are included in the Statement of Operations as a component of other
deductions, net. The impact of adopting the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 was not material to
net income, financial condition or cash flows in 2004 or 2003. Pursuant to APB No. 25, no stock-based
compensation expenses were recognized in 2002. Had compensation cost been charged to earnings in
accordance with the fair value based method as prescribed in SFAS No. 123 for all outstanding stock-
based compensation awards (occurring both before and after adoption of the recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123), TRH’s net income and net income per common share (on a pro forma basis) would
have been as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
004 2003 2002

(in thousands, except
per share data)

Net income: .
AS TEPOITEA. . oot ittt ettt ettt et e e e, $254,584 $303,644 $169,318
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in
reported net income, net of related tax effects .............. 2,200 868 —

Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of related
taxX effeCtS oo e (4,651) (3,968) (3,134)

Proforma ... ... $252,133  $300,544 $166,184

Net income per common share (split-adjusted):
As reported:

BasiC .ot e e $ 387 $§ 464 § 259

Diluted . ..o e 3.85 4.60 2.57
Pro forma:

BasiC .o e e e 3.84 4.59 2.54

Diluted . .o e e 381 4.56 2.52

While the pro forma impact of applying the recognition provisions to all award grants are disclosed,
the charges to income in 2004 and 2003 resulting from TRH adopting the recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123 may not be indicative of future amounts charged to income, as those charges to income
under the prospective method of transition will not reflect costs associated with stock-based
compensation issued or granted prior to January 1, 2003.

(i) Recent Accounting Standards:

(i) In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payments”
(SFAS No. 123R). SFAS No. 123R replaces SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB No. 25. SFAS No. 123,
as originally issued in 1995, established as preferable a fair-value based method of accounting for share
based payment transactions with employees. As discussed above, on January 1, 2003, TRH adopted the
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 123R requires share based payment transactions
with employees to be accounted for using a fair-value based method and broadens the recognition
provisions to include share based payments awarded to an employee by related parties or other holders
of an economic interest in the reporting entity. SFAS No. 123R will be effective for TRH in the quarter
beginning July 1, 2005. TRH is currently assessing the impact of SFAS No. 123R.
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(ii)) At the March 2004 meeting, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a
consensus with respect to Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments.” On September 30, 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
No. 03-1-1, “Effective Date of Paragraphs 10-20 of EITF Issue No. 03-1, ‘The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments™ delaying the effective date of this
guidance until the FASB has resolved certain implementation issues with respect to this guidance. This
delay does not suspend the requirement to recognize other than temporary impairments as required by
existing authoritative literature. The disclosure requirements of EITF Issue No. 03-1 for investments
accounted for under SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities” were previously adopted by TRH as of December 31, 2003. For all other investments within
the scope of EITF Issue No. 03-1, the disclosures are effective for the year ending December 31, 2004.
In accordance with EITF Issue No. 03-1, TRH has provided the information required in Note 3(f).

3. Investments
(a) Statutory Deposits: Investments, the substantial majority of which are fixed maturities and
common stocks available for sale, were deposited with governmental authorities as required by law and
amounted to approximately $239 million and $187 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
(b) Net Investment Income: An analysis of net investment income of TRH follows:
Years Ended December 31,

w4 203 20
(in thousands)

Fixed maturities ... ...ooooiii i i e e $270,837 $231,656 $210,548
EqQUIties ..ot e 25,401 23,360 21,822
L 11113 PP 19,757 23,023 24,807
Total investment INCOME . .....ovvevire i it nireanrennns 315995 278,039 257177
INVeStment EXPEeNSES. ... vvvu ettt et e (9,209) (7,067) (5,151)
Net investment INCOME ........c.oviuerreeenrrnnrenireannronnns $306,786 $270,972 $252,026

(c) Investment Gains and Losses: Realized net capital gains (losses) and the change in net
unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments are summarized as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
" (in thousands)

Realized net capital gains (losses):

Fixed maturities(1) .......oooiiii e $ 3,628 $ 29,655 § 63,563
EQUities(2) oot e 25,007  (19,745) (69,788)
Other(3) o et e e (6,454) 32 274

TOtalS . . et e $ 22181 $§ 9942 § (5951)

Change in net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of
investments:(4)

Fixed maturities carried at amortized cost...................... $17176 §$ 12,148 §$ —
Fixed maturities carried at market ......... ... .o, 3,887 9,619 77,108
EQUILIES .+ v ettt e et e e e e (10,642) 103,772 (59,759)
OERET « et e e e 4,499 (4) 287

TOtalS. ..o e e $ 14920 $125,535 §$ 17,636

(1) Includes write-downs for other than temporary declines in market value of $4,635,000 and $1,783,000 for 2003 and 2002,
respectively. There were no write-downs for other than temporary declines in market value in 2004.

(2) Includes write-downs for other than temporary declines in market value of $6,092,000 and $12,122,000 for 2003 and 2002,
respectively. There were no write-downs for other than temporary declines in market value in 2004,

(footnotes continued on next page)
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(footnotes from previous page)

(3) Includes write-downs for other than temporary declines in market value of $6,241,000 for 2004. There were no write-downs
for other than temporary declines in market value in 2003 or 2002.

(4) Before deferred income tax effect.

(d) Fixed Maturities: The amortized cost and market value of fixed maturities at December 31,

2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows:

Amortized Gross Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses(1) Market Value
(in thousands)

2004

Fixed maturities held to maturity and carried at
amortized cost:

States, foreign and domestic municipalities and
political subdivisions ...............oooiii $1,091,464 $ 30,156 $ 831 $1,120,789

Fixed maturities available for sale and carried at
market value:

U.S. Government and government agencies ....... $ 249647 $ 2,457 $1,703 $ 250,401
States, foreign and domestic municipalities and
political subdivisions .............coiiiiiiiiiiin. 3,210,114 165,279 1,036 3,374,357
Foreign governments ...........c.ovvieiiieneennnnn. 185,133 1,928 339 186,722
COTPOTALE . .o eie ettt e e 1,485,187 30,461 3,406 1,512,242
Totals. ... $5,130,081 $200,125 $6,484 $5,323,722

Amortized Gross Unrealized
Cost Gains  Losses(1) Market Value
(in thousands)

2003

Fixed maturities held to maturity and carried at
amortized cost:

States, foreign and domestic municipalities and
political subdivisions .............. ... $ 622,620 $ 14,041 $1.893 $§ 634,768

Fixed maturities available for sale and carried at
market value:

U.S. Government and government agencies ......... $ 275765 $ 5314 $1,581 § 279,498
States, foreign and domestic municipalities and
political subdivisions ............... ... ...l 3,137,895 164,722 1,424 3,301,193
Foreign governments ...........c..coeeivvununnenenn. 140,260 1,584 570 141,274
COTporate .. ..o.oii e e 1,037,245 25,445 3,736 1,058,954
Totals ..ot e $4,591,165 $197,065 $7311  $4,780,919

(1) See Note 3(f) for additional information about gross unrealized losses as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

The amortized cost and market value of fixed maturities at December 31, 2004 by contractual
maturity are as follows. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
Investments in fixed maturities exclude short-term investments.
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Amortized
Cost Market Value
(in thousands)
Fixed maturities held to maturity:

Due after five years through ten years ....................ooiiane. $ 733201 $§ 752,442
Due after ten years ... e 358,263 368,347

TOtals . o e $1,091,464  $1,120,789

Fixed maturities available for sale:

Due in one year Or 188 ... .vuiuiie ittt e i iianenaranns $ 351,127 $ 356,306
Due after one year through five years................ccoviiiennaonn. 1,546,612 1,597,613
Due after five vears through ten years ..........cooiiiiiiiiaeacannnn. 1,634,619 1,683,150
Due after ten Years .........ouiviiiiiit it 1,597,723 1,686,653

TOtalS L o e $5,130,081  $5,323,722

Gross gains of $8,254,000, $39,999,000 and $76,037,000 and gross losses of $5,085,000, $6,289,000
and $11,146,000 were realized on sales of investments in fixed maturities available for sale in 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

(e) Egquities: Gross gains of $58,345,000, $39,784,000 and $45,978,000 and gross losses of
$33,338,000, $53,437,000 and $103,644,000 were realized on sales of equities in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, net unrealized appreciation of equities (before applicable
income taxes) included gross gains of $52,379,000 and $61,521,000 and gross losses of $3,323,000 and
$1,823,000, respectively. (See Note 3(f) for additional information about gross unrealized losses as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003.)

(f) Additional Information on Gross Unrealized Losses on Fixed Maturities and Equities: As of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, TRH’s aggregate gross unrealized losses on all fixed maturities and
equities totaled $10,638,000 and $11,027,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, no single
issuer accounted for more than 15% and 9%, respectively, of the aggregate gross unrealized losses. As
of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the aging of the gross unrealized losses with respect to fixed maturities
and equities, grouped by percentage of gross unrealized loss (the extent by which the market value is
less than amortized cost or cost) relative to cost, including the number of respective items, was as
follows:

59




TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

3. Investments (Continued)

2004
Less than or Equal to Greater than 20% to Greater than 50% of
20% of Cost(1) 50% of Cost(1) Cost(1) Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Months in a Continuous Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized
Unrealized Loss Position Value Loss Items Value Loss Items Value Loss Items  Value Loss Items

(dollars in thousands)

Total Fixed Maturities

0-6. 0 i $366,284 § 2,029 68 § — $ — — $— $ — —  $366,284 § 2,029 68
6-12 .. 166,208 3,354 27 — — — — — — 166,208 3,354 27
>12 e 192,409 1,932 _Q = = = = = — 192,409 ﬂ 2
Total ........... ... $724901 § 7,315 _I_E $ — $ — — t $ — — $724901 § 7,315 l&
Equities
0-6 ... $ 56,087 $ 2,543 45  $1,003 $534 3 $— $ — — $57,090 § 3,077 48
6-12 .. 10,581 246 1 — —_ — — —_ — 10,581 246 1
S12 — —_ — __ = _— - T _— - —_ —_— _—
Total .................. $ 66,668 § 2,789 iS $1,003 $534 _3 $— $ — — $ 67,671 $ 3323 _ﬁ
Total Fixed Maturities
and Equities
0-6 i $422371 $ 4572 113 §$1,003 $534 3 $— $ — — $423374 $ 5106 116
6-12 . 176,789 3,600 28 — — — — — — 176,789 3,600 28
12 192,409 1,932 _12 - = - = = — 192,409 1,932 L9
Total .................. $791,569 $10,104 @ $1,003 $534 _3: $__—_ $ — - $792,572  $10,638 @
2003
Less than or Equal to Greater than 20% to Greater than 50% of
20% of Cost(1) 50% of Cost(1) Cost(1) Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Months in a Continuous Market  Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market  Unrealized
Unrealized Loss Position Value Loss Items Value Loss Items Value Loss Items  Value Loss Items
(dollars in thousands)
Total Fixed Maturities
0-6.... $467,914 § 6,984 82 § — $ — — $— $ — —  $467,914 § 6,984 82
6-12 .. 171,653 2,192 21 — — — — — — 171,653 2,192 21
S12 14,660 28 _31 — — — = — - 14,660 28 _3
Total .................. $654227 § 9,204 @ $ — $ — — §: $ — — $654,227 $ 9,204 @
Equities
0-6 .o $ 33,526 % 1,360 33 $217 $111 2 $34 $122 2 $33777 $ 1593 37
6-12 .0 3,101 227 2 5 3 1 — — — 3,106 230 3
S12 oo — - = — — — = — = — - =
Total .................. $ 36,627 §$ 1,587 _ig $222 $114 _?_ $_3£ $122 _2 $ 36,883 $ 1,823 ﬂ
Total Fixed Maturities
and Equities
0-6 . $501,440 $ 8,344 115 3217 $111 2 $34 $122 2 $501,691 § 8577 119
6-12 .. 174,754 2,419 23 5 3 1 —_ — — 174,759 2,422 24
>12 e 14,660 28 ___3 — — - = — — 14,660 28 __3
Total .................. $690,854  $10,791 _lﬁl $222 $114 _3 $3_4 $122 _z $691,110 $11,027 E_6

(1) For fixed maturities, represents amortized cost.
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At December 31, 2004 and 2003 the gross unrealized losses for fixed maturities and equities
included the following concentrations:

2004
Gross
Concentration Unrealized Losses
(in thousands)
States, foreign and domestic municipalities and political subdivisions ............... $ 1,867
U.S. Government and government agencies ........c.veueenerieniineninneneenenen. 1,777
1 1<) 4~ 1,733
O e Lt i e s 5,261
FOtal L e $10,638
2003
Gross
Concentration Unrealized Losses
(in thousands)
States, foreign and domestic municipalities and political subdivisions ............... $ 3,317
Banking and financial institutions .......... ..o e 3,230
U.S. Government and government agencies .............cooveiiiiniuieiiiinieannenn. 1,735
L 11415 2,745
0 7 N $11,027

The market value of fixed maturities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
by contractual maturity, is shown below:

2004
Market Value
(in thousands)
Due in one year or less........... P $ 64,996
Due after one year through five years ........ .. .. .o i 300,855
Due after five years through ten years............c.oiiiiiiii i, 292,590
Due after ten Years . ... .o ettt e e 66,460
5 1 $724,901
2003
Market Value
(in thousands)
Due In ONe Jear OF 188 . .. .ttt e $ 6,052
Due after one year through five vears ...........ivviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieii e, 164,063
Due after five years through ten years..............ooiiiiiiiiii i 259,016
Due after ten YeaTS ... ..vtt ettt e e s 224,496
8 ] 7Y $654,227

4. Income Taxes

(a) The Company files a U.S. consolidated federal income tax return with its domestic subsidiaries,
TRC (which includes foreign operations) and Putnam. TRC will also include as part of its taxable
income those items of income of the non-U.S. subsidiary, TRZ, which are subject to U.S. income tax
currently, pursuant to Subpart F income rules of the Internal Revenue Code, and included, as
appropriate, in the consolidated federal income tax return.
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The U.S. federal income tax rate was 35% for 2004, 2003 and 2002. Actual tax expense on income
before income taxes differs from the “expected” amount computed by applying the U.S. federal income

tax rate because of the following:
Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Income Before Income Before Income Before

Amount Income Taxes Amount Income Taxes Amount Income Taxes
(doliars in thousands)

“Expected” tax expense........... $96,674 350%  $135336 350%  $ 65,912 35.0%
Adjustments:
Tax-exempt interest........... (57,088) (20.7) (48,848) (12.6) (41,128) (21.8)
Dividends received deduction (3,285) 1.2) (2,707) (0.7) (2,083) (1.1
Benefit from amended tax
TELUINS ..oovervranranrnnnns (10,886) 3.9 — — — —
Other...........coovviivvenn.. (3,787) (1.4) (751) (0.2) (3,699) (2.0)
Actual tax expense....... $21,628 78% § 83,030 21.5% $ 19,002 10.1%

Foreign and domestic components
of actual tax expense (benefit):

Foreign ..............cooene. $13,079 $ 19,310 $ 5276

Domestic:..........cooovinin.
Current .................. 65,839 90,944 17,076
Deferred .......c......... (57,290) (27,224) (3.350)
$21,628 $ 83,030 $ 19,002

Deferred income taxes in 2004 include a benefit for tax refund claims from amended tax returns
totaling $10.9 million. These claims primarily resulted from TRH’s ability to recover taxes through the
utilization of foreign tax credit carry backs.

(b) The components of the net deferred income tax asset at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as

follows:
2004 2003

(in thousands)
Deferred income tax assets:
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of related reinsurance

FECOVETADIE ittt i e e $283,248 $230,156
Unearned premiums, net of prepaid reinsurance premiums ............... 67,181 58,929
Cumulative translation adjustment ........... ... il 35,314 22,354
Benefit from amended tax Teturns ......... ..ottt e 10,886 —
L 14 7 S 14,099 12,849

Total deferred income tax assets ............ £ 410,728 324,288
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Deferred acquiSition COSES........ouiiiritiiiiiiiiii e 71,071 60,764

Net unrealized appreciation of investments ..................oovevuiene... 86,594 87,384

114 1=3 P 16,353 10,470

Total deferred income tax labilities ...........covviinriiiinnn, 174,018 158,618

Net deferred INCOME taX ASSEL........uvvreirrenrenrinnrenneineainnnns $236,710 $165,670

No valuation allowance has been recorded.

(c) Income tax payments, net of recoveries of income taxes previously paid, as applicable, totaled
$105,315,000, $66,168,000 and $29,962,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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5. Liability for Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Activity in the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses is summarized as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

At beginning of year:

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses .............. $4,805,498 34,032,584 $3,747,583
Less reinsurance recoverable.............................. 849,078 774,678 838,696
Net unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses...... 3,956,420 3257906 2,908,887

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred in respect
of losses occurring in:

CUITENT YEAT . ..ottt ittt it irae i eeenias 2,437,178 1,910,860 1,457,226
D34 oTe) g Z=T: £ 317,382 322,587 339,126
Total .ot e e 2,754,560 2233447 1,796,352

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses paid in respect of
losses occurring in:

CUITENT VEAT . o oottt ettt et e et i et eeeaneernens 640,313 477,619 413,759
Prior years . ........iuvreeie it e 1,090,058 1,057,314 1,033,574
Total oo e e e 1,730,371 1,534,933 1,447,333

At end of year:
Net unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses .......... 4,980,609 3956420 3,257,906
Plus remnsurance recoverable ........... ... ... i, 960,855 849,078 774,678
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses.......... $5,941,464 $4,805498 $4,032,584

The year 2004 included $215.0 million of catastrophe losses related to Hurricanes Charley, Frances,
Ivan and Jeanne, that affected the Southeastern United States and the Caribbean, typhoons that
affected Japan and the tsunami which principally affected South Asia. In addition, as a result of net
increases in estimates of losses occurring in prior years, net losses and loss adjustment expenses were
increased by $317.4 million in 2004. As a result of greater than expected reported loss activity in 2004,
indicating that TRH’s estimates as of the end of 2003 of the ultimate amounts of losses occurring in 2003
and prior required a net increase, significant net adverse development was recorded in 2004. The vast
majority of such adverse development relates to other liability, including certain specialty casualty
classes such as D&O and E&O, and medical malpractice lines for losses cccurring between 1998 and
2001, principally in domestic and, to a lesser extent, London operations. These increases to incurred
losses were offset, in part, by favorable development across most lines on losses occurring in 2003 and,
to a lesser extent, on losses occurring during 2002 in other liability, aircraft and fire lines.

TRH writes a significant amount of non-proportional assumed casualty reinsurance as well as
proportional assumed reinsurance of excess casualty business for such volatile classes as medical
malpractice and D&O. At the primary level, there are significant risk factors which contribute to the
variability and unpredictability of the loss trend factors for this business such as jury awards, social
inflation, medical inflation, tort reforms and court interpretations of coverage. In addition, as a
reinsurer, TRH is also highly dependant upon claims reserving and reporting practices of its cedants,
which vary greatly by size, specialization and country of origin and whose practices are subject to
change without notice.

There were no significant catastrophe losses occurring during 2003. In addition, as a result of net
increases in estimates of losses occurring in prior years, net losses and loss adjustment expenses were
increased by $322.6 million in 2003. As a result of greater than expected reported loss activity in 2003,
indicating that TRH’s estimates as of the end of 2002 of the ultimate amounts of losses occurring in 2002
and prior years required a net increase, significant adverse development was recorded in 2003 on losses
occurring between 1998 and 2000 in certain casualty lines, principally in domestic and, to a lesser extent,
London branch operations. Such lines included other liability (a portion of which represents certain
specialty casualty classes such as D&O and E&OQO), medical malpractice and, to a lesser extent, surety
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and fidelity lines. These increases to incurred losses were offset, in small part, by favorable development
on losses occurring in 2001 and 2002 in fire and allied lines and, in 2002 only, in other liability lines.

There were no significant catastrophe losses occurring during 2002. In addition, as a result of net
increases in estimates of losses occurring in prior years, net losses and loss adjustment expenses were
increased by $339.1 million in 2002, Of this amount, in the fourth quarter of 2002, TRH recorded an
increase to net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves of $100 million, resulting in a $65 million after-
tax charge to net income. Such net adjustment was largely caused by the impact of losses principally
occurring between 1998 and 2000 in certain casualty lines. Such lines include other liability (a portion of
which represents certain specialty casualty classes such as D&O and E&O), medical malpractice and
surety. This fourth quarter reserve adjustment was based primarily on an unexpected increase in the
frequency and severity of reported claims late in the year reflecting industry-wide trends. In addition, as
a result of greater than expected reported loss activity in 2002, indicating that TRH’s estimates as of the
end of 2001 of the ultimate amounts of losses occurring in 2001 and prior years required a further net
increase, significant adverse development was also recorded in 2002 on losses occurring in 1998 through
2001 in the auto liability and aviation lines and in 1999 through 2001 in the accident and health line.
These increases to incurred losses were partially offset by favorable development on losses occurring in
2001, principally in fire and allied lines and other liability lines.

6. Common Stock

Common stock activity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 was as
follows:

2004 2003 2002
Shares outstanding, beginning of year ......................... 52,468,478 52,360,949 52,255,745
Issued under stock option and purchase plans................. 227,515 107,529 105,204
Stock split effected as a dividend ..................ooiiiL 13,151,673 — —
Acquisition of treasury stock ...l (19,900) — —
Shares outstanding, end of year ............... ... ...l 65,827,766 52,468 478 52,360,949

As a result of a 5-for-4 common stock split in the form of a 25% stock dividend, common stock
increased by $13.2 million and additional paid-in capital decreased by $13.2 million in 2004. This stock
split was paid on July 16, 2004 to holders of record on June 25, 2004.

7. Net Income Per Common Share

Net income per common share has been computed in the following table based upon weighted
average common shares outstanding. Share and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted, as
appropriate, to reflect a 5-for-4 split of the common stock in the form of a 25% stock dividend, paid in

July 2004.
Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)
Net income (NUMETAtOr). ......vuutneent et enernernennns $254,584 $303,644 $169,318
Weighted average common shares outstanding used in the
computation of net income per common share:
Average shares issued. ..o 66,597 66,372 66,242
Less: Average shares in treasury..............ooooiiiiiiinn, 866 864 864
Average outstanding shares—basic {denominator)............ 65,731 65,508 65,378
Average potential shares, principally stock options(1) ........ 458 445 566
Average outstanding shares—diluted (denominator).......... 66,189 65,953 65,944
Net income per common share:
BasiC ot e e $ 387 § 464 $ 2359
Diluted ... .o e 3.85 4.60 2.57

(1) Excludes the immaterial effect of pro rated anti-dilutive potential shares in each of the years included in the table.

64



TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

8. Impact of 2004 Catastrophe Losses

Net income for 2004 includes aggregate estimated pre-tax catastrophe losses of $215.0 million, or
$139.7 million after tax, arising principally from hurricanes in the United States and the Caribbean,
typhoons in Japan, and the tsunami primarily affecting South Asia. The losses recorded for these events
represent TRH’s estimate of aggregate ultimate losses based upon information presently available. The
estimated pre-tax catastrophe losses consist of gross incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses of
approximately $270 million less related reinsurance ceded of approximately $55 million. (See Note 15
for catastrophe loss information by segment.)

9. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income and changes in such amounts
between years are as follows:

Net
Net Unre:lized
Unrealized Currency Accumulated
Appreciation Translation Other
of Investments, Loss, Comprehensive
Net of Income Tax Net of Income Tax Income
(in thousands)
Balance, December 31, 2001 ........................ $ 77,121 $(49,518) $ 27,603
Change during year...............coiviiiiiniin.n. 11,463 21,578 33,041
Balance, December 31, 2002 ...t 88,584 (27,940) 60,644
Change during year................cooiiiiiiin., 73,701 (13,575) 60,126
Balance, December 31, 2003 ........................ 162,285 (41,515) 120,770
Change during year..............ooiiiiiiiniiann, (1,467) (24,069) (25,536)
Balance, December 31, 2004 ..........ivveiinnnt. $160,818 $(65,584) $ 95,234

10. Pension, Savings and Stock Incentive Plans

TRH’s employees participate in benefit plans administered by the AIG Group (see Note 11),
including a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan, an employee stock purchase plan, a stock
incentive plan and a voluntary savings plan (a 401(k) plan) which provides for certain matching
contributions. A substantial majority of TRH’s employees are eligible to participate in these plans.
Certain of these plans do not separately identify plan benefits and plan assets attributable to employees
of participating companies. In the opinion of management, no material additional liability would accrue
to TRH were such plan benefits and plan assets identifiable.

In addition, under TRH’ 1990 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended, full-time employees
with at least one year of employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries are eligible to receive
privileges to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at a price which is 85% of the fair market
value of such stock on the date of subscription. An aggregate of 1,406,250 shares of common stock has
been authorized for subscription and 1,808 shares were purchased under the plan in 2004.

In 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and the stockholders approved the “2003 Stock
Incentive Plan” (the TRH Stock Incentive Plan). This plan provides that equity-based or equity-related
awards with respect to up to a maximum of 625,000 shares of the Company’s common stock can be
granted to officers, directors, employees, and other individuals as determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, except that no award may be made to directors who are not employees of the Company
without stockholder approval. Pursuant to the TRH Stock Incentive Plan, no grantee may receive
awards covering more than 31,250 shares of the Company’s common stock in any one year. During 2004,
the Company granted restricted stock units (TRH RSU) relating to 32,430 shares of common stock.
TRH RSUs will vest on the fourth anniversary of the date of grant for those grantees with continued
employment through such date. The Company reserves the right to make payment for the TRH RSUs
in shares of common stock or the cash equivalent of the market value of such shares on the date of
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vesting. At December 31, 2004, there were 584,445 shares of common stock reserved for issuance in
connection with future grants of awards under the TRH Stock Incentive Plan.

In 2002 only, certain TRH employees were granted AIG restricted stock units (AIG RSU) under
the AIG 2002 Stock Incentive Plan. AIG granted AIG RSUs relating to 5,050 shares of AIG common
stock to certain TRH employees. Four years after the grant date of AIG RSUs, those AIG RSU
recipients who remain employed by TRH will receive shares of AIG common stock or equivalent
compensation.

The charges made to operations for these plans for 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $3,682,000,
$4,243,000, and $3,011,000, respectively.

11. Stock Option Plans

In 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted, and the stockholders approved, the
“Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan” (the 2000 Plan). This plan provides that options
may be granted to certain key employees and non-employee directors to purchase a maximum of
2,812,500 shares of the Company’s common stock at prices not less than their fair market value at the
date of grant. At December 31, 2004, 940,828 shares were reserved for future grants under the 2000
Plan. The 2000 Plan also provides that 25% of the options granted become exercisable on the
anniversary date of the grant in each of the four years following the grant and expire 10 years from the
date of grant. The Company also maintains the “Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan”
(the 1995 Plan) and the “Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 1990 Stock Option Plan” (the 1990 Plan). The
1995 Plan and the 1990 Plan operate under substantially similar terms to the 2000 Plan, except that non-
employee directors were not covered under the 1990 Plan. No further options can be granted under the
1995 Plan nor the 1990 Plan, although options outstanding continue in force until exercise, expiration or
forfeiture. All data in this footnote have been adjusted, as appropriate, for stock splits. (See Note 2(i)
for the determination of pro forma net income had compensation cost been charged to income in
accordance with the fair value method discussed in SFAS No. 123.)

In each of 1994 and 1992, the Stock Option Plan Committee granted 56,250 options to certain non-
employee directors of the Company, who were directors, officers and employees of AIG, to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock at $18.13 per share and $18.67 per share, respectively. Such
options were granted outside of, but on substantially the same terms and conditions as, the 1990 Plan.
During 2002, all such options granted in 1992 were exercised, and none remain outstanding. During
2004, all such options granted in 1994 were exercised, and none remain outstanding. The impact of these
options on the financial statements is not material.

A summary of the combined status of the 2000 Plan, the 1995 Plan and the 1990 Plan (collectively,
the Company Plans) as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and changes during the years ended on

those dates is presented below:

2004 2003 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average Number Average
of Shares Exercise Price of Shares [Exercise Price of Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding, beginning of year 2,714,780 $47.90 2,215,413 $43.78 2,006,637 $41.40
Granted ..................... 333,250 60.34 677,000 57.79 311,187 55.70
Exercised .................... (272,114) 30.14 (145,646) 29.51 (82,090) 28.90
Forfeited..................... (17,589) 60.44 (31,987) 55.91 (20,321) 52.01
Outstanding, end of year .... 2,758,327 51.07 2,714,780 47.90 2,215,413 43.78
Exercisable, end of year ..... 1,717,776 $46.13 1,609,482 $40.55 1,470,962 $36.75
Weighted average fair value
of options granted during
the year ................... $15.47 $14.27 $13.72
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11. Stock Option Plans (Continued)

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the “Binomial Option
Price Model” with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively: expected volatility of 18.1%, 20.0% and 20.0%; risk-free interest rates of 4.1%, 3.6% and
3.6%; and expected lives of 7.7 years, 6.5 years and 6.3 years. An increasing dividend schedule is used in
the binomial model based on historical experience.

The following table summarizes information about the Company Plans’ outstanding and exercisable
options at December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Number  Contractual Average Number Average

Exercise Prices of Shares Life Exercise Price  of Shares Exercise Price

$2453 t0 $27.38 ... 296,649 1.7 years $26.61 296,649 $26.61
$3833 10 $40.80 ...l 623,905 4.0 39.87 623,905 39.87
$50.80 to $55.70 ..., 892,854 7.3 53.04 520,192 5243
$60.34 to $72.79 ... 944,919 8.8 64.28 277,030 69.28
$2453 t0 $72.79 ... 2,758,327 6.5 51.07 1,717,776 46.13

12. Related Party Transactions

(a) Transactions with the AIG Group: As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, AIG beneficially
owned approximately 60% of the Company’s outstanding shares.

TRH has service and expense agreements and certain other agreements with the AIG Group which
provide for the reimbursement to the AIG Group of certain administrative and operating expenses
which include, but are not limited to, investment advisory and cash management services, office space
and human resource related activities. Under the guidance of TRH’s Finance Committee of the Board
of Directors and senior management, certain subsidiaries of AIG act as financial advisors and managers
of TRH’s investment portfolio. In 2004, 2003 and 2002, $11,000,000, $9,100,000 and $8,200,000,
respectively, of operating and investment expenses relate to services and expenses provided by the AIG
Group under these agreements.

Approximately $639 million (15%), $633 million (17%) and $395 million (13%) of gross premiums
written by TRH in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were attributable to reinsurance purchased by
other subsidiaries of AIG, for the production of which TRH paid ceding commissions totaling $122
million, $167 million and $88 million, respectively, in such years. (The amounts discussed in the
preceding sentence include transactions with C.V. Starr & Co., Inc. (Starr) as described in Note 12(b).)
The great majority of such gross premiums written were recorded in the auto liability, property, other
liability, ocean marine and aviation and, for 2004 only, medical malpractice lines. Of the premiums
assumed from other subsidiaries of AIG, $306 million, $294 million and $162 million in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively, represent premiums resulting from certain insurance business written by AIG
subsidiaries that, by prearrangement with TRH, is almost entirely reinsured by TRH, for the production
of which TRH paid ceding commissions to such AIG subsidiaries totaling approximately $40 million,
$83 million and $31 million, respectively, in such years. (See Note 14 for information relating to
reinsurance ceded to related parties.)

(b) Transactions with Starr: Starr owned approximately 1.8% of AIG’ outstanding common stock
at January 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. As of such dates, certain directors of TRH were also stockholders,
executive officers or directors of Starr.
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Certain of Starr’s subsidiaries operate as insurance agencies or brokers for insurance subsidiaries of
AIG and, in such capacity, produce reinsurance business for TRH. TRH paid commissions to Starr
subsidiaries of $12 million, $8 million and $4 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for such
reinsurance purchased by subsidiaries of AIG totaling $56 million, $43 million and $30 million,
respectively, in such years. From these commissions, Starr is required to pay its operating and
acquisition expenses.

13. Dividend Restriction and Statutory Financial Data

The payment of dividends by the Company is dependent on the ability of its subsidiaries to pay
dividends. The payment of dividends by TRC and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, TRZ and Putnam, is
restricted by insurance regulations. Under New York insurance law, TRC and Putnam may pay
dividends only out of their statutory earned surplus. Such dividends are limited by statutory formula
unless otherwise approved by the New York Insurance Department. The statutory surplus of TRC
includes the statutory surplus of Putnam since all the capital stock of Putnam is owned by TRC. At
December 31, 2004, TRC had statutory earned surplus of $1,406,345,000, and, in 2005, in accordance
with the statutory formula, could pay dividends of approximately $194,445,000 without regulatory
approval.

Statutory surplus and net income as reported to the New York Insurance Department were as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

TRC
Statutory surplus. ... e $1,944450 $1,851,187 $1,545,944
Statutory net iNCOME. .....o.v vttt iieieaenenene. 141,830 176,107 114,648
Putnam
Statutory surplus. ... 125,638 127,709 110,334
Statutory net iNCOmMEe. .. ..vveivet et eeas 8,479 17,104 8,867

TRC and Putnam each prepare statutory financial statements in accordance with accounting
practices prescribed or permitted by New York—their state of domicile. Prescribed statutory accounting
practices are discussed in a variety of publications of the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (NAIC), as well as in state laws, regulations and general administrative rules. Permitted
statutory accounting practices encompass all accounting practices not so prescribed. All material
statutory accounting practices of TRC and Putnam are prescribed in the authoritative literature
described above.

14. Reinsurance Ceded

In the normal course of business, TRH purchases reinsurance from its retrocessionnaires to reduce
the effect of individual or aggregate losses and to allow increased gross premium writings and afford
greater risk capacity without necessarily requiring additional capital.

TRH’s ceded reinsurance agreements consist of pro rata and excess-of-loss contracts. Under pro
rata reinsurance, TRH and its retrocessionnaires share premiums, losses and expenses in an agreed
upon proportion. For consideration, generally based on a percentage of premiums of the individual
policy or policies subject to the reinsurance agreement, excess-of-loss contracts provide reimbursement
to TRH for losses in excess of a predetermined amount up to a predetermined limit.
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Premiums written, premiums earned and losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred are
comprised as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Gross premiums assumed. ........oveieiiiiiiniient i, $4,141,248 $3,637,909 $2,927,257
Reinsurance ceded:
AfflIates(1) oo it e e 152,791 87,294 90,599
OhET . o 239,183 209,538 336,499
391,974 296,832 427,098
Net premiums Written ..........cooeiniiiiiiniiiereineaennnn. $3,749,274 $3,341,077 $2,500,159
Gross premiums €arned ........viivniiiiit e $4,031,047 $3,458,352 $2,781,967
Reinsurance ceded:
Affiliates(1) .. ..ot e 124,175 81,980 96,290
1 11375 A 245,782 205,146 316,225
369,957 287,126 412,515
Net premiums earned .........covieiiiiiiiieniieirennenan.. $3,661,090 $3,171226 $2,369,452
Gross incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses ........... $2,969,429 $2,470,038 $1,988,395
Reinsurance ceded ... 214,869 236,591 192,043
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses ...................... $2,754,560 $2,233.447 $1,796,352

(1) Premiums written and earned that were ceded to affiliates include amounts which, by prearrangement with TRH, were
assumed from an affiliate and then ceded in an equal amount to other affiliates. Ceded premiums written include $138 million,
$79 million and $50 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and ceded premiums earned include $109 million, $71 million
and $48 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, related to such arrangements.

Amounts recoverable from retrocessionnaires are recognized in a manner consistent with the
claims liabilities associated with the retrocession and are presented on the balance sheet as reinsurance
recoverable on paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses. Such balances at December 31,
2004 and 2003 are comprised as follows:

2004 2003
Affiliates Other Affiliates Other
(in thousands)

Paid......o $ 4616 $ 24296 § 7982 §$ 25887
Unpaid... ..o 267,746 680,076 213,704 622,340
Total. ..o $272,362 $704,372 $221,686 $648,227

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve TRH from its obligations to the insurers and
reinsurers from whom it assumes business. The failure of retrocessionnaires to honor their obligations
could result in losses to TRH; consequently, an allowance has been established for estimated
unrecoverable reinsurance on paid and unpaid losses totaling $13.0 million in both 2004 and 2003. TRH
evaluates the financial condition of its retrocessionnaires through a security committee. With respect to
reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses and prepaid reinsurance premiums, TRH holds
substantial amounts of funds and letters of credit to collateralize these amounts. Such funds and letters
of credit can be drawn on for amounts remaining unpaid beyond contract terms. No uncollateralized
amounts recoverable from a single retrocessionnaire, other than amounts due from affiliates, are
considered material to the financial position of TRH.
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15. Segment Information

TRH conducts its business and assesses performance through segments organized along geographic
lines. Financial data from the London and Paris branches and from TRZ are reported in the aggregate
as International-Europe and considered as one segment due to operational and regional similarities.
Data from branches in the Americas, other than those in the United States which underwrite primarily
domestic business, and from branches in the Asia Pacific region are grouped as International-Other and
represent the aggregation of non-material segments. In each segment, property and casualty reinsurance
is provided to insurers and reinsurers on a treaty and facultative basis, through brokers or directly to
ceding companies.

A significant portion of assets and liabilities of TRH’ international operations relate to the
countries where ceding companies and reinsurers are located. Most investments are located in the
country of domicile of these operations. In addition to licensing requirements, TRH’s international
operations are regulated in various jurisdictions with respect to currency, amount and type of security
deposits, amount and type of reserves and amount and type of local investment. Regulations governing
constitution of technical reserves and remittance balances in some countries may hinder remittance of
profits and repatriation of assets. International operations and assets held abroad may be adversely
affected by political and other developments in foreign countries, including possibilities of tax changes,
nationalization and changes in regulatory policy, as well as by consequences of hostilities and unrest.
The risks of such occurrences and their overall effect upon TRH vary from country to country and
cannot easily be predicted.

While the great majority of premium revenues and assets relate to the regions where particular
offices are located, a portion of such amounts are derived from other regions of the world. In addition,
two large international brokers, respectively, accounted for non-affiliated business equal to 17% and
14% in 2004, 16% and 13% in 2003 and 14% and 13% in 2002, of consolidated revenues, with a
significant portion in each segment.
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The following table is a summary of financial data by segment:

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Domestic:
Net premiums WIItten. . .....oueunert i, $1,839,994 $1,840,787 $1,362,607
Net premiums earned(1) ............coiiiiiiiiiiiiii.. 1,805,232 1,748,715 1,303,584
Net investment INCOME . ...ttt ittt e, 199,695 189,648 182,564
Realized net capital gains (losses) ............cocovinin..s 20,251 3,277 (7,325)
Revenues(l) ....covniiiinini e e 2,025,178 1,941,640 1,478,823
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses(3) ............... 1,441,873 1,237,875 951,429
Underwriting expenses(4) ..........ooviviiiiirieneneenn.. 483,475 475,844 376,226
Underwriting (loss) profit(5) ...........coovviiiiiiiinin... (110,717) 53,411 (11,064)
Income before income taxes(1)(3) .........cooviiie.... 104,826 244,055 163,128
S ASSES(6) L. e 6,155115 5,610,070 4,935,354
International-Europe:
Net premiums WIitten...........c.ooooiiiiiniiiieennin. $1,513,253  $1,164,521 § 848,646
Net premiums earned(1) ..........cooiiiiiiiii ... 1,494,839 1,106,963 809,395
Net investment INCOME .. ...t iiir i 91,020 67,416 57,607
Realized net capital (losses) gains ........................ (667) 1,277 593
Revenues{1)(2) ...oovuinini e 1,585,192 1,175,656 867,595
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses(3) ............... 1,043,115 812,642 645,505
Underwriting expenses(4) ........cooovriiiiiieniineninn.n. 378,052 287,540 194,207
Underwriting profit (10ss)(5) ......ovvviviviiiiii i, 81,370 23,212 (19,018)
Income before income taxes(1){(2)(3).........covveviinn. 170,677 92,051 39,701
ASSEIS(6) < ettt 3,577,033 2,426,818 1,810,038
International-Other:
Net premiums Writtenl. ... ......oueuiineeninnenenennenen.. $ 396,027 $ 335769 $ 288,906
Net premiums earned ............ooiviiiiiiiniiiean.s 361,019 315,548 256,473
Net investment iNCOME .......ovvertiiireerinnereennnnnss 16,071 13,908 11,855
Realized net capital gains..............cociiiiiii L 2,597 5,388 781
Revenues(l) .....ooviriunii i i 379,687 334,844 269,109
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses(3) ............... 269,572 182,930 199,418
Underwriting expenses(4) ........coooeiiiriiiininannn.n. 121,294 106,821 92,146
Underwriting (loss) profit(3) ........o.oocoviiiiiii .., (17,495) 31,596 (27,576)
Income (loss) before income taxes(3)............ e 709 50,568 (14,509)
ASSES(6) .« . ettt e 873,144 670,870 541,133
Consolidated:
Net premiums WItten. . ......veeen i iiinienenaenn. $3,749,274  $3,341,077 $2,500,159
Net premiums earned(1) ..o, 3,661,090 3,171,226 2,369,452
Net investment INCOME .........cuuriiinerneenieanrneannss 306,786 270,972 252,026
Realized net capital gains (losses) .............coooevvne... 22,181 9,942 (5,951)
Revenues(1H2) ..o 3,990,057 3,452,140 2,615,527
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses(3) ............... 2,754,560 2233447 1,796,352
Underwriting expenses{4) ...........ccoiiiiiiiiinennennn.. 982,821 870,205 662,579
Underwriting (loss) profit(5) .........coooviviiininen. . (46,842) 108,219 (57,658)
Income before income taxes(1)(2}(3)............cocovinin. 276,212 386,674 188,320
ASSELS(0) « vt 10,605,292 8,707,758 7,286,525

(footnotes on next page)
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(footnotes from previous page)

(1) Net premiums earned from affiliates approximate $488,700, $533,700 and $230,900 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and
are included primarily in Domestic and International—Europe.

(2) Includes revenues from the London, England office of $900,328, $711,876 and $525,520 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(3) Results for 2004 include pre-tax net losses and loss adjustment expenses of $215.0 million (representing $114.1 million, $26.3
million and $74.6 million from Domestic operations, International—Europe operations and International—Other operations,
respectively.) related to catastrophe losses occurring in 2004. Results for 2002 include pre-tax net losses and loss adjustment
expenses of $100 million (representing $55 million, $30 million and $15 million from Domestic operations, International—
Europe operations and International—Other operations, respectively) related to the fourth quarter increase in net loss
reserves in certain casualty lines (see Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

(4) Underwriting expenses represent the sum of net commissions and other underwriting expenses.

(5) Underwriting profit (loss) represents net premiums earned less net losses and loss adjustment expenses and underwriting
expenses, plus (minus) the increase (decrease) in deferred acquisition costs.

(6) As of December 31.

Net premiums earned by major product line are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Casualty:
Other liability(a) .. ..ot $ 782949 $ 709,629 § 462,962
Auto liability ... 624,497 659,522 610,839
Medical malpractice.........ovvviiviiiinniieiiieeninnanin 400,721 322,196 216,535
Ocean marine and aviation ...............cevviveennnann. 307,088 243,846 158,161
Surety and credit ... 156,928 129,111 97,887
Accident and health ........... ... i, 144,997 118,375 125,381
Other . .o e 226,792 193,317 107,359
Total casualty ......ooiiiniiiii it 2,643,972 2375996 1,779,124

Property:
) 474,224 357,777 244,537
Allied Lnes . ..o i e 153,473 97,184 67,695
Homeowners multiple peril ...........c.cooviviiiiiiinn, 166,783 125,299 91,624
Auto physical damage .................oiiiiie, 118,757 119,734 98,487
1 11 11> S 103,881 95,236 87,985
Total Property.......oovvvuiiiiii i, 1,017,118 795,230 590,328
Total ot e $3,661,090 $3,171,226 $2,369,452

(a) A majority of the amounts within the other liability line relates to more complex risks such as professional liability (other
than medical malpractice), directors’ and officers’ liability and, to a lesser extent, environmental impairment liability.

16. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

(a) Legal Proceedings: TRH, in common with the reinsurance industry in general, is subject to
litigation in the normal course of its business. TRH does not believe that any pending litigation will
have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

(b) Commercial Commitments: In the normal course of business, TRH has issued letters of credit
to ceding companies amounting to $127,054,000. Where TRH provides a letter of credit, it is generally
contractually obligated to continue to provide a letter of credit to the ceding company in the future to
secure certain reserves and other balances.
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(¢) Leases: As of December 31, 2004, the future minimum lease payments (principally for leased
office space) under various long-term operating leases were as follows:

(in thousands)

2005 e e e $ 8,754
2006 . e e e 8,119
200 e e e 7,652
2008 . o e e e 7,623
200 e 7,675
Remaining years after 2009 (from 2010 to 2021) .................... 49,271
) 8 L] 7 $89,094

Rent expense approximated $8,605,000, $8,804,000 and $8,249,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

17. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly financial data for each of the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003. However, in the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting of
normal recurring accruals, necessary to present fairly the results of operations for such periods have
been made.

Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
T T (imousands,_exceptgshare—at_a) T T

Net premiums written ................ $907,470 $768,081 $927,197 $802,850 $987,385 $901,255 $927,222 $868,891
Net premiums earned ................ 893,147 692,167 895,504 762,763 940,606 863,659 931,833 852,637
Net investment income ............... 72,048 64,614 72,851 68,481 75,664 68489 86,223 69,388
Realized net capital gains ............ 7,249 538 2,215 731 5,029 5,501 7,688 3,172
Net income (10s§)..............c..... 89,653 62,828 87,824 75178 (21,838) 80,780 98,945 84,858
Net income (loss) per common :
share(1):
Basic .......... ... oo, 1.37 0.96 1.34 1.15 (0.33) 1.23 1.50 1.29
Diluted(2).........covveina 135 095 132 1.14 0.33) 1.22 1.50 1.28

(1) Net income (loss) per common share amounts have been retroactively adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect a 5-for-4 split of the

common stock in the form of a 25% stock dividend, paid in July 2004.

s the impact of potential shares for the three-mon eriod ended September 30, is antidilutive (i.e., reduces the loss

2) As the impact of potential sh for the thr th period ended September 30, 2004 tidilut d the |
per common share) because there is a loss from continuing operations, potential shares are not included in the diluted net loss
per common share calculation for that period.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no changes in nor any disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial
disclosure within the twenty-four months ended December 31, 2004.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation was carried out by TRH’
management, with the participation of TRH’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of
the effectiveness of TRH’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based upon that evaluation, TRH’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the
end of the period covered by this report. In addition, no change in TRH’s internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) occurred during the
fourth quarter of TRH’ fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, TRH’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and the Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm thereon are set forth in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART I

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information required by this Item concerning directors of the Company and the TRH code of
ethics is included in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the Company’s
fiscal year (the “2005 Proxy Statement”), in the section captioned “Election of Directors,” and such
information is incorporated herein by reference. TRH has adopted a code of ethics that applies to its
principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer, that establishes minimum
standards of professional responsibility and ethical conduct. This code of ethics is available on TRH’s
website at http://www.transre.com. If TRH makes any substantive amendments to this code of ethics or
grants any waiver from a provision of this code for such persons, TRH will disclose the nature of such
amendment or waiver on its website or in a report on Form 8-K. Information required by this Item
concerning the executive officers of the Company is included in Part I of this Annual Report on Form
10-K under the section captioned “Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.” Information
required by this Item concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, is included in the 2005 Proxy Statement under the caption “Election of Directors:
‘Ownership of Certain Securities,” ” and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by this Item is included in the 2005 Proxy Statement in the sections captioned
“Election of Directors: ‘Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers,” ‘Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation’ and ‘Pension Benefits,” ” and such information is incorporated
herein by reference. The sections of the 2005 Proxy Statement captioned “Election of Directors:
‘Committee Reports on Executive Compensation’ and ‘Performance Graph’” are not incorporated by
reference herein.

Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

Information required by this Item is included in the 2005 Proxy Statement in the sections captioned
“Beneficial Ownership” and “Election of Directors: ‘Ownership of Certain Securities,”” and such
information is incorporated herein by reference.
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In addition, summarized information with respect to equity compensation granted by the Company
as of December 31, 2004 is as follows:

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Number of Future
Securities Issuance
to be Issued under Equity
Upon Exercise Weighted Average Compensation
of Outstanding Exercise Price Plans (Excluding
Options, of Outstanding Securities
Warrants and Option, Warrants Reflected in
Rights and Rights Column(a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders ........................ 2,798,882 $50.33 1,525,273
Equity compensation plan not approved
by security holders ..................... — — —
Total ..o 2,798,882 $50.33 1,525,273

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information required by this Item is included in the 2005 Proxy Statement in the sections captioned
“Flection of Directors: ‘Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” ‘Relationship
with AIG,” ‘AIG Group Reinsurance,” ‘Certain Transactions with the AIG Group’ and ‘Relationship
with SICO and Starr,” ” and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required by this item is included in the 2005 Proxy Statement in the section captioned

“Ratification of Selection of Independent Accountants,” and such information is incorporated herein by
reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements and Exhibits
1. Financial Statements and Schedules
See accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8. Schedules not

included in the accompanying index have been omitted because they are not applicable.
2. Exhibits

21.1—Subsidiaries of Registrant.
23.1—Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

31.1—Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, by
Robert F. Orlich, President and Chief Executive Officer.

31.2—~Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, by
Steven S. Skalicky, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

32.1—Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, by Robert F Orlich, President
and Chief Executive Officer.

32.2—-Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, by Steven S. Skalicky, Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

See accompanying Exhibit Index for additional Exhibits incorporated by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

- i

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERT F. ORLICH

................................................

Robert F. Orlich
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

March 15, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated.
Signature ‘ Title Date
s/ R F. O President and Chief Executive Officer March 15, 2005
........ §, ROBERT I URLICH . (principal executive officer);
Robert F. Orlich Director
/s/ STEVEN S. SKALICKY Executive Vice President and Chief March 15, 2005

Financial Officer (principal financial

Steven S. Skalicky and accounting officer)

/s!/ JAMES BALOG Director March 15, 2005

......................................

James Balog

/s/ C. FRED BERGSTEN Director March 15, 2005

-------------------------------------- DireCtor
M.R. Greenberg
-------------------------------------- DireCtor
Tomio Higuchi
....... /s/| JouN J. Mackowskr ~ Director March 15, 2005
John J. Mackowski
..... /s/, EDWARD E. MATTHEWS = Director March 15, 2005
Edward E. Matthews
........ /sy HOwARD 1. SmiTH Director March 15, 2005
Howard I. Smith
s/ THOMAS R. Tizzio Director March 15, 2005

Thomas R. Tizzio
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE I

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS—OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

As of December 31, 2004

Amount at
Which Shown
Cost or in the
Amortized Market Balance
Type of Investment Cost(1) Value Sheet
(in thousands)
Fixed maturities:
U.S. Government and government agencies and
AULHOTIEIES & . oot e $ 249,647 $ 250,401 $ 250,401
States, foreign and domestic municipalities and political
SUDAIVISIONS . . ot ev ettt et e e e 4,301,578 4,495,146 4,465,821
Foreign governments..............covviiiiiiiiniennn., . 185,133 186,722 186,722
Public utilities .........c.oviriiii i 79,647 81,073 81,073
All other corporate ............cooiiiiiiiiiiniennnnns, 1,405,540 1,431,169 1,431,169
Total fixed maturities ................covvvivnnn. 6,221,545 6,444,511 6,415,186
Equities:
Common stocks:
Public utilities ..ot i, 17,594 17,969 17,969
Banks, trust and insurance companies ............... 177,374 188,750 188,750
Industrial, miscellaneous and all other............... 370,169 407,533 407,533
Total common Stocks .........covviveviinnnn.nn. 565,137 614,252 614,252
Nonredeemable preferred stocks ......................... 18,008 17,948 17,948
Total equities ..o, 583,145 632,200 632,200
Other Invested asselS. .. oot et it e 173,783 178,499 178,499
Short-term investment of funds received under securities
loan agreements .........coevurvreninentareieniie e, 875,081 875,081 875,081
Short-term INVESTMENTS ... ..ottt i iiii e inns 42,602 42,602 42,602
Total investments ................covvvvvenn.:. $7,896,156  $8,172,893  $8,143,568

(1) Investments in fixed maturities are shown at amortized cost.




SCHEDULE 1I

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

BALANCE SHEETS

(Parent Company Only)
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003

(in thousands,
except share data)

Assets:

Fixed maturities available for sale, at market value (amortized
cost: 2004—$27,026; 2003—$23,272) (pledged, at market value:

2004—85; 2003—$11,104) . . ..ot it e $ 28539 § 24,645
Short-term investment of funds received under securities loan
o (1314 T o 1 - 6 11,569
Cash and cash equivalents.......... ... .. it 502 462
Investment in subsidIaries ... ..ottt i e 2,555,633 2,352,194
L@ 13 =5 g 111 -3 NP 1,835 3,367
Dividend due from subsidiary ...t 9,500 5,750
Lol ASSEES .« i\ttt ettt i e $2,596,015 $2,397,987
Liabilities:
Payable under securities loan agreements..............cooveiuieniennn.. $ 6 $ 11,569
Dividends payable ...... ... 6,500 5,750
Accrued Habilities .. .oorettt i e e 2,380 4,081
Total Habilities . .......oevir it e i e e e 8,886 21,400
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred StocK. ... ..o e —_ —
[000] 1911 T0] s W 1o o) 66,712 53,333
Additional paid-in capital......... ... .o o 191,403 196,645
Accumulated other comprehensive income......................ooeL. 95,234 120,770
Retained earnings ...........coouveeiiiiiii it 2,249,393 2,020,282
Treasury Stock, at cost; 2004—884,100; 2003—864,200 shares of
COmMON STOCK . ..o i e e (15,613) (14,443)
Total stockholders’ equity .........co.oiiiiiiiiii i iees. 2,587,129 2,376,587
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity.............cocoeeenn.n. $2,596,015 $2,397,987

See Notes to Condensed Financial Information of Registrant—(Parent Company Only)
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SCHEDULE 11

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT—(Continued)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Parent Company Only)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Revenues:
Net investment income (principally dividends from subsidiary)... $ 28,859 § 23,705 § 21,822
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries ................. 229,067 282,013 148,342
Total revenues.... PR 257926 305,718 170,164
OPeTating EXPENSES. ... e vttt et arenes 4,410 2,526 687
Income before INCOME tAXES. . ..v it iir it enee i 253,516 303,192 169477
Income taxes (benefits)—current ...t (1,068) (452) 159
B LA H0 181+ 1= $254,584 $303,644 $169,318

See Notes to Condensed Financial Information of Registrant—(Parent Company Only)
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SCHEDULE I

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT—(Continued)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Parent Company Only)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net INCOME . ..eutt ettt enes $ 254,584 § 303,644 §$ 169,318

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries .......... (229,067) (282,013) (148,342)
Change in dividend due from subsidiary ................ (3,750) (550) (5,200)
Changes in other assets and accrued liabilities .......... 2,656 (137) 5,204
Total adjustments...............oooi i, (230,161) (282,700) (148,338)
Net cash provided by operating activities........... 24,423 20,944 20,980
Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds of fixed maturities matured........................ 4,835 — —
Purchase of fixed maturities .................ccoiiiiiiien.. (8,650) (2,148) (3,845)

Net sale (purchase) of short-term investment of funds
received under securities loan agreements................. 11,563 (423) 1,620
Net cash used in investing activities ................ 7,748 (2,571) (2,225)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net funds (disbursed) received under securities loan

D AGTEEIMEIES . . o\ttt et e e (11,563) 423 (1,620)
Dividends to stockholders .............cooeiiiiiiiiieiiin, (24,723) (22,012) (20,505)
Proceeds from common stock issued ...............c.oienn 5,325 3,572 3,003
Acquisition of treasury stock ....... ... ..ol (1,170) — —
Net cash used in financing activities ................ (32,131)  (18,017) _ (19,122)

Change in cash and cash equivalents ............... 40 356 (367)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year.................... 462 106 473
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ............ $ 502 § 462 § 106

Notes to Condensed Financial Information of Registrant-—(Parent Company Only)

(1) The condensed financial information of registrant should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included
elsewhere herein.

(2) Investment in subsidiaries is reflected on the equity method.
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SCHEDULE Il

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION
As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and for the Years Then Ended

Unpaid ComI:Estsions
Losses Net Losses and Change
Deferred  and Loss Net Net and Loss in Deferred Other Net
Acquisition Adjustment Unearned Premiums Investment Adjustment Acquisition Underwriting Premiums
Costs Expenses  Premiums Eamed Income Expenses osts Expenses Written
(in thousands) _—
2004
Property-Casualty
Domestic............. $ 89,276 $3,329,121 § 488,500 $1,805,232 $199,695 $1,441,873 $442,034 $32,042  $1,839,994
International:
Europe........... 61,451 2,103,717 315,619 1,494,839 91,020 1,043,115 341,215 29,139 1,513,253
Other............ 52,334 508,626 253,146 361,019 16,071 269,572 97,627 11,315 396,027
Consolidated . . $203,061 $5,941,464 $1,057,265 $3,661,090 $306,786 $2,754,560 $880,876 $72,496  $3,749,274
2003
Property-Casualty
Domestic ............. $ 79,877 $2,823,704 $§ 457,571 $1,748,715 $189,648 $1,237,875 $428,096 $29,333  $1,840,787
International:
Europe........... 53,755 1,624,365 279,056 1,106,963 67,416 812,642 246,510 24,599 1,164,521
Other ............ 39,980 357,429 180,728 315,548 13,908 182,930 89,429 11,593 335,769
Consolidated.. $173,612 $4,805,498 $§ 917,355 $3,171,226 $270,972 $2,233,447 §764,035 $65,525  $3,341,077
2002
Property-Casualty
Domestic............. $ 61,462 $2,454,838 $§ 362,544 $1,303,584 $182,564 § 951,429 $336,834 $26,385  $1,362,607
International:
Europe........... 37,324 1,299,610 192,434 809,395 57,607 645,505 163,807 19,101 848,646
Other............ 34,181 278,136 152,938 256,473 11,855 199,418 75,077 9,554 288,906

Consolidated .. $132,967 $4,032,584 $ 707,916 $2,369,452 $252,026 $1,796,352 $575,718 $55,040  $2,500,159
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SCHEDULE IV

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

REINSURANCE
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Percentage
Ceded Assumed of Amount
Gross to Other from Other Assumed
Amount Companies  Companies  Net Amount to Net
(in thousands)
2004
Premiums written:
Property-Casualty ................. —_ $391,974 $4,141,248 $3,749,274 110%
2003
Premiums written:
Property-Casualty ................. _ $296,832  $3,637,909 $3,341,077 109%
2002
Premiums written:
Property-Casualty ................. — $427,098  $2,927,257 $2,500,159 117%
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION CONCERNING
PROPERTY/CASUALTY INSURANCE OPERATIONS
As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and for the Years Then Ended

Ni
Net Losses and Loss Comm?stsions

Unpaid Adjustment Expenses 4 Change

Losses Related
Deferred - and Loss  Discount Net Net elated to in Deferred
Acquisition Adjustment if any Unearned Premiums Investment  Current Prior Acquisition
Costs Expenses Deducted Premiums Earned Income Year Years Costs
(in thousands)

$1,057,265 $3,661,090 $306,786 $2,437,178 $317,382 $880,876
$ 917,355 $3,171,226 $270,972 $1,910,860 $322,587 $764,035
$ 707,916 $2,369,452 $252,026 $1,457,226 $339,126 $575,718

2004..... $203,061 $5,941,464 —
2003..... $173,612 $4,805498 —
2002..... $132,967 $4,032,584 —

S-7

SCHEDULE VI

Net Paid
Losses
and Loss Net
Adjustment  Premiums
Expenses Written

$1,730,371 $3,749,274
$1,534,933 $3,341,077
$1,447,333 $2,500,159




EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
No. Description

3.1 —Certificate of Incorporation, as amended

through April 19, 1990 ...................

—Certificate of Amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation, dated May 25,
1999,

3.1.1

32 —Amended and Restated By-Laws, as of

March 25, 1999. ... ...l

4.1 —Form of Common Stock Certificate ......

—Amended and Restated Shareholders
Agreement among American Express
Company, Gulf Insurance Company, The
Lambert Brussels Financial Corporation,
Stoneridge Limited, Mavron Ltd.,,
American International Group, Inc.,
American Home Assurance Company,
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company,
certain trustees under an Indenture of
Trust made by SwissRe Holding Limited,
SwissRe Holding Limited, General Re
Corporation, Compagnie Financiere et de
Reassurance du Groupe AG, Daido
Mutual Life Insurance Company, The
Nichido Fire and Marine Insurance
Company, Limited, Transatlantic
Reinsurance Company, and PREINCO
Holdings, Inc., dated January 5, 1990 ....

10.1

102 —FExclusive Agency Agreement between
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company and
American Home Assurance Company,

dated February 27, 1980..................

103 —Service and Expense Agreement among
PREINCO Holdings, Inc.,, Putnam
Reinsurance Company, and American
International Group, Inc. dated July 1,

1986, .o

Location

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s 1999
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 1-10545) and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s 1998
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 1-10545) and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.




Exhibit
No.

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.7(a)

Description
—Service and Expense Agreement between
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company and

American International Group, Inc., dated
December 15, 1977 ...,

—Investment Management Contract between
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company and
AIG Global Investors, Inc. dated August 1,
1986, . e

—Investment Management Contract between
Putnam Reinsurance Company and AIG
Global Investors, Inc. dated August 1, 1986

—Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 1990 Stock
Option Plan*...............coivviiin,

—Transatlantic = Holdings, Inc. 1990
Employee Stock Purchase Plan*..........

10.7(b)—Amended Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 1990

10.7(c)

Stock Option Plan*

—Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 1995 Stock
Option Plan and form of Director Option
Agreement*

10.7(d)—Amendment to Transatlantic Holdings, Inc.

1990 Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
effective as of December 7, 1995*........

10.7(e)—Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 2000 Stock

10.7(£)

Option Plan*

—Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 2003 Stock
Incentive Plan*.......................0l.

Location

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-41474) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Companys 1992
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1992 (File
No. 1-10545) and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as exhibits to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 33-99764) and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-10545)
dated January 31, 1996, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-50298)
and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-111513) and incorporated herein by
reference.




Exhibit

No. . Description

10.7(g)—Form of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 2000
Stock Option Plan stock option
agreement®........... . i

10.7(h)—Form of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. 2003
Stock Incentive Plan RSU award
agreement®........... ... .ol

10.8 —Transatlantic Reinsurance Company 1989

Stock Option Plan*

10.9 —Transatlantic Reinsurance Company 1984

Stock Option Plan*

10.10 —Transatlantic Reinsurance Company 1979

Stock Option Plan*

1011 —Quota Share Reinsurance Treaty between
National Union Fire Insurance Company
of Pittsburgh, Pa. and Transatlantic

Reinsurance Company, dated June 5, 1978

10.12 —Quota Share Reinsurance Treaty between
New Hampshire Insurance Company and
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company, dated

February 9, 1978 ...,

10.13 —Quota Share Reinsurance Treaty between
American International Underwriters
Overseas  Ltd. and  Transatlantic
Reinsurance Company, dated

September 22, 1978 ......... ..o

10.14 —Surplus Treaty Dbetween American
International Group Companies and
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company, dated

September 29, 1989

Location

Filed as exhibit to the Companys 2004
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004 (File
No. 1-10545) and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s 2004
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004 (File
No. 1-10545) and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.




Exhibit
No.

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

—Representative

—Representative

—Agreement

—Aggregate

—Management

Description

—~Quota Share Reinsurance Treaty among

Lexington Insurance Company, Landmark
Insurance Company, New Hampshire
Insurance Company and Transatlantic
Reinsurance Company, dated February 28,
1990. .. oo

Facultative Insurance
Certificate for Casualty Reinsurance Risk
(Certificate between National Union Fire
Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa. and
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company, dated
January 9, 1990) ...l

Facultative Insurance
Certificate for Property Reinsurance Risk
(Certificate between American Home
Assurance Company and Transatlantic
Reinsurance Company, dated March 7,
1990) o

between American
International Group, Inc. and Transatlantic
Reinsurance Company, dated
December 15, 1977, providing Transatlantic
Reinsurance Company with a right of first
acceptance of reinsurance of risks insured
by affiliates of American International
Group, Inc ...l

Excess Treaty between
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company and
National Union Fire Insurance Company
of Pittsburgh, Pa., dated November 15,
1989 . .

Agreement between
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company and
Putnam Reinsurance Company, dated
February 15, 1991 ...l

Location

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration

statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration

Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration

Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration

Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s Registration

Statement (File No. 33-34433) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as exhibit to the Company’s 1995

Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 1-10545) and incorporated herein by
reference.




Exhibit
No.

1021

211
231
311

312

321

322

Description
—Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement
between  Transatlantic = Reinsurance
Company and Putnam Reinsurance

Company, dated December 6, 1995.......

—Subsidiaries of the registrant
—Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
—Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, by Robert F.
Orlich, President and Chief Executive
Officer. ...
—Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, by Steven S.
Skalicky, Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer ...................

—~Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of
2002, by Robert F. Orlich, President and
Chief Executive Officer. ..................

—Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, by Steven S. Skalicky, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer ....

* Management compensation plan.

Location

Filed as exhibit to the Companys 1995
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 1-10545) and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed herewith.
Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Provided herewith.

Provided herewith.




EXHIBIT 21.1

TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

Jurisdiction of

Name of Corporation Incorporation
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company ................c.coovininn New York, U.S.A.
Putnam Reinsurance Company.......... e New York, U.S.A.
Trans Re Zurich ... ... s Zurich, Switzerland
Transatlantic Re (Argentina) S A.............. ..., Argentina
Transatlantic Re (Brasil) Ltda. ......................coie Brazil
Transatlantic Polska Sp. z oo, ...t Warsaw, Poland

* The common stock is owned 100% by Transatlantic Reinsurance Company.

% of Voting
Securities
Owned by its
Immediate
Parent

100%

100% *
100% *
100% *
100% *
100% *




EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements on Forms S-8
(No. 33-99764, 33-41474, 333-50298 and 333-111513) of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. of our report dated
March 15, 2005 relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedules, management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/WMJW— LR
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New York, New York
March 15, 2005




EXHIBIT 311

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATION
I, Robert F. Orlich, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2005

/s/ ROBERT F. ORLICH

Robert F. Orlich
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATION

I, Steven S. Skalicky, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and '

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2005

/s/ STEVEN S. SKALICKY

Steven S. Skalicky
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 of
Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. (the “Company™), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert F. Orlich, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ ROBERT F. ORLICH

Robert F. Orlich
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 15, 2005

The foregoing is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and is not being filed as part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K or as a separate disclosure document.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 of
Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Steven S. Skalicky, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s!/ STEVEN S. SKALICKY

Steven S. Skalicky
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 15, 2005

The foregoing is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and is not being filed as part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K or as a separate disclosure document.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

The 2005 stockholders’ meeting is scheduled
to be held on Thursday, May {9, 2005

in New York, New York.

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
300 Madison Avenue

New York, NY 10017

COUNSEL
Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP
One New York Plaza, New York, New York 10004

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,

59 Maiden Lane, Plaza Level, New York, New York 10038
Telephone: (800) 937-5449

STOCK TRADING

Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. Common Stock is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange.

Trading Symbol: TRH

COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDENDS

The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices
per share of the Company’s Common Stock, as reported on the
New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape for each of the four
quarters of 2004 and 2003, adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect the
S-for-4 common stock split effected in the form of a 25% common
stock dividend, paid on July 16,2004:

2004 2003
High Low High Low
First Quarter 69.97 64.44 55.76 49.18
Second Quarter 73.49 64.79 57.16 52.92
Third Quarter 65.96 53.80 58.64 55.56
Fourth Quarter 62.19 54.22 64.64 57.82

In 2004, the Company declared a quarterly dividend of $0.088 per
share of Common Stock in March and $0.10 per share of Common
In 2003, the
Company declared a quarterly dividend of $0.08 per share of
Common Stock in March and $0.088 per share of Common Stock

Stock in each of May, September and December.

in each of May, September and December. The Company paid each
dividend in the quarter following the date of declaration. All divi-
dend information reflects the 5-for-4 split of the common stock
split paid in July 2004.

The declaration and payment of future dividends, if any, by the
Company will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will
depend upon many factors, including the Company’s consolidated
earnings, financial condition and business needs, capital and surplus
requirements of the Company’s operating subsidiaries, regulatory

considerations and other factors.

The Company is a holding company whose principal source of
income is dividends from its subsidiary, Transatlantic Reinsurance
Company (TRC). The payment of dividends by TRC and its wheolly-
owned subsidiaries, Trans Re Zurich and Putnam Reinsurance
Company, is restricted by insurance regulations. (See Note i3 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the accompanying
Form 10-K.)

As of January 31, 2005, the approximate number of holders of
Common Stock, including those whose Common Stock is held in
nominee name, was 28,000.

SEC CERTIFICATIONS

The certifications by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc., required under
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, have been filed as
exhibits to the Company’s 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

NYSE CERTIFICATION

The Chief Executive Officer of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. made an
unqualified certification to the NYSE with respect to the
Company’s compliance with the NYSE corporate governance
listing standards in June 2004.

EMPLOYEES
At December 31, 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries had
approximately 465 employees.

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Information about the Company, including all quarterly earnings
releases and financial filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission, can be accessed via our web site at www.transre.com,

under Investor Information.

Requests for copies of the Company’s 2004 Annual Report on Form
10-K may be obtained by contacting TRH’s Investor Relations
Department at:

Transatlantic Holdings, Inc.
80 Pine Street

New York, New York {0005
Telephone: (212) 770-2040
Telefax: (212) 248-0965

E-mail: investor_relations@transre.com
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